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Forebase International Holdings Limited
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Financial Highlights
IIBRE

BERARAT

Turnover
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Note 2012 2011 % Changes
BEE —E——F —T—%F SEE DL
Restated
=
Results ]
HK$'000 FBT
Turnover EERE 475,174 558,528 (14.9)
(Loss) profit before taxation BrEEAT (E518) &= A (51,187) (57,389) (10.8)
(Loss) profit after taxation ZiN/NEIEZE DN
attributable to owners FE(LBRF 1%
of the Company (E18) &= H) (52,339) (52,946) (1.1)

Assets and Liabilities EEHEE
HK$'000 FET
Total assets BEE 282,222 553,021 (49.0)
Total liabilities FEN=NE 115,452 229,004 (49.6)
Shareholders’ equity G2 166,770 324,017 (48.5)
Per Share Data BREE
HK cents el
Basic (loss) earnings X (B18) &H (16.16) (16.35) (1.2)
Diluted (loss) earnings BE (B8R B (16.16) (16.35) (1.2)
HK$ BT
Net asset value EEFE (49.0)
Financial Ratio /g e
Current ratio VIR S 253
Quick ratio RE) 34.4
Gearing ratio BfEX (47.8)

Notes:

fE -

(1) Current ratio represents current assets divided by current liabilities.

(2) Quick ratio represents current assets excluding inventories divided
by current liabilities.

(3) Gearing ratio represents total bank borrowing divided by total equity.

(1) RBLEERBEERAREELE

(2) FBHLEEIBREFE

IRBEERARBAE -

(3) BELFERITIEERALEREER -
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Chairman’s Statement
FEREE
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The year 2012 has been a significant year for the
Group. While facing the challenges presented to
our current businesses, we have also made an
important step forward in our future development
—E-CFHAEEMEREEN—F
REAKESRB R LMEEEE
BEERMAERKERTANTENEE —F
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Forebase International Holdings Limited
REBBRZERERDR

The year 2012 has been a significant year for Forebase
International Holdings Limited (formerly known as Kwang
Sung Electronics H.K. Co. Limited) (the “Company”). Keen
competition in the traditional consumer electronics markets
and the weak consumer sentiment caused by the gloomy global
economy continued to present major challenges to the global
electronic industry. As a result, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) recorded continuous decrease in
turnover and profit as compared to the previous corresponding
years. We have proactively adopted a number of measures to
cope with the current challenging business environment. During
the year, the Group has realigned its current production and
separated its production business and the sales business of
electronic products to cater for the growing demand of multi-
function electronic devices such as televisions, automotive
products and mobile device-related business segments.

Nevertheless, as disclosed in the joint announcement published
by, amongst others, the Company, dated 17 October 2012, the
Group is having a detailed review of the operations of the Group
with a view to establishing a suitable business strategy to inspire
a turnaround for the Group, enhance the growth of its business
and asset base as well as to broaden its income stream; which
may include investment in and/or acquisition of assets or
business from other parties. After the review of the existing
business and asset profile of the Group, we have classified
properties investment as a new business segment of the Group
as it represented a significant business proportion to the Group
relative to the Group’s asset value, turnover and profit in these
two years.
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Apart from the business development, | would like to report on
several corporate changes since the acquisition of 174,082,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 in the issued share capital of
the Company (the “Shares”) by Ultra Harvest Limited (“Ultra
Harvest”) on 11 December 2012. Ultra Harvest has become the
ultimate holding company of the Company upon the completion
of the acquisition. Thereafter, an unconditional mandatory cash
offer (the “Listco Offer”) was made on 14 December 2012 and
closed on 4 January 2013, with valid acceptances of 69,519,950
Shares. In aggregate, Ultra Harvest has become interested in
243,601,950 Shares (representing approximately 75.21% of the
total issued share capital of the Company, being the controlling
shareholder. On 12 March 2013, the name of the Company has
been changed to “Forebase International Holdings Limited E&
HEEEER AR AT]" and on 21 March 2013, the English and
Chinese stock short names of the Company for trading in the
Shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) have been changed to “FOREBASE INTL” and “ &
E B respectively.

As a result of the close of the Listco Offer, with effect from
7 January 2013, Mr. Yang Ho Sung ceased to be the chairman
and non-executive director of the Company, Mr. Yang Jai Sung
ceased to be the chief executive officer and executive director
of the Company and Mr. Lee Kyu Young ceased to be the chief
operating officer and executive director of the Company; and,
on the same day, Dr. Han Byung Joon, Dr. Kim Chung Kweon
and Mr. Kim Chan Su resigned as independent non-executive
directors of the Company. On behalf of the board of directors of
the Company (the “Board”), | would like to express our special
appreciation to them for their contributions during their tenure of
office.

In addition, | am delighted to welcome Mr. Ronald Lew Podlas,
being the new chief executive officer and executive director of
the Company, Mr. Shen Ke, Mr. Li Zhi, Mr. Xu Li Jian and Mr.
Leung Kin Pang as the new executive directors of the Company
all with effect from 17 December 2012; Mr. Yu Lei, Dr. Jiang Ying
and Ms. Zhang Cui Lan as independent non-executive directors
of the Company all with effect from 7 January 2013; and Mr.
Ernst Rudolf Zimmermann as independent non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 18 January 2013.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express the sincere thanks
and appreciation to our shareholders, business partners and
dedicated management and staff for their continued support and
valuable contributions to the Group.

Shen Yong B 5
Chairman ¥ &

Hong Kong, 26 March 2013
B8 —E—=F=A=+7"H

Annual Report 2012

ZE-FFR
BREBEFEANZERN AADZHRRE S
Ultra Harvest Limited ([Ultra Harvest]) % = =&

——F+Z A+ —BREBEARRRBEBEITRAF
174,082,000 f% & % 0.10/8 T 2 & @ ik ([ B
m1) UARHETEESE - RIKIBTRE -
Ultra Harvest i\ B AR R 8] 2 S 4R A aE] o H
% RIZE——F+ZATHBEDEEER
SRS WEERZE ([ L AarlkEREZE]D -
PTHR_ZE—=ZF—AWBEK BXER
69,519,950 f% % 17 o A It + Ultra Harvest & £t
F5A 243,601,950 IR AZ1p (1A AR AR B BITIRA
BENX)T75.21%) 2w KARRAZIERE
R-RZE—ZF=ZA+=H ARRIZEE
B A& [ Forebase International Holdings Limited
REBBRERAERAR] MR=ZE—=%=A
Z+—8 ARAROREBHERIER
~aE) ([BRA)) #TEBREA 2P RN
57D B & 2k A [FOREBASE INTL] & [ EEH
BR1 e

AR ETARMEBRERETK I —=F—
AtRE  REEXREEEEARBEER
FRTEERT  REEREFLETARA
TTBARERATESTRG - FERLELFILE
EARALERERANTESTHS - RBE - 72
AEEL S ERELRSEKREEDHIBHE
RRBVELIFRTEERT - RABHARAK
~AEFEE ((EFg)) FrlIRHFERFETHRE
BARREHZEERRS °

BEON  RAMABEH-_T——F+-_A++t
B BEAKEERERRRZHETRAE
RMITESR > BELE  FEELE  RUBRSE
ERRRBEREEEARRZHERNTES:
H-T—=F—AtHE REFLEE BHRE
TRRBBRLTEERNRRBULIIRTES
EBH-FE—=F—HA+/\BE AEXELE
EARRBBIULIFNITES ©

ANEREZESSHRMORR  REBH R
EERANEREME TEASORHE - R
I —EUREARENERG S REER
B o



Fruition
of the [Earth

©




Annual Report 2012
R FER 09

Management Discussion
and Analysis
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We are currently evaluating the operations in detail and are
formulating appropriate business strategies to enhance our business
growth and optimise our asset base, as well as develop new income

sources through investment or acquisition at the appropriate time
mnmdatnwxmﬂgngﬂmreﬂwnsofmﬂshamhddem
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Forebase International Holdings Limited
REBBRZERERDR

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEET WD T

During the year, a new reporting segment - properties
investment was introduced based on its relative
significance in terms of asset value, turnover and profit

attributable to the Group

TN BERWEREHFAEBMEEEEE  EEZERDINES
EZ it ERZMARBHRES — WERE

Corporate Changes

As set out in note 1 to the financial statements, following the
completion of the Group Reorganisation, the Distribution
In Specie and the Share Sale Agreement, the Distributed
Businesses were classified as discontinued operations and the
Group was only engaged in the business of the manufacture and
sale of electronic components and Ultra Harvest has become the
ultimate holding company of the Company.

The discontinued operations for the year ended 31 December
2012 have been presented as a single amount in the Group’s
consolidated income statement in accordance with New and
Revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and certain
comparative figures have been re-presented to conform to the
current year’s presentation. During the year, a new reporting
segment - properties investment was introduced based on its
relative significance in terms of asset value, turnover and profit
attributable to the Group.

Continuing Operations
Turnover

Prior to 1 August 2011, the Jay Star Holdings Limited (“Jay
Star”) and its subsidiaries (collectively known as the “Privateco
Group”) had not yet commenced operations, and all the business

LEED

MBI SRR T LTS - RNEEER - EYHIR
M ERGHTKE  EDREBHEIAEKRIE
KEER  ANEEERSREREEE T LY
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Limited ([Jay Star]) R EK B Q7 (45 [ fL
ARBIER]) MARREE  FTENERIEE



in the discontinued operations were operated directly by the
Company. Since 1 August 2011, the business in the Privateco
Group has commenced gradually. Starting from the beginning
of 2012, the Privateco Group has taken full responsibility of the
business in the discontinued operations. Therefore, the sales in
continuing operations in 2011 included certain businesses in
the discontinued operations operated directly by the Company.
Due to the fact that the Company was not in charge of any
discontinued operations in 2012, turnover from the continuing
operations decreased by approximately HK$205,354,000 or
36.1% to approximately HK$363,553,000, of which turnover
from sales of composite components amounted to approximately
HK$199,257,000, turnover from sales of unit electronic
components amounted to approximately HK$162,218,000, and
turnover from properties investment amounted to approximately
HK$2,078,000.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales decreased by approximately HK$208,223,000 or
38.0% to approximately HK$339,539,000. The decrease in cost
of sales was in line with decrease in turnover.

Gross Profit

Despite decrease in turnover, the gross profit increased by
approximately HK$2,869,000 or 13.6% to approximately
HK$24,014,000. The increase was primarily due to decrease
in slow moving inventory provision by approximately
HK$16,915,000. Accordingly, overall gross profit margin
increased from 3.7% in 2011 to 6.6% in 2012.

Other Income and Gains

Other income and gains increased by approximately
HK$4,910,000 or 62.2% to approximately HK$12,799,000.
The increase in other income and gains was primarily due to
net effect of increase in fair value of investment properties by
approximately HK$1,706,000, decrease in fair value of financial
liabilities at fair value through profit and loss by approximately
HK$5,364,000, and decrease in gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment by approximately HK$2,974,000.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses and finance costs decreased by
approximately HK$20,436,000 or 26.5% to approximately
HK$56,609,000. This is mainly due to decrease in turnover
during the year.
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Forebase International Holdings Limited
REBBRZERERDR

Management Discussion and Analysis
BIRE T mEL AT

Taxation

Taxation expenses amounted to approximately HK$3,848,000
as compared to tax credit of approximately HK$4,010,000
for last year. Out of the taxation expenses of approximately
HK$3,848,000, the balance of approximately HK$1,332,000
reflected under-provision of PRC Corporate Income Tax in prior
years.

Loss for the Year

As a result of the combined effects of the above, the Group
recorded a net loss of approximately HK$23,644,000 from the
continuing operations.

Discontinued Operations

Discontinued operations are directly operated by the Privateco
Group, and the business in the Privateco Group gradually
commenced only since 1 August 2011. Therefore, sales in
discontinued operations in 2011 were relatively lower. But due
to the fact that Privateco Group has assumed full responsibility
of the business in the discontinued operations in 2012, turnover
from the discontinued operations increased by approximately
HK$142,269,000 or 527.5% to approximately HK$169,240,000
with a gross profit amount of approximately HK$14,017,000 and
a gross profit margin at 8.3%. Other income mainly reflected
procurement, sales and research and development fee income
of approximately HK$14,880,000. Total operating expenses,
including selling and distribution expenses, administrative
expenses, research and development expenses and other
operating expenses, amounted to approximately HK$60,573,000
in 2012, an increase of approximately HK$40,310,000 against
approximately HK$20,263,000 recorded in the previous year.
The discontinued operations recorded income tax credit of
approximately HK$930,000. Accordingly, net loss for the
year ended 31 December 2012 amounted to approximately
HK$30,461,000 from the discontinued operations.

Based on the foregoing, the Group recorded a net loss of
approximately HK$52,339,000 attributable to owners of the
Company, of which net loss from the continuing operations
amounted to approximately HK$23,644,000 and net loss
from the discontinued operations amounted to approximately
HK$28,695,000.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s net current assets and
current ratio were approximately HK$97,294,000 and 1.93
respectively (2011: approximately HK$117,095,000 and 1.54).
The increase in current ratio mainly reflected the percentage
decrease in current liabilities was higher than percentage
decrease in current assets. The gearing ratio (defined as total
bank borrowing divided by total equity) as at 31 December 2012
was 0.12 (2011: 0.23). The decrease in gearing ratio primarily
represented the percentage decreased in bank borrowing was
higher than the percentage decrease in total equity.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s bank balances and
cash amounted to approximately HK$110,250,000 (2011:
approximately HK$110,182,000).

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2012, bank deposits of approximately
HK$11,009,000 (2011: approximately HK$472,000), the
investment properties of approximately HK$46,492,000 (2011:
approximately HK$23,930,000) and the land and buildings of Nil
(2011: approximately HK$71,722,000) were pledged to secure
banking facilities granting to the Group.

Capital Structure

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group primarily
financed its liquidity requirements through a combination of cash
flow as generated from operations and bank borrowing.

Capital Commitment and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had approximately
HK$88,000 (2011: approximately HK$14,619,000) of capital
commitments and approximately HK$10,414,000 as operating
lease commitments (2011: approximately HK$11,078,000). As
at 31 December 2012, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities (2011: Nil).
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Forebase International Holdings Limited
REBBRZERERDR

Management Discussion and Analysis
BIRE T mEL AT

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries
or Associated Companies

Save for the completion of the Distribution In Specie of the
shares of Jay Star by the Company to its then shareholders on 11
December 2012 where Jay Star Group ceased to be members
of the Group, the Group did not have any material acquisitions
or disposals of subsidiaries or associated companies during the
year ended 31 December 2012.

Staff and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had approximately 710
employees, including 667 based in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”) and 43 based in Hong Kong. Staff cost from the
continuing operations for the year ended 31 December 2012
was approximately HK$54,400,000, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$26,346,000 as compared to approximately
HK$80,746,000 of last year.

Employee remuneration is determined in accordance with
prevailing industry practice and employees’ performance and
experience. Discretionary bonuses are awarded to employees
with outstanding performance with reference to the performance
of the Group. Employees are also entitled to other staff benefits
including medical insurance and mandatory provident fund.

Foreign Exchange Fluctuation and Hedge

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk arising from
various currency exposures, primarily with respect to RMB,
United States Dollars and Korean Won. Foreign exchange risk
arises from commercial transactions, recognised assets and
liabilities and net investment in foreign operations.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group did not
enter into any forward foreign currency contracts (2011: Nil).

MEBARSBEARZWEREE

BRARFNRZ=ZZ—=—F+=A+—8 (Jay Star
SEREATLABRAEENE) TAMAE FKK
REWDIKJay Star ZIRH N - BEZT—=4F
TZA=+—RIEFE AEELEMNE QR
St E N 2 EMEAKERLE -

1 8 & #r B BUR

R-ZZE——F+-_A=+—H AEEHHE710
HET EHe6//EFEAREMEA ([
M) BHREFE - BE_ZTE—-F+=A
ST+ —HUEFEREFELEER 2B THRA
#97554,400,0007 7T © 8 EF 49 4580,746,000
77T NB& 40 5 26,346,000 78 7T ©

EEME HRBERITOHTEENREERE R
KBETE WBFEANREASEZEZER
B BPpRRERNER RETAEEZEH
B8R (RREEERRMARTIEATER) o

S EE R B R

AEEAZKAZEER ZINERR - EBW
RARE  XTREE - INERRKREBER
5 DHIABENMEE  UERRINEEE 2 F
RE -

BE—T——Ht+_-_A=1t—HILFE £&
B EF L EERINESN (2T ——F:
) o



BUSINESS Review
=% ] jgR

Composite Components Business

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the turnover from the
composite components business dropped by approximately
HK$38,650,000 or 13.0% from approximately HK$296,271,000
in 2011 to approximately HK$257,621,000 in 2012. This
reduction was mainly due to continued declining customer
demand and changes in technical specifications of tuner
modules for home audio systems amidst the fast-changing
technological and electronic markets. Meanwhile, the sales of
this segment contributed 54.2% to the Group’s total turnover,
compared with 53.1% in the corresponding period in 2011.

The sales from tuner modules for home audio systems decreased
by 40.8% to approximately HK$74,731,000, representing 29.0%
of the Group’s total turnover of the composite components
business. The drop in sales of this product was partly recovered
from the sales of dual docking systems for mainstream
smartphones arising from the rapid growth in the smartphone
and tablet personal computer markets. Leveraging the fast-
growing mobile devices in home audio market, the Group
recorded approximately HK$22,869,000 in sales of dual docking
systems during the year.

Annual Report 2012
- FHH

Tumover of Composite Components Business
EETHEBHERT

(HK$'000 F387T)

800,000

624,358

600,000 V(
422,027

391,814
400,000 {

296,271

\] 257,621
200,000 ‘ V

/)

2009 2010 2011

BETHED
BE_Z——Ff+-_A=+—RILEE"
EETHEBZEXZRBH_ZT——FHOAR
296,271,000 7T > #) 538,650,000 7% 7T 2k
13.0% &2 =—F——F#%5257,621,0008 7T ° &
¥BRL  TEHRBFFPBEREFERL - UK
RThEFEMMESREN  ERRAZE
RS AR RAN B RS E BT - R -
ZOMEARNEE 2 BEXBE 2 BERNB54.2% -
M=—F——F/R531% -

XABERRH R HERE N 40.8%
EH/T74731,00008 T IEREBEEE TR
TS KRR 29.0% © B BEFH K FARELE A
BERODRERES T TRERTHRESTH X
RGAHE BT HEMMBERE MR
FE XENFAEEMSBERMEO N ERIZ
R AKREFASFBEEHRARIHERY
#%22,869,000 7T °

15




16

Forebase International Holdings Limited
REBBRZERERDR

Management Discussion and Analysis
BIRE T mEL AT

In view of the declining customer demand of traditional home
tuner products, the Group has gradually shifted its business
direction to multi-function electronic devices, especially
automotive-focused solutions. In line with this strategy, the
Group reached satisfactory growth of 7.9% in sales of tuner
modules for car audio systems. Turnover marked approximately
HK$71,102,000 during the financial year, accounting for 27.6%
of the Group’s total turnover of the segment. The improvement
was attributed to the consistent before-market demand in the
PRC and Korea including that of leading Korean automotive
manufacturers based in the PRC.

The turnover from wireless solutions amounted to approximately
HK$30,084,000, accounting for 11.7% of the Group’s total
turnover in the composite components business. The decline in
sales was mainly due to discontinued orders for wireless speaker
systems in home audios. However, the Group has recently
worked closely with consumers for Bluetooth speaker systems
designed by the Group’s research and development resources,
thus a greater revenue contribution to this segment is expected.

As for digital solutions in digital audio broadcasting (“DAB”)
and hybrid digital radio (“HD Radio”), the Group has been
working with an integrated circuit manufacturer and supplier for
possible strategic alliance for the production of modules and end
products.

Unit Electronic Components Business

For the year ended 31 December 2012, turnover from the unit
electronic components business decreased by approximately
HK$45,805,000 or 17.5% from approximately HK$261,280,000
in 2011 to approximately HK$215,475,000 in 2012. The sales
of this segment represented 45.3% of the Group’s total turnover,
compared with 46.8% in the corresponding period in 2011.

The turnover from the transformers for LCD and LED televisions
as well as adapters for mobile devices increased modestly by
4.5% to approximately HK$80,338,000, representing 37.3% of
the Group’s total turnover in unit electronic components business
thanks to rising demand for automated production of PRC
customers to reduce cost burden from high labour costs, while
the turnover from the coils for power supplies dropped by 32.4%
to approximately HK$92,011,000, representing 42.7% of the
Group’s total turnover in unit electronic components business.
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Properties Investment Business

Properties investment business became one of the significant
segments to the Group in terms of turnover, profit and assets
value of the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, turnover from the
properties investment business increased by approximately
HK$1,101,000 or 112.7% from approximately HK$977,000 in
2011 to approximately HK$2,078,000 in 2012. The turnover
reflected rental income arising from lease of the Group’s
investment properties located in Hong Kong, the PRC and Korea.

Prospects

To cope with the challenges of intense competition and the
weak sentiment in traditional consumer electronics markets,
the Group will focus on launching new products to enhance its
profitability to match the flexible business adjustment strategy.
Looking ahead, the Group will continue to realign its production
to address the rising customer demand for multi-functional
electronic devices such as mobile devices, and digital solutions
in DAB and automotive related business segments.

The Group is pleased with the rapidly growing smartphone and
tablet personal computer markets, and is developing more new
models - the peripheral devices for mainstream smart devices
including a dual docking system and a wireless Bluetooth
speaker system with “full digital” capability. The Group is one
of the recognised vendors of renowned consumer electronics
brands in this region and enjoys stable business partnerships
with industry leaders. The Group is collaborating closely
with clients to develop multi-function electronic devices with
innovative functions and expects to secure new orders from its
current customers in the future.
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In addition, the Group will focus on higher profit margin
automotive electronics products. As one of the key suppliers
of car audio system solutions in Korea, the Group is striving to
further extend its market share and strengthen position in this
segment.

On the other hand, the proliferation of smart devices has
generated positive prospects for transformer products used in
LED televisions and adapters for mobile devices. The Group
is currently working closely with leading Korean consumer
electronics brands to supply transformer components for the
growing demands.

Business performance of the properties investment business has
been satisfactory. In the long term, the Group will evaluate its
investment strategies towards the investment properties.

Corporate Social Responsibility

As a caring corporation, the Group has been active in fulfilling its
social responsibility to the interest of all stakeholders and society.
The Group’s corporate social responsibility efforts fall into the
three following categories:

Marketplace

In the interest of shareholders, the Group adheres to the
business objectives of contributing to the sustainable
development of the electronics industry, improving consumer
electronics to heighten product efficiency and delivering the
best end-user experience. To these ends, the Group invests
substantially in research and development and internal quality
control to ensure the continuous delivery of quality and reliable
products to customers. The Company complies with the
requirements of ISO/TS 16949:2002 on design and manufacture
of its car tuners and ISO 9001:2000 on production and servicing
of electronic products. These products include transformers,
intermediate frequency transformers, antennas, filters, coils,
coil inductors, electrical meters, dielectric filters, tuners, tuner
modules, wireless modules, switching mode power supplies,
digital tuner modules for DAB and digital amplifiers. The Group
has also frequently received customers’ performance certificates
that signified recognition of the Group'’s professional procedures
and appreciation of product quality.

The Group recognises the need and the cross-fertilisation benefits
of collaboration between industry and academia. It hopes to ride
on the resources of universities and selected research institutes
to customise training courses and programmes that can help
develop the business and professional competence of its people
in successfully competing globally. In return, the Group provides
consultancy services, financial aid and internships to university
students.
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Employee Health and Welfare

Caring about the health and work safety of its staff, the Group
has introduced appropriate safety systems and processes to
minimise staffs exposure to potential hazardous materials or
adverse working conditions. As an equal opportunity employer,
the Group strives to provide a fair work environment to employees
and does not tolerate any form of harassment or discrimination
in respect of employment and occupation. To retain the best
talents, the Group ensures its employee remuneration packages
are competitive and that rewards are linked with performance
excellence.

The Group also encourages employees to enroll in external job-
related courses and sponsors these initiatives when appropriate.
As part of the orientation procedure, all new employees are
required to participate in programmes on topics include internal
control and information protection, ISO and quality management
systems.

The Group also arranges regular health checks for all employees
to protect their health and therefore maintain their productivity
at work. In case of sickness, employees are protected by
comprehensive group medical insurance policies. Retirement
and comprehensive pension funds are also provided to
employees in accordance with relevant legislation.

Environment and Community

The Company complies with the requirements of ISO
14001:2004 on environmental management systems and
procedures.

The Group also continues to make sure its products comply
with the European Union’s environmental protection guidelines
including the Directive on the Restriction of the use of certain
Hazardous Substances in Electrical Equipment (“RoHS”) for
manufacturing activities. All products manufactured by the
Group are lead-free and RoHS compliant.

The Group also encourages employees to save energy and
resources. To cut down on paper consumption, the Group
encourages double-sided printing and printing when necessary
only. The Group also relays energy-saving tips to staff members
through a daily learning programme. To fulfill its commitment
to the society during the year, the Company has also provided
donations to charities to help the needy.

Shen Yong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2013
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We are dedicated to fulfill our corporate social
responsibility and attain the best corporate
governance practices in order to protect the interests
of all stakeholders
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Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Practices

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices and procedures. The Company
has complied with the code provisions (“CP”) of the former Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) and of the
new Corporate Governance Code effective from 1 April 2012
(the “Revised CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules™), except for the following:

Code Provision A.6.7

Pursuant to the code provision A.6.7, independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors should attend the
general meetings of the Company.

The Company held its annual general meeting (“AGM”) on 25
May 2012. Dr. Kim Chung Kweon (resigned on 7 January 2013)
and Dr. Han Byung Joon (resigned on 7 January 2013) were
unable to attend the Company’s AGM due to their unavoidable
business engagements.

To approve the Distribution In Specie of shares of Jay Star by
the Company to the Company’s shareholders and to approve
the framework supply agreement (details are set out in the
Company’s circular dated 19 November 2012) entered into
by the Company, the Company held an extraordinary general
meeting (“EGM”) on 5 December 2012. Dr. Kim Chung Kweon,
Dr. Han Byung Joon and Mr. Kim Chan Su (all resigned on
7 January 2013) were unable to attend the Company’s EGM due
to their unavoidable business engagements.

The Company will continue to create excellent conditions for
independent non-executive directors and (if any) non-executive
directors to attend general meetings, so as to support executive
directors to respond to shareholders’ questions in the general
meetings.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors

The Company has adopted Appendix 10, Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers of the
Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as the code of practice for
conducting securities transactions by the directors of the
Company. The Company, having made specific enquiries to all
directors of the Company, confirmed that during the year ended
31 December 2012, all directors have complied with the CP as
set out in the Model Code. The relevant employees who, because
of their office in the Company, are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price sensitive information, have been requested to
comply with the provisions of the Model Code.
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Board of Directors

The Company’s overall management is vested in its Board, which
currently comprises eleven members, coming from diverse
businesses and professional backgrounds. The biographical
details of directors are set out under the section “Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 39 to 45 of this annual report.
The Board currently comprises executive directors Mr. Shen Yong
(Chairman), Mr. Ronald Lew Podlas, Mr. Shen Ke, Mr. Li Zhi,
Mr. Xu Li Jian, Mr. Leung Kin Pang and Mr. Hong Sang Joon and
independent non-executive directors Mr. Yu Lei, Dr. Jiang Ying,
Ms. Zhang Cui Lan, and Mr. Ernst Rudolf Zimmermann.

The Board meets at least four times annually to review business
development and overall strategic policies.

To facilitate the operation of the Board, the Board has
established a schedule of matters reserved for its approval.
The specific responsibilities reserved for the Board include (a)
setting the Group’s strategy and dividend policy; (b) approving
budgets, reviewing operational and financial performance; (c)
approving major investments and divestments; (d) reviewing the
internal control system of the Group; (e) ensuring appropriate
management development and succession plans in place; (f)
approving appointments of and remuneration policy for directors
and other senior executives; (g) approving corporate social
responsibility policies; and (h) ensuring effective communication
with shareholders.

For the financial reporting accountability, the Board has an
ultimate responsibility for preparing the financial statements. In
preparing the financial statements, the Board has ensured that (a)
the generally accepted accounting standards in Hong Kong have
been adopted; (b) appropriate accounting policies have been
used and applied consistently; and (c) reasonable and prudent
judgments and estimates have been made. Moreover, the Board
is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt over the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Board
has continued to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
financial statements.
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Being part of good corporate governance practices, a number
of board committees have been established. These committees
include five corporate governance related committees namely
the Executive Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee as well as one
ad hoc committee namely the Independent Board Committee
which is responsible for advising the matters in relation to the
continuing connected transactions. These committees operate
within specific terms of reference as prepared by the Company
and report their work and findings to the Board regularly.

Directors’ Attendance Records

The attendance records of the directors at Board Meetings,
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Audit Committee Meetings, Remuneration Committee Meeting, NEEREEFSLLH BEXZESLE - T
Executive Committee Meetings, Nomination Committee Meeting, ? BEge% WITLZESSR BRRZEeg
Independent Board Committee Meeting and General Meetings CBUEFZEERRMRREARG CHER
during the year ended 31 December 2012 are set out below: ﬁtllll—l— :
No. of meetings attended/held
BELE/ETRY
Independent
Board
Audit Remuneration Executive  Nomination ~ Committee General
Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee BIEE meeting
EZe ENZEE FMZEE YTEEE REZEE ZBE R®RAE®
Non-executive director FHTES
Mr. Yang Ho Sung* PR 6/6 202 nla nla nla nla 202
TEH TEH TEH TEH
Executive directors BiTES
Mr. Shen Yong™ MELAET 00 nla nla nla nla nla nla
TR TR TR TER TER TER
Mr. Ronald Lew Podlas” mEREs’ 0/0 nla nla nla nla nla nla
TR TR TER TER TER TEm
Mr. Shen Ke" B 0/0 n/a nla nla na na na
TR TER TER TER TER TER
Mr. Li Zhi" T 00 nla nfa nfa nla nla nla
TR TER TER TER TER TER
Mr. Xu Li Jian" puggs’ 0/0 nla nla nla nla nla nla
TR TER TER TER TER TER
Mr. Leung Kin Pang’ PEfErL’ 00 n/a n/a n/a na na nla
TR TER TER TER TER TR
Mr. Yang Jai Sung* DEERE" 6/6 nla 1 33 71 nla 202
TR TER
Mr. Lee Kyu Young® TEREES 5l6 nfa nla 33 nla nla 202
TER TER TR TER
Mr. Hong Sang Joon e 6/6 n/a na 33 na n/a 202
TR TR TER TER
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No. of meetings attended/held
BELE/BTRY
Independent
Board
Audit Remuneration Executive  Nomination ~ Committee General
Board  Committee  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee =~ BUEZ meeting
EZe ENZEe §MZEE %U7ZEe REZEE ZEE® RRA®
Independent non-executive BUEHTES
directors
Mr. Yu Lei* RELE nfa nla nla nla nla nla nla
ik TEA TEA TEA TEA TEA TER
Dr. Jiang Ying' EEEL’ n/a n/a n/a n/a na n/a na
TER TER TER TER TR TR TR
Ms. Zhang Cui Lan® FRELL n/a n/a n/a n/a nla nla na
TER TER TER TER TEm TER TER
Mr. Ernst Rudolf Zimmermann™ RIS XCEE” nla nla nla nla nla nla nla
TEA TEA TEA TEA TEA TEA TEA
Dr. Han Byung Joon* BRAERLT 506 202 1 n/a 1 1 02
il
Dr. Kim Chung Kweon* SIFERL 6/6 212 int n/a 171 11 072
TEm
Mr. Kim Chan Su* SERLES 6/6 212 171 na 11 11 12
il
A appointed on 17 December 2012 A RZE——F+_A+tAEZE
* resigned on 7 January 2013 * RZE—=F—AtHEE
# appointed on 20 January 2012 “ R-T——F—A-1+BEZT
# appointed on 7 January 2013 ? RZTE—=F—AtHESZF
* appointed on 18 January 2013 N RZE—=F—A+\AEZE

Set out below are the summarised key components of corporate

governance practices adopted by the Company.
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Board Committees

The Board has established five board committees, namely,
the Executive Committee, the Remuneration Committee,
the Nomination Committee, the Audit Committee and the
Independent Board Committee, for overseeing particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs. All board committees should report to
the Board on their decisions or recommendations made.

A.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee currently comprises Mr. Shen
Yong (Committee Chairman), Mr. Ronald Lew Podlas,
Mr. Shen Ke, Mr. Li Zhi, Mr. Xu Li Jian, Mr. Leung Kin Pang
and Mr. Hong Sang Joon.

The major responsibilities of the Executive Committee are:

1. to develop strategic plans for the consideration of the
Board;

2. to implement the strategies and policies of the Group
as determined by the Board;

3. to monitor the daily operations and financial results
against plans and budgets; and

4. to guide the Company in various corporate affairs.

There were three Executive Committee meetings held for
the year ended 31 December 2012 to discuss strategies
and policies of the Group and monitor the daily operations
and financial results against plans and budgets.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises four
independent non-executive directors Mr. Yu Lei (Committee
Chairman), Dr. Jiang Ying, Ms. Zhang Cui Lan and Mr.
Ernst Rudolf Zimmermann.

The major responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
are:

1.  to review the remuneration packages of directors and
senior management;

2. to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration structure; and

3. to review and guide the formulation of the Group’s
remuneration policy for directors and senior
management attributable to performance-driven
compensation commitment as well as market trend
and industry norms.
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There was one Remuneration Committee meeting
held for the year ended 31 December 2012 to review
the remuneration packages of directors and senior
management according to the Group’s employment policy,
nomination policy, remuneration policy, and training and
development policy.

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to perform its duties. Latest terms of reference
of the Remuneration Committee can be viewed on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Details of the remuneration to the directors on named basis
and members of senior management by band are disclosed
in notes 14 and 15 to the financial statements, respectively.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises four
independent non-executive directors Mr. Yu Lei (Committee
Chairman), Dr. Jiang Ying, Ms. Zhang Cui Lan and Mr.
Ernst Rudolf Zimmermann.

The major responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
are:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors;

2. to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board and to ensure fair and transparent procedures
for the appointment or re-appointment of directors;

3.  to propose the appointment of such candidates to the
Board for consideration; and

4.  to review the qualifications of the relevant candidates
for determining the suitability to the Group on the
basis of his/her qualifications, experience and
background.
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There was one Nomination Committee meeting held for the
year ended 31 December 2012 to discuss and consider
the following matters:

1.

the composition of the Board with reference to certain
criteria. These criteria included qualifications required
under the Listing Rules or any other relevant laws
regarding characteristics and skills of the directors,
professional ethics and integrity, appropriate
professional knowledge and industry experience, as
well as ability to devote sufficient time to the work of
the Board and its committees and to participate in all
Board meetings and shareholders’ meetings;

the re-appointment of the retiring directors for
reelection at the previous general meeting;
procedures for election of directors and by
shareholders; and

independence of the independent non-executive
directors.

The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to perform its duties. Latest terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee can be viewed on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

D. Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises four independent
non-executive directors Ms. Zhang Cui Lan (Committee
Chairman), Mr. Yu Lei, Dr. Jiang Ying and Mr. Ernst Rudolf
Zimmermann.

The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee are:

1.

to monitor the integrity of financial reporting of the
Company;

to review the internal control and risk management
systems of the Group; and

to review the corporate governance practices of the
Company.
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There were two Audit Committee meetings held for the
year ended 31 December 2012 to discuss and review the
following matters:

1. the 2011 annual report and accounts;
. the 2012 interim report and accounts;

3. the Group’s financial controls, internal control and
risk management systems;

4. the findings of the internal control review report
prepared by external independent professionals;

5. the financial reporting and relevant compliance with
external auditors; and

6. the auditors’ remuneration and recommended the
Board to re-appoint SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
as Company’s auditors in the year 2013, which
is subject to the approval of shareholders at the
forthcoming AGM.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to perform its duties. Latest terms of reference of the Audit
Committee can be viewed on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

Independent Board Committee

The Independent Board Committee currently comprises
four independent non-executive directors Mr. Yu Lei
(Committee Chairman), Dr. Jiang Ying, Ms. Zhang Cui Lan
and Mr. Ernst Rudolf Zimmermann.

The major responsibilities of the Independent board
committee are:

1. to consider and review matters regarding the
continuing connected transactions of the Group; and

2. 1o advise the independent shareholders whether the
Group’s transactions are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the Company and shareholders as a
whole.

There was one Independent Board Committee meeting
held for the year ended 31 December 2012 to review
the unconditional mandatory cash offer by Haitong
International Securities Company Limited for and on behalf
of Ultra Harvest for all the issued shares in the Company.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the following corporate
governance duties as required under the Revised CG Code:

1.  todevelop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

2. 1o review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the directors and senior
officers of the Group;

3. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4.  to develop, review and monitor the codes of conduct
applicable to employees and the directors; and

5. 1o review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and the Revised CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Board considered
the following corporate governance matters:

1. review of the compliance with the CP of the CG Code and
of the Revised CG Code; and

2. review of the effectiveness of the internal controls and
risk management systems of the Group through the Audit
Committee.

Company Secretary

Company Secretary of the Company is a full time employee of
the Group and has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s
affairs. During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company
Secretary Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie has duly complied with the
relevant professional training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules. According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the
Company Secretary has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training. The biographical details of the Company
Secretary is set out on in the section entitled “Directors and
Senior Management” in this annual report.
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Training, Induction and Continuing Development
for Directors

Each newly appointed director receives a comprehensive and
formal induction to ensure that he/she has an appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Group, his/
her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements, the corporate governance code
of the Company and the Model Code.

Directors are continually updated on developments in the
statutory and regulatory regime and the business environment
to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities. Continuing
briefing and professional development for directors will be
arranged at the expenses of the Company whenever necessary.
The directors are committed to complying with code provision
A.6.5 of the Revised CG Code on directors’ training effective
from 1 April 2012. All directors have participated in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills and provided their training records to the Company.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance and
Indemnity

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify its directors and officers in respect of legal actions
against the directors. During the year ended 31 December 2012,
no claim had been made against the directors and the officers of
the Company.

The Separate Roles of the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer

The division of responsibilities between the Chairman of
the Board, Mr. Shen Yong, and the Chief Executive Officer,
Mr. Ronald Lew Podlas, is clearly defined and has been
approved by the Board. The Chairman provides leadership of
the Board, ensures the effectiveness of the Board and oversees
the corporate development; while the Chief Executive Officer, as
head of the executive directorate, is responsible for managing
the business development and strategic planning of the Group.

Their separate roles reinforce the continuous enhancement of
the Group’s corporate governance in terms of corporate fairness,
transparency and accountability.
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Directors’ Independence

There are no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship(s) among members of the Board except that
Mr. Shen Yong, chairman of the Board is the father of Mr. Shen
Ke, an executive director of the Company.

The directors are given access to independent professional
advice at the Group’s expense, when the directors deem it
necessary in order to carry out their responsibilities.

The Board also advocates the participation of independent non-
executive directors and (if any) non-executive directors in various
board committees to safeguard objectivity and independence.

The Company has received the confirmation letters from each
of the independent non-executive directors, confirming their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all independent non-executive directors are
independent.

Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Group. The scope of the review
is determined and recommended by the Audit Committee and
approved by the Board annually. The review covers:

1. all material controls, including but not limited to financial,
operational and compliance controls;

2. risks management functions; and

3. the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff in connection with the accounting and financial
reporting function of the Group and their training
programmes and relevant budget.

The Board has engaged external independent professionals to
conduct a review of the Group’s internal control system during
the year. An internal control review report was presented to the
Audit Committee.
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The Audit Committee is satisfied with the Group’s internal control
system. The system is designed in consideration of the nature of
business and the organisation structure. The system is designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure in operational
system and to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss. The system is designed
further to safeguard the Group’s assets, maintain appropriate
accounting records and financial reporting, achieve efficiency of
operations and ensure compliance with the Listing Rules and all
other applicable laws and regulations.

The Group will continue to engage external independent
professionals to review its internal control system and further
enhance its internal control as appropriate.

There is currently no internal audit function within the Group.
The Board has reviewed the need for an internal audit function
and is of the view that in light of the size, nature and complexity
of the business of the Group, it would be more cost effective to
appoint external independent professionals to perform internal
audit functions for the Group as the need arises. Nevertheless,
the Board will continue to review the need for an internal audit
function annually.

Directors’ and Auditors’ Responsibility for the
Financial Statements

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2012 which reflect true and fair view of the financial position of
the Company and the Group and in compliance with relevant
law and disclosure provisions of the Listing Rules. The Board is
responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and comprehensible
assessment extends to annual and interim reports, other price
sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules.

The Group appointed SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited as the
Group’s external auditors. The statement by SHINEWING (HK)
CPA Limited regarding their reporting responsibility to the
shareholders on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages
61 to 62 of this annual report.
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Auditors’ Remuneration

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the fees paid/
payable to the auditors in respect of audit and non-audit services
provided by the auditors to the Group were as follows:

1% BB 3 B

BHE-_ZE——F+-_A=1+—"BLFE &
HE A EBREZB M IEZERE 2B M
SN TEMmzBRIT

HK$'000

Nature of services REHE FET

Audit services RS 495
Non-audit services IERZEARTS

Other services H At Ar % 120

Investor Relations

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining effective
communications with shareholders. Annual reports and interim
reports provide shareholders with comprehensive information
of the Group’s operational and financial performances; while
general meetings offer a platform for shareholders to state and
exchange views with the Board directly.

The management continually communicates with analysts and
institutional investors and provides them with up-to-date and
comprehensive information regarding the Group’s development.
The Company practices timely dissemination of information and
makes sure its website www.kse.com.hk contains the most latest
information, including but not limited to annual reports, interim
reports, announcements, monthly returns and press releases,
and is updated in a timely manner to ensure transparency.

Constitutional Documents

During the year ended 31 December 2012, there had been no
significant changes in the Company’s constitutional documents.
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Shareholders’ Rights

A.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by
Shareholders

In accordance with section 113 of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the laws of Hong Kong) (the
“Companies Ordinance”), shareholder(s) holding at the
date of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-
twentieth of such of the paid-up capital of the Company
which as at the date of the deposit carries the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company, may request the
directors of the Company to convene an EGM. The written
requisition must state the objects of the meeting and must
be signed by the shareholder(s) concerned and deposited
at the registered office of the Company for the attention
of chairman of the Board or the Company Secretary. The
requisition may consist of several documents in like form,
each signed by one or more of the shareholders concerned.

If the directors of the Company do not within 21 days from
the date of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to
convene an EGM for a date not more than 28 days after
the date on which the notice convening the EGM is given,
the shareholder(s) concerned, or any of them representing
more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them,
may themselves convene an EGM, provided that the EGM
so convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3
months from the said date.

The EGM convened by shareholders shall be convened in
the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which
general meetings are to be convened by the directors of the
Company.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board in
writing to the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong.

The Company Secretary will forward the shareholders’
enquiries and concerns to the Board and/or relevant board
committees of the Company, where appropriate, to answer
the shareholders’ questions in writing.
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C. Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at
General Meetings by Shareholders

Shareholders are requested to follow section 115A of the
Companies Ordinance for including a resolution at AGM of
the Company AGM. The requirements and procedures are
set out as follow:

Any number of shareholders representing not less
than one-fortieth of the total voting rights of all
shareholders having at the date of the requisition
a right to vote at an AGM to which the requisition
relates, or not less than 50 shareholders holding
shares in the Company on which there has been paid
up an average sum, per shareholder, of not less than
HK$2,000, may submit a requisition in writing to put
forward a resolution which may properly be moved
and is intended to be moved at an AGM.

The Company shall not be bound by the Companies
Ordinance to give notice of the proposed resolution
or to circulate a statement of not more than 1,000
words with respect to the matter referred to in the
proposed resolution to shareholders of the Company
entitled to receive notice of an AGM unless (a) a
copy of the requisition signed by the shareholders
concerned (or 2 or more copies which between
them contain the signatures of all the shareholders
concerned) is deposited at the registered office of the
Company for the attention of chairman of the Board
or the Company Secretary not less than 6 weeks
before an AGM in the case of a requisition requiring
notice of a resolution and not less than 1 week before
an AGM in the case of any other requisition; and (b)
the concerned shareholders have deposited with the
requisition a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s expenses in giving effect thereto.

However if, after a copy of a requisition requiring
notice of a resolution has been deposited at the
registered office of the Company, an AGM is called
for a date 6 weeks or less after the copy has been
deposited, the copy though not deposited within the
time required as referred to in the above shall be
deemed to have been properly deposited.
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Pursuant to Article 105 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, no person other than a director retiring at
the meeting shall, unless recommended by the directors
for election, be eligible for election as director at any
general meeting unless a notice signed by a member
(other than the person to be processed) duly qualified to
attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice is
given of his intention to propose such person for election
and also a notice signed by the person to be proposed
of his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged
at the registered office of the Company provided that the
minimum length of the period, during which such notice(s)
are given, shall be at least seven days and that the period
for lodgement of such notice(s) shall commence no earlier
than the day after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election and end no later than
seven days prior to the date of such general meeting.
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Directors and
Senior Managemen
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With the newly joined management team, the Company

could leverage on their expertise and experience, and

we believe that this will allow us to broaden our income

source and provide a greater growth potential for the Group
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Chairman and Executive Director

Mr. Shen Yong

Mr. Shen Yong, aged 50, was appointed as the chairman of
the Board and an executive director on 18 January 2013. He
is a director and a shareholder of Ultra Harvest, the controlling
shareholder of the Company, holding 60% of its issued shares.
Mr. Shen has more than 15 years of experience in hotel and
commercial properties development, as well as investment,
corporate and general management.

Mr. Shen completed a postgraduate (advanced studies) course
in laws (civil and commercial law) from the Southwest University
of Politics and Law (FARBUAAER) in July 2000.

Mr. Shen served as a deputy to the 1st to 3rd Chongging
Municipal People’s Congress in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”). Mr. Shen is currently a member of the 4th
Chongging Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference of the PRC and a deputy chairman of
the Chongging Municipal Federation of Industry and Commerce
(General Chamber). Mr. Shen is the father of Mr. Shen Ke, an
executive director of the Company.

Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Mr. Ronald Lew Podlas

Mr. Ronald Lew Podlas, aged 61, was appointed as an executive
director on 17 December 2012. On 18 January 2013, he was
appointed as the chief executive officer of the Company. He
has previously held various senior managerial positions within
the ACCOR Hotel Group (including executive posts in Sofitel
Forebase, Chongging, China, Sofitel Minneapolis, the United
States of America, Novotel Bangna, Bangkok, Thailand and
Sofitel Raja Orchid, Khon Kaen, Thailand); Howard Johnson
Plaza, Shanghai, China; Shangri-La’s EDSA Plaza, Manila,
Philippines; Holiday Inn Golden Mile, Hong Kong throughout his
long career in the industry.

Mr. Podlas has a wealth of experience in the hospitality
investment and management; in particular, the luxury hotel
sector. His portfolio in the hospitality industry covers various
countries around the globe.
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Executive Directors

Mr. Shen Ke

Mr. Shen Ke, aged 23, was appointed as an executive director on
17 December 2012. He is a director and a shareholder of Ultra
Harvest as to 40% shareholding. Mr. Shen has over 4 years of
experience in the hospitality investment and management in the
PRC.

Mr. Shen is the son of Mr. Shen Yong, the chairman of the Board
and an executive director of the Company.

Mr. Li Zhi

Mr. Li Zhi, aged 51, was appointed as an executive director on 17
December 2012. He has over 9 years of management experience
in the hospitality investment and management in the PRC. Mr.
Li graduated from a postgraduate course in management and
administration from Chongging Youth Administrative Cadres
College (EEEFERH 20 ).

Mr. Xu Li Jian

Mr. Xu Li Jian, aged 48, was appointed as an executive director
on 17 December 2012. He has extensive experience in legal
practice, banking and finance and real estate businesses in the
PRC.

Mr. Xu obtained his bachelor degree in laws from the Northwest
University of Politics and Law (78 4k B & K £2) in 1985 and a
master degree in world economics from the Nankai University (g
FAEZ)in 2001.

Mr. Xu is currently an independent director of Shanghai Fenghwa
Group Co., Ltd. ( /82 (£E) kAR 2AE]) (600615.SS)
whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

Mr. Leung Kin Pang

Mr. Leung Kin Pang, aged 31, was appointed as an executive
director on 17 December 2012. He has over 6 years of
experience in investment and fund management.

Mr. Leung obtained his bachelor degree in Economics and
Finance from the University of Hong Kong, a master degree in
Economics from the University of Hong Kong, a master degree in
Global History from the London School of Economics and Politics
Science, and a master degree in Politics of the World Economy
from the London School of Economics and Politics Science.
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Mr. Hong Sang Joon

Mr. Hong Sang Joon, aged 44, was appointed as an executive
director on 20 January 2012. He is the chief financial officer
of the Company and holds positions as director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company, and is responsible for operational
management of the Group’s electronic business. He has over
18 years of experience in investment, restructuring, strategic
planning, and financial management and control.

Mr. Hong obtained his bachelor degree in Chinese language
and Chinese literature, minoring in business administration from
Yonsei University in Korea, and a master degree in business
administration from The University of Hong Kong. Mr. Hong is a
CFA Charterholder and Certified FRM, and he is also an ordinary
member of Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yu Lei

Mr. Yu Lei, aged 42, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director on 7 January 2013. He has extensive
experience in the real estate industry and infrastructure sectors
in the PRC.

Mr. Yu obtained his bachelor degree in economics and a
master degree in management from the Zhongnan University
of Economics and Law (R &EBUAAE) in 1993 and 1999
respectively. Mr. Yu is also a qualified accountant conferred
by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC and a Certified Internal
Auditor conferred by The Institute of Internal Auditors.

Mr. Yu is currently a president assistant of Shenzhen Zhuojia
Industry Groups Co., Ltd. CE T 2 E E X EEFB B R
7)), a company specializing in real estate and infrastructure
development and the provision of investment services in the
PRC. During March 2006 to August 2011, Mr. Yu was employed
as the president assistant of Great China International Group
(China) Limited (K Z B FR &£ & (h El) A R 2 &) which
is principally engaged in property, hotel, commercial and
infrastructure investment and development.

Mr. Yu is currently an independent non-executive director of
China Nuclear Industry 23 International Corporation Limited
(Stock code: 611) whose shares are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange.
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Dr. Jiang Ying

Dr. Jiang Ying, aged 47, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director on 7 January 2013. He has extensive
experience in the educational work in the PRC.

Dr. Jiang obtained her bachelor degree in economics, master
degree in world economics and doctorate degree in political
economics from the Sichuan University (P9 JI| X £) in 1985,
1988 and 2003 respectively. Dr. Jiang has been employed as a
professor in International Economics in the School of Economics
in Sichuan University (P9)1]X22) since 30 October 2001.

Ms. Zhang Cui Lan

Ms. Zhang Cui Lan, aged 48, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director on 7 January 2013. She has substantial
experience in finance and taxation areas in the PRC.

Ms. Zhang obtained her bachelor degree in economics from the
Shandong Economic University (L] 5 4% % £ F7) in 1988. Ms.
Zhang is a Certified Public Accountant in the PRC, Certified Tax
Advisor, Certified Assets Valuer and Senior Accountant.

Ms. Zhang is currently the deputy general manager of the Risk
Control Division and the general manager of the Audit Division of
Huaxia Life Insurance Co., Limited (FEFE ASRBRMD AR R
al).

Ms. Zhang is currently an independent director of Sinoer Men’s
Wear Co., Ltd. (FBBBERKM AR A F]) (002485.8Z) whose
shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Ernst Rudolf Zimmermann

Mr. Ernst Rudolf Zimmermann, aged 64, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director on 18 January 2013. He has
more than 40 years of business experience in the international
hospitality industry, especially in the Greater China region.

Mr. Zimmermann is currently the president and CEO of AVA
Hospitality, a hotel management services company providing
specialized China-related hospitality management and
consultancy services and giving independent professional
advice on design brief on hotel component to hotel investors
and operators. Mr. Zimmermann now serves as the senior vice
president of Swiss-Belhotel International, an international hotel
management company offering unique fusion of Swiss hospitality
management in all aspects of the hotel, serviced apartments and
club. He is also an associate of Global Strategic Associates, LLC,
an independent, privately-owned international advisory firm in
New York, the United States of America.

Mr. Zimmermann started his hospitality career first in Stadl-
Paura, Austria in 1962 and accepted hospitality training
in Gmunden, Austria. Before relocating to Hong Kong as a
restaurant manager in Furama Hotel in 1974, he worked in a
number of food and beverage positions across various Western
Europe countries, including England, Switzerland, Italy, Bermuda
and so on. Mr. Zimmermann continued his hotel business in
a Holiday Inn Group (now known as InterContinental Hotels
Group) for subsequent years in senior managerial and executive
positions for the development of the hotel chain throughout the
Asia Pacific region, including, Hong Kong, Thailand and the PRC;
and later on, with extensive years of experience in the hospitality
field, Mr. Zimmermann established his own hotel management
business, namely, Zenith Hotels International Limited, providing
hotel management services and technical assistance to hotel
owners, developing more than 20 hotel properties throughout
the PRC and South-East Asia. More recently, Mr. Zimmermann
served as the vice president within the ACCOR Hotel Group
China to re-position new Sofitel Luxury Hotel in the PRC; and
being the senior vice president in the New World Hotels Group to
help promote its new hotel brand in the PRC. In previous years,
Mr. Zimmermann also held consultative positions in certain
companies in the PRC and Hong Kong.
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Senior Management

Mr. Ko Byoung Hwan

Mr. Ko Byoung Hwan, aged 46, is a director of a subsidiary
of the Group. He is responsible for sales and overall factory
management such as production material control, production,
and inventory management of Shenzhen Kwang Sung Electronics
Co., Ltd.. Mr. Ko holds a bachelor’s degree in economics from
Dongguk University in Korea. He has over 19 years of experience
in sales and marketing of electronic products and management.

Mr. Lee Bae Sung

Mr. Lee Bae Sung, aged 50, is a general manager and the head
of Research and Development and Production Technology
Group of the Remaining Group. He is responsible for research
and development and production technology. Mr. Lee holds
a bachelor’s degree in Industrial Engineering from Konkuk
University in Korea. Prior in joining the Group, he gained 20
years of experience in quality control and quality assurance in
electronic industry.

Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie

Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie, aged 41, is financial controller
and company secretary of the Company. He is responsible
for accounting and company secretarial matters. Mr. Kwok
is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Kwok is also an associate member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the United Kingdom.
Mr. Kwok holds a Master of Professional Accounting Degree from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University, a Master of Corporate
Governance Degree from the Open University of Hong Kong and
a Honours Diploma in Accounting from Hong Kong Shue Yan
College (now known as Hong Kong Shue Yan University).

Mr. Cui Wu Nam

Mr. Cui Wu Nam, aged 46, is deputy general manager of a
subsidiary in the Group. He is responsible for overseeing the
factory management of 55 EEFCRYI) AR A E]. He holds
a bachelor’s degree in broadcast engineering from /1 B4k R &%
&= (Beijing Broadcasting Institute of the PRC) and has 9 years
of experience in quality assurance.

Mr. Lee Hyun Seok

Mr. Lee Hyun Seok, aged 44, is a deputy general manager of
a subsidiary in the Group. He is responsible for purchasing
function. He holds a bachelor’s degree in engineering from
Yeungnam University in Korea and has 19 years of experience in
purchasing of electronic components.
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While continuing the electronic components manufacturing business which
generates steady income for the Group, the new corporate brand and
operational model are to be aggressively launched as we have built a solid
foundation for our stronger development in the future
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The directors submit herewith their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2012.

Change of Company Name

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at an EGM of the
Company held on 25 February 2013, the name of the Company
was approved to be changed from “Kwang Sung Electronics H.K.
Co. Limited %X E S FEHBERAa]" to “Forebase International
Holdings Limited FREEIEIZEARBRAR]". With effect from 12
March 2013, the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong approved
the change of the Company name and issued the Certificate of
Change of Name.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company.

The principal activities of its subsidiaries are the manufacture
and sale of electronic components. Following the completion
of the Distribution In Specie, the Group revisited its business
activities based on the degree of importance and extended its
principal activities to properties investment, i.e. the Group’s
investment properties portfolios in Hong Kong, Korea and the
PRC.

The principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries
are set out in note 20 to the financial statements. An analysis
of the Group’s performance for the year by business and
geographical segments is set out in note 7 to the financial
statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The percentages of sales and purchases for the year ended 31
December 2012 attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and
customers are as follows:

Sales

The largest customer 15.1%
Five largest customers combined 40.4%
Purchases

The largest supplier 8.1%
Five largest suppliers combined 23.7%
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None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder (which,
to the knowledge of the directors, owns more than 5% of the
issued share capital of the Company) has a beneficial interest in
the five largest customers or suppliers of the Group.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012
and the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 63 to 188
of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: Nil).

Reserves

Details of movements in reserves during the year are set out in
the “Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity” on pages 69
to 70 of this annual report.

Donations

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the
year amounted to HK$2,000 (2011: HK$1,031,000).

Investment Properties

Details of the movements in the investment properties of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2012 are set out in
note 19 to the financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 18 to the financial
statements.

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group
as at 31 December 2012 are set out in note 29 to the financial
statements.
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Share Capital and Securities in Issue

During the year, no new ordinary share has been issued by the
Company. As at the date of 31 December 2012, the Company
maintained 323,896,933 issued ordinary shares.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2012.

Directors

The directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
report were:

Non-executive director

Mr. Yang Ho Sung (Chairman)*

Executive directors

Mr. Shen Yong (Chairman)

Mr. Ronald Lew Podlas (Chief Executive Officer)"
Mr. Shen Ke"

Mr. Li Zhi"

Mr. Xu Li Jian"

Mr. Leung Kin Pang”

Mr. Yang Jai Sung*

Mr. Lee Kyu Young*

Mr. Hong Sang Joon™

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Yu Lei*

Dr. Jiang Ying*

Ms. Zhang Cui Lan*

Mr. Ernst Rudolf Zimmermann®
Dr. Han Byung Joon*

Dr. Kim Chung Kweon*

Mr. Kim Chan Su*

appointed on 20 January 2012
appointed on 17 December 2012
resigned on 7 January 2013
appointed on 7 January 2013
appointed on 18 January 2013

+ o ok > %

The biographical details of the current directors are set out under
the section “Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report.
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In accordance with Article 101 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Hong Sang Joon shall retire from the Board by
rotation and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM.

In accordance with Article 92 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Shen Yong, Mr. Ronald Lew Podlas, Mr. Shen
Ke, Mr. Li Zhi, Mr. Xu Li Jian, Mr. Leung Kin Pang, Mr. Yu
Lei, Dr. Jiang Ying, Ms. Zhang Cui Lan and Mr. Ernst Rudolf
Zimmermann shall hold office until the forthcoming AGM and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

Directors’ Service Contracts

As at the date of this report, except Mr. Hong Sang Joon, none
of the directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company and their remuneration is yet to be fixed by the Board
which is subject to the review and approval by the Remuneration
Committee of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, no director of the Company, who
proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM, has an
unexpired service contract which is not determinable by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without
payment of compensation, other than normal statutory
obligations.

Directors’ Remuneration

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at
general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Board of the Company with reference to directors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures

As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of
the directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code (collectively “discloseable interests”)
were as follows:

(1) Interests in Issued Shares of the Company

EERESTRAEBRKD - HERO R
EF2BBERAR

RZE—ZF+ZA=+—H BEIHFLH
BIRPISE 352 1A T RFH B RMATE - HiRE
BRETARAARA LB AEL Z 85k - AR
FAERBEENRRTBRABNRARASHAE[E
HEEE (& RES LERGIFE XVE) 2k
0~ MR RIEZH A 2w AR (5H8
[ATHBEER]D W0

(1) RRFEBRITROER

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
BRAEME1IBTZ2EER

Interest of Total % of

Beneficial controlled number of total

owner corporation shares held issued shares

ZEGEE BEz HEBRTRG

Name of directors EEHR BEREEA 2R BpHEE HAEZESL

Mr. Shen Ke B SE A

Dr. Kim Chung Kweon — & IF#EtE+

Note: These shares were held by Ultra Harvest, of which Ultra Harvest
was owned as to 60% by Mr. Shen Yong and 40% by Mr. Shen
Ke.

(2) Interests in Underlying Shares of the Company

The directors and/or the chief executive of the Company
had been granted options under the Company’s share
option scheme, details of which are set out in the section
“Share Option Scheme” below.

(3) Interests in Ordinary Shares of USD1.00 each in
the Issued Share Capital in Ultra Harvest, the
Associated Corporation of the Company

Nature of interest/
Capacity

Name of director BEEHE EEME/ 55

Mr. Shen Ke ERAAT S A Beneficial owner

EDEAA

214,001,950 214,001,950

(note)

(PH&E)
— 20,000

M5 3% % B 15 M Ultra Harvest# & » i Ultra
Uﬁ_arvestEEﬂﬂ%?EE%ﬁw%&Eﬁ’fﬂ?ﬁiﬁﬁ
40% °

(2) FAFEBROERS

RIBANR 2 BRMEE - ARFRIZES
R/ FERBTRABCERTHERE - §
FARHIBEN T XX [T 8] —&f -

(3) Z<TE]4EE A T Ultra Harvest B 3178
AEESREEL.00ET2EBRER

Total number of % of total issued shares
shares held of Ultra Harvest

{5 Ultra Harvest

BEZROEY CERTROZZEZBEIHL




Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, none of
the directors and/or the chief executive of the Company, or their
respective associates had any other discloseable interests as
required.

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 16 June 2003
whereby the directors of the Company are authorised, from time
to time during the scheme period at their discretion, to invite
employees, directors, consultants or advisors of the Group, to
take up options to subscribe for shares of the Company. The
purpose of this scheme is to provide incentives and rewards
to employees and eligible persons for their contributions to the
Group. The share option scheme shall be valid and effective for
a period of ten years ending on 15 June 2013, after which no
further options can be granted. The exercise price of each share
option is the highest of (1) the nominal value of the shares; (2)
the closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant; and (3) the average closing price of the shares
on the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant. The options are exercisable
progressively between one to three years from the date of grant
and will expire at the end of a period to be notified by the Board
to each option holder upon the grant of option, and in any event,
such period shall not exceed ten years from the date of grant.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
the exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the share option scheme shall not exceed 30%
of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time.
Subject always to the above overall limit, the directors may grant
options under the share option scheme, generally and without
further authority, in respect of such number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
share option scheme not exceeding 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at 18 May 2005, being the date
passing the resolution regarding the refreshment of general limit
of options. For the purpose of calculating the above, options
lapsed in accordance with the share option scheme shall not be
counted.

The total number of ordinary shares available for issue under the
share option scheme as at 31 December 2012 was 31,330,000
shares which represented 9.67% of the issued share capital of
the Company at 31 December 2012. In respect of the maximum
entitlement of each participant under the scheme, the total
number of ordinary shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to each participant (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall
not exceed 1% of the Company’s ordinary shares in issue, unless
approved by the shareholders in general meeting.
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No option lapsed and no option was granted, exercised or
cancelled during the year ended 31 December 2012; nor was
there any option outstanding under the share option scheme at
the beginning and at the end of 2012.

Information on the accounting policy for share options granted
and the weighted average value per option is provided in note 36
to the financial statements.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the
Company or its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the directors of the Company or any of their spouses or children
under eighteen years of age to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate.

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares

As at 31 December 2012, the following persons (other than
the directors or chief executive of the Company) had interests
or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company were as follows:

REBE-_ZE——F+_A=+—HILFEE &
EEREAY  MEBREERD  7TFXE
o RZE——_FYIRFLR  NETMERE
IR AT B M RTTIE o

BRCROBRERSOBRE 2 NETIE
EZ S BREMBNZFUHEREAMEI6 -

B Lt &SN - AR B SEKE A R ERN A E
ERETAREI L EMNLZ S BERARRES
FWEZEBIAD+N\RFRAZBBEAR
NE A EAE A B Z B0 S EZ MEUS
Mag e

FERRREMATRRG RABRKS <
BERAR

RZBE-—ZF+A=+—H BREARRIZE
EXRBTERABI TIHALTRARRZ
I RAARERO G - BERARBREESFLAE
GEPIFE 3B IRATHF 2 ECMACHERE NS
ARBZESIORET

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

EREE0IBTZEER

No. of ordinary Nature of % of the issued

shares held interest/Capacity share capital

B¥EZ BRtE/ HERTRE

Substantial shareholders FERR EEREA EL) Bt
Ultra Harvest (Note 1) Ultra Harvest (Kfz£ 1) 214,001,950 Beneficial owner
ExBAA
Mr. Shen Yong (Note 1) RESE (L) 214,001,950 Interest of controlled
5 corporation
REHER 2

Ms. Meng Qing (Note 2) BEXT (ME2) 214,001,950 Interest of spouse 66.07%

Boffc st

TRt (ME3) 214,001,950 66.07%

Interest of spouse

Bofl s

Ms. Peng Jingyi (Note 3)

Interest of controlled 8.86%

corporation

REH)EE <

Mr. Kent C. McCarthy
(“Mr. McCarthy") (Note 4)

Kent C. McCarthy 9t 4
(['Kent C. McCarthy &4 1) (B zE4)

28,704,000

Jayhawk Private Equity Fund, Il LP
(*Jayhawk PEF")

Jayhawk Private Equity Fund, I LP
([ Jayhawk PEF])

28,704,000 Investment manager

egvidid




Notes:

(1) Ultra Harvest is owned as to 60% by Mr. Shen Yong and 40% by Mr.
Shen Ke. Pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, each of Mr. Shen Yong and Mr. Shen Ke is deemed to be
interested in all the ordinary shares in which Ultra Harvest is, or is
deemed to be, interested. Mr. Shen Yong is the father of Mr. Shen Ke,
both of whom are directors of Ultra Harvest. As at 31 December 2012,
all the ordinary shares held by Ultra Harvest in the Company were
under the share charge dated 27 September 2012 executed by Ultra
Harvest in favour of Haitong International Securities Company Limited.

(2)  Ms. Meng Qing is the spouse of Mr. Shen Yong. Pursuant to the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, she is deemed to
be interested in all the ordinary shares in which Mr. Shen Yong is, or is
deemed to be, interested.

(3)  Ms. Peng Jingyi is the spouse of Mr. Shen Ke. Pursuant to the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, she is deemed to
be interested in all the ordinary shares in which Mr. Shen Ke is, or is
deemed to be, interested.

(4)  Mr. McCarthy is deemed or taken to be interested in these ordinary
shares through his indirect 100% control in Jayhawk PEF. There
interests are fully duplicated by those beneficially owned by Jayhawk
PEF.

Save as disclosed above, no other interests required to be
recorded in the register kept under Section 336 of the SFO have
been notified to the Company.

As at the date of this report, upon the close of the unconditional
mandatory cash offer made by Haitong International Securities
Company Limited on behalf of Ultra Harvest to acquire all the
issued Shares (other than those already owned or agreed to be
acquired by Ultra Harvest and parties acting in concert with
it), there were 80,294,983 Shares, representing approximately
24.79% of the total issued share capital of the Company,
held by the public (within the meanings of the Listing Rules).
Accordingly, the Company cannot fulfill the minimum public
float requirement as set out under Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing
Rules.

The Company has therefore made an application to the Stock
Exchange for a waiver from strict compliance with Rule 8.08(1)
(a) of the Listing Rules for a period of three months commencing
from 4 January 2013. Ultra Harvest and the Company will take
appropriate steps to restore the required minimum public float as
soon as possible.
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Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as disclosed under the sections headed “Connected
Transactions” and note 41 to the financial statements, no
contracts of significance, to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

During the year ended 31 December 2012, Mr. Yang Jai Sung,
a former director resigned on 7 January 2013, is also a director
of Kwang Sung Electronics Co., Ltd. (“Kwang Sung Korea”).
Mr. Yang Jai Sung and his relatives hold approximately 79.5%
interest in share capital of Kwang Sung Korea whose business
whose businesses compete or are likely to compete, directly or
indirectly, with the Group’s businesses. The principal businesses
of Kwang Sung Korea are as follows:

1.  Research, design and product development of electronic
components and related products and manufacturing
of electronic components for electronic appliances and
communication equipment through the factory operated
by Kwang Sung Korea (the “KSK Factory”) exclusively for
orders placed directly with Kwang Sung Korea and to be
sold in the Korean market but subject to the terms and
limited to the scope as set out in the Deed of Undertaking
and the Research and Development Service Agreement.

2. Sales, marketing, purchasing and distribution of electronic
components for electronic appliances and communication
equipment, but subject to the terms and limited to the
scope as set out in the Deed of Undertaking and the
Commission Agreement.

BESCE0ER

BRIX [BER S| — 8RB MR M T 41 TR
BEIN RERIANFERNEMNERE - K27
SEEAHEARMETBEARREETEREX
REBEEEAEDZ ZERNAL

EENRENRT R

REBE-Z——H+-_A=+T—HLEHFE XK
NAFTEZEREESRE (R-ZF—=F—#
THET) TREKRASEXEET ([EEDL
E) 2EZ - REELLENERBRHEREDL
ERARKT79.5% e MBENE 2 EBEK
AREEUARBEXERBRNERXERET - &
BCE 2 EBEBID

1. EFTHRBBEERZITAR Rt MEM
A% WEBRBLELE 2K - &Ra
MEMAZEIR ((FEXETR])  BE
BEABENAEZEZBRE  SUEER
MBARBZET T MRERTSH
& WERE TG RIE LT RG W2
R R B 2 SRS PR I

2. HE - MGHE  BEROHERLBM
BEZETF I - ERE T AGERIE M
Bk Z IR M EL P 2 SIS FTARIR



In relation to the listing of the Company’s shares on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, each of Kwang Sung Korea, KS-
Tech Group Corporation, and Mr. Yang Jai Sung has entered into
the Deed of Undertaking in favour of the Group to the effect that
for so long as Kwang Sung Korea and/or any of its subsidiaries,
Mr. Yang Jai Sung and/or the companies controlled by
Mr. Yang Jai Sung are beneficially interested, directly and
indirectly, whether individually or taken together, in 20% or
more of the issued share capital of the Company, Kwang Sung
Korea and Mr. Yang Jai Sung will not, and Kwang Sung Korea
and Mr. Yang Jai Sung will procure that none of its subsidiaries
(other than the Group) and the companies controlled by him
(other than the Group), respectively, will engage or otherwise be
involved in any business which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with any of the businesses carried out
by any member of the Group from time to time (the “Restricted
Business”) in any of the regions in which the Group is engaged
in and undertakes the Restricted Business (such regions include
Korea and the PRC (including Hong Kong)).

Kwang Sung Korea has agreed to first refer all customers’ orders
of electronic components production received by Kwang Sung
Korea from its customers (subject to certain conditions) and
the results and/or products developed by the product design
and research and development centre of Kwang Sung Korea
and the KSK Factory and/or any intellectual property right in or
arising from such results and/or products to the Group on terms
in accordance with the Deed of Undertaking, the Commission
Agreement and the Research and Development Service
Agreement, respectively.

According to the supplementary Deed of Undertaking effective
20 September 2005, KS-Tech Group Corporation is no longer a
party to the Deed of Undertaking as it is no longer beneficially
owned by Kwang Sung Korea.
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Pursuant to the supplementary deed inter alia, for so long as
Kwang Sung Korea and/or any of its subsidiaries and Mr. Yang
Jai Sung and/or any of the companies controlled by him are
beneficially interested, directly or indirectly, whether individually
or taken together, in 10% or more of the issued share capital
of the Company, Kwang Sung Korea and Mr. Yang Jai Sung will
not, and Kwang Sung Korea and Mr. Yang Jai Sung will procure
that none of its subsidiaries (other than the Group) and the
companies controlled by him (other than the Group), respectively,
will engage or otherwise be involved in any business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
any of the Restricted Business in any of the regions in which the
Group engages in and undertakes the Restricted Business (such
regions include Korea and the PRC (including Hong Kong)).

The transactions with Kwang Sung Korea are set out in note
41(a) to the financial statements. There has been no material
change in directors’ interests in any competing business
subsequent to 31 December 2012.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

connected Transactions

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at an extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 5 December 2012, the
Group will enter into the Framework Supply Agreement with the
Privateco Group for purchase of certain electronics components
by the Privateco Group from a subsidiary of the Company, for a
fixed term of three years from 1 January 2012 to 31 December
2014.
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The annual cap amount for each of the financial year ended/
ending 31 December 2012, 2013 and 2014 are HK$43,400,000,
HK$46,500,000, and HK$49,900,000 respectively. The total
amount of the transactions for the year ended 31 December
2012 was HK$14,038,000.

Saved as disclosed above, the related party transactions set out
in note 41(a) to the financial statements constitute continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
after the listing of the Company on the Stock Exchange.

Such continuing connected transactions were exempt continuing
connected transactions under Rule 14A.33(3) of the Listing
Rules and are exempted from the reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirement under the Listing Rules.

Retirement Schemes

Details of the retirement schemes participated by the Group are
set out in note 35 to the financial statements.

Five-year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 189 of
this annual report.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers that all the independent non-executive directors are
independent.
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Auditors

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2012 have been audited by SHINEWING (HK)
CPA Limited.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for reappointment. A resolution for the reappointment
of SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited as auditors of the Company is
to be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

By order of the Board
Shen Yong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2013
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Independent Auditor’s Report
@ﬂ? HEMERE

YN
Shine?0:i ng

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/F.,The Lee Gardens

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

TO THE MEMBERS OF

FOREBASE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS KWANG SUNG ELECTRONICS H.K.
CO. LIMITED)

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Forebase
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 63 to 188, which comprise the consolidated and the
Company’s statements of financial position as at 31 December
2012, and the consolidated income statement, consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of the financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 141 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2B AR S

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company as at
31 December 2012 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan Wing Kit

Practising Certificate Number: PO3224

Hong Kong
26 March 2013
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“E-FER
Consohdated Income Statement
[ = EANV4
meEER
For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZ—Z——F+_A=+—HILFE
2012 2011
—E——F —T——F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B FExT FAT
(Restated)
(&%)
Continuing operations BHEREEK
Turnover - 8 568,907
Cost of sales SHERAR (547,762)
Gross profit Bl 21,145
Other income and gains HAA RS 9 7,889
Selling and distribution expenses HENRDHEAY (16,291)
Administrative expenses THFSE (14,990)
Research and development expenses e RS (38,653)
Other operating expenses H AR R (7,111)
Finance costs A& R AR 10 -
Loss before taxation BR7% A& 1R (48,011)
Taxation BiIa 11 4,010
Loss for the year from continuing RELRBIFELEETS
operations Z &8 (44,001)
Discontinued operations BRIEREEK
Loss for the year from discontinued REEREDRILEEER
operations ol 3ti= 12 (9,309)
Loss for the year TEEEE 13 (53,310)
Loss for the year attributable to RARER A
owners of the Company: ERIEARFEHE -
— from continuing operations - REFEGEX (44,001)
— from discontinued operations - REBRIEREFERS (8,945)
(52,946)
Loss for the year attributable to VR A
non-controlling interests: JEIRARFEEE
— from continuing operations - REFELCEERS -
— from discontinued operations - REERIECEER (364)
(364)
(53,310)
Loss per share BRER 17 HK cents 741l
From continuing and discontinued REFERCKRIEREEE
operations
Basic and diluted EXRREE (16.35)
From continuing operations REFELSLEERE
Basic and diluted EXRREE (13.59)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

meEHEIER

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ=—==

ZFE+ZA=T+T—HIEFE

2012 2011
—F—=F —T—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
(Restated)
(&%)
Loss for the year REEEIR (53,310)
Other comprehensive income: Hub2mkzs
Exchange differences arising EIREIRINEERS T EE A
on translation of foreign operations ZIER =% 3,916
Surplus on revaluation of land BhREER T RIETF
and buildings held for own use 2B 1,779
Deferred taxation EREFI IR (884)
Surplus on revaluation of land EEFBEAR I RET
and buildings held for own use, 2Bt BHRELETIE
net of deferred taxation 895
Other comprehensive income REZEMEEWE - SMKRIEE
for the year, net of tax 4811
Total comprehensive expense AEE>HRXHAE
for the year (48,499)
Total comprehensive expense EhAFERZHEBAXEEE
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company ViN/NCIEZ N (48,135)
Non-controlling interests FEFE PR A 2 (364)

(48,499)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
= A D
:%/T\ (== E\j ﬁ% Hj(/JL_L]r'IE—":Z
As at 31 December 2012 R=F——F+=-A=+—H
31/12/2012 31/12/2011 1/1/2011
—B--F —T-——F —T——F
+=A=+—-B +=ZA=+—H —A—H
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i FEx FET FET
(Restated) (Restated)
(EZ51) (EZ5))
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - HEkEE 18 173,250 134,364
Investment properties BEME 19 29,930 5,100
Goodwill BE 21 - 5,857
Club memberships e 22 600 600
Intangible assets BREE 23 16,327 17,623
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 24 - -
Deposits for purchase of property, BEME - HER
plant and equipment HE e 6 164
220,113 163,708
Current assets RBEE
Inventories rE 25 64,009 82,673
Trade and other receivables EWE S REMRF 26 150,239 140,070
Amounts due from former shareholders — FEUS BT A% 3 208 34 8,478 9,946
Bank balances and cash RITEB RIS 27 110,182 133,505
332,908 366,194
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables BNESREMER 28 101,809 83,856
Tax payables JETRIIR 34,134 43,286
Financial liabilities at fair BAREEFAER
value through profit and loss ZeRBE 32 5,908 -
Bank borrowing — due RITEE - —FA
within one year Eallj: 29 73,962 13,844
215,813 140,986
Net current assets RBEEFE 117,095 225,208
Total assets less current liabilities BEAERABAR 337,208 388916
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
mE AR R

As at 31 December 2012 N=—ZE——F+—-_A=+—H

31/12/2012 31/12/2011 1/1/2011
B T _—T—F
+=A=t+—-H +t=ZA=+—H —A—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i FEx FET FET
(Restated) (Restated)
(&251) (&%)
Capital and reserves BEXK
Share capital e 30 32,390 32,390
Reserves i 289,369 338,972
Equity attributable to owners AREHEBA
of the Company g 321,759 371,362
Non-controlling interests FEIERR RS 2,258 2622
Total equity S 324,017 373,984
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Financial liabilities at fair BRARBEFARR
value through profit and loss ZeaRE 32 - 6,452
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEE 33 12,501 7,880
Provision for long service payment RERBEEE 35 690 600
13,191 14,932
337,208 388,916

The consolidated financial statements on pages 63 to 188 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
26 March 2013 and are signed on its behalf by:

Shen Yong
Director

Li Zhi
Director

FOEIEFIBELHAEMBHRERERZE—=
FZA-tABEESSHEREERT I
M TYEEREREE

HE
EE

=g
EE
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ZE—FFR
Statement of Financial Position
83
B AR R 3=
As at 31 December 2012 R=F——F+=-A=+—H
2012 2011
—F—=F —T—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T FHBxT FHET
Non-current assets kREBEE
Property, plant and equipment LEN = YN 18 -
Investment properties WEYHE 19 -
Interests in subsidiaries VNG 20 303,366
Club memberships SeHE 22 283
Intangible assets mEE 23 -
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 24 -
303,649
Current assets RENEE
Other receivables H b WBR FK 26 23,380
Amounts due from subsidiaries i LA Bf B8 A R FR0E 20 21,592
Amounts due from former shareholders &Y AT A% B 30 T8 34 8,478
53,450
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables H A FETBR SR 28 -
Amounts due to subsidiaries BB A R 7R 20 -
Tax payables FERFHIR 32,452
32,452
Net current (liabilities)/assets HE (BE) BEFREE 20,998
Total assets less current liabilities EEHRBERRBERS 324,647




68 Forebase International Holdings Limited
REBRZERERAD R

Statement of Financial Position
B iEAR R 3R

As at 31 December 2012 N=—ZE——F+—-_A=+—H

2012 2011
—E-=F —ET——F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BRE FET FET
Capital and reserves BARNGHE
Share capital %N 30 32,390
Reserves (e 31 292,257
Total equity HERERS 324,647
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Financial liabilities at fair value BAREFABRZ
through profit and loss TRAE 32 -
Deferred tax liabilities BELERIABE 33 -
324,647

The financial statements on pages 63 to 188 were approved and FOI3EFIBE LB HRERENR_TE—=F=
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26 March 2013 AZ+BEESSHEREERT IHET

and are signed on its behalf by: IIEERKEE -
Shen Yong BB
Director EZF
Li Zhi 3

Director BE
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T CFFH
lidate 8 quity
n‘/T\ *Eﬁ psa Eb ’13—%
As at 31 December 2012 R=F—=—F+=-A=+—H
Attributable to owners of the Company
FAAREAEL
Properties
revaluation Non-
Share Share Other Contribution ~ reserve ~ Statutory  Exchange  Retained controlling
capital  premium  reserve  reserve NE  reseve  resenve profits ~ Sub-total interests Total
BE  RORE HibHE HERE EfEE iERE EXBE REER Nt FERESR ag
(notea)  (noteh)  (notec)  (noted)  (notee)  (notef)
(k) (Wkb)  (Wskc)  (Wia)  (Wske) (WD)
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HKSO000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
Tén  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr TEr TEnr TEr TEn TEr TEn
At 1 January 2011 RZE-—F-f-A 32390 58566 301 9%6 22247 9376 (11237) 249773 371,362 2022 37394
Total comprehensive income (expense) ~ AEE2ENE (%)
for the year (restated) 1% (7)) - - - - 895 - 3916 (R2%46)  (48139) (364)  (484%9)
Transfer 1 - - - - - 839 - (839) - - -
Reduction of contributions HIRRRRLE (FEE110)
from shareholders (note 11(b) - - - (14689 - - - - (1469 - (1469
At 31 December 2011 (as restated) RZE—F+-A=1t-H
(E51) 32390 58566 301 8478 23142 10215 (7321) 195988 321,799 2208 324017
Total comprenensive income (expense) — AEE2ENE (Fx) 28
for the year - - - - - - 9123 (52339 (43216)  (1766)  (44.982)
Released upon the Distribution In Specie  HNEAIDRHBAR
of shares in a subsidiary PGiEES - - (301) - - - (8488) 8789 - (492) (492)
Special diidend by way of Distribution ~~ INESIARHBAA]
In Specie of shares in a subsidiary RiaAAREENRS
(note 38) (Fi3E38) - - - - - - - (773 (1L773) - (11773
At 31 December 2012 RIE-ZE+ZA=t-H 3230 5856 - 8478 23142 10,215 (6,680) 40665 166,770 - 166770
Notes: BfsE -
(@  Share premium (a) MR E

The application of the share premium is governed by section 48B of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Other reserve represents the acquisition/disposal of partial equity
interests of subsidiaries with minority shareholders without changes in
control. Details of the accounting policy are set out in note 3(a).

Contribution reserve represents contributions from shareholders for
indemnity liabilities payable for periods prior to 30 June 2003. Details

(b)  Other reserve
(c)  Contribution reserve

are set out in note 41 (a)(ii).
(d)  Properties revaluation reserve

The properties revaluation reserve has been set up and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for land and
buildings held for own use in note 3(e).

(b)

(c)

(d)

Wi m Bz REREERAIGDIE 48B IR E

Hitf#E

HivE R OSSR RKE HERBAR
2 BB AR AR 2 T W AR P TS R B o '
BURFF B MIFE3() ©

HERE

HERBERRERE -—EE=F"A=THaHH
ZENBESELE - FHBESRMIEE41)i)
MEE L FHE

WEEARETIZMES() A S ER B it
FARF 2 BT ERR KR -

69



70

Forebase International Holdings Limited
REBRZERERAD R

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

n‘/j—\

As at 31 December 2012 A==

(e)

(L)

SRRFBBR

—H+-A=+—H

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) laws
applicable to wholly-foreign owned investment enterprises, subsidiaries
of the Company operating in the PRC are required to set up a general
reserve fund and appropriate at least 10% of respective company’s
annual profit after taxation, as determined under the PRC accounting
rules and regulations, to the general reserve fund until the balance of
the reserve equals to 50% of its registered capital. This fund can be
used to make good losses and to convert into paid-up capital.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of the
Company’s branch in Korea. At 1 January 2008 onwards, the
functional currency of the Korea Branch has been changed from
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) to Korean Won (“KRW”) following the
Korea Branch has substantially increased its trading activities in the
Korean market. Sales and purchases conducted in the Korean market
are denominated and settled in KRW. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 3(p).

(e)

()

EERRE

RIBEARIEBE K2 REARIME ([
B) AR ARBARTEZEZMBARFRR
I*Eﬁﬁ%% WAL R A &4 10% 2 FEH
BAR (R B &5t AR A RARDIGHE) BA—&R
HEES HERBEBEEREMAR0% A
Hﬂ:n%—%ﬁﬁ%@ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%?ﬁﬁ&@ﬁﬁ%%ﬂ%ﬂ
B o

B

R A REMA RREARNRRE D R FMHE
BEELACERER B2 N\F—H—H
i HATEE D AR B AREINERN R T 5
NEzB558  ARARBESERSAFZ
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
n‘/T\ IE%/)ILE%%

For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 - ——F+_-_A=+—HIIFE

ACTIVITIES

2012 2011
—E——F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FET FHET
(Restated)
(&%)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RESEE
Loss for the year FEEE (53,310)
Adjustments for: RTYEIBEEL AR
Taxation I8 (4,079)
Interest income FEMA (526)
Finance costs BhE R AR -
Depreciation e 13,452
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEREH 1,168
Impairment loss recognised on land PAFES B it RIEFER
and buildings held for own use ZR(EEE -
Impairment loss recognised on trade BLIEUNE 5 K H A AR 5R R
and other receivables ZR(EEE 156
Reversal of impairment loss recognised  StIEUWE 5 I H b BR ;K FER
on trade and other receivables BB R B (853)
Impairment loss recognised on goodwill  #L B HER 2 B EE 12 5,857
Decrease in fair value BARBEFAEBRL
of financial liabilities at fair value CRIBBEZAREBERD
through profit and loss (544)
Increase in fair value WEWEZ N A EEEN
of investment properties (2,586)
Allowance for inventories FERE 21,121
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - #e5 RS ERE
plant and equipment (3,140)
Impairment loss recognised BT EERRBEEE
on intangible assets -
(Decrease) increase in provision REARRTS & 2 (Rt A>) &N
for long service payments 90
Net foreign exchange (gain) loss N (Wam) BEEE 2,505
Operating cash flows before EEECHHR 2 KERERE
movements in working capital (20,689)
Increase in restricted bank deposit IR I ERTTF AL 0 (472)
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERL (35) (2,457)
Decrease (increase) in trade FEWE 5 R HABBR TR A (3850)
and other receivables (5,167)
Increase in trade and other payables FET B 5 K E A BR R8N 17,953
Cash used in operations KEEBAZR S (10,832)
Tax reserve certificates purchased EREERTS (4,305)
Hong Kong Profits Tax refund EBMETRMN -
Korean Corporate Income Tax paid RN i (665)
PRC Corporate Income Tax paid BRI EME (671)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING RETEHACRERRE

(16,473)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
n‘/j—\ Iﬁzﬁﬂlbg%‘%

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE=—ZT—=—F+=-A=+—HILFE

2012 2011
—F—=F —T—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
(Restated)
(&%)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEEE
Interest received BEHFIE 526
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE « S NREBATEHE
plant and equipment 3,140
Acquisition of property, plant WHEZE - Heas B
and equipment (72,933)
Increase in deposits for purchase BEYE - WREEE
of property, plant and equipment ZIRE M -
Repayment from shareholders AR R EE IR -
NET CASH GENERATED FROM REZBME (FTA) 2REFE

(USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES (69,267)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES METE

Net cash outflow on Distribution B IKM B A EIRR D EE
In Specie of shares in a subsidiary ZBeFnH (MEE38)
(note 38) -
Repayment of bank borrowing EIBIRITIER (13,844)
Interest paid ERFE (1,228)
New bank loans raised FILRITIEE 77,035
NET CASH (USED) FROM FINANCING ®&EEE (FTH) iz F5

ACTIVITIES 61,963
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND RERRESEBY IR BE

CASH EQUIVALENTS (23,777)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—B—HZBEERBEESZEEY

AT 1 JANUARY 133,505
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [ER# ) S/%& (18)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RT+-RA=+—HZHBHER

AT 31 DECEMBER, represented HeLBEYIREBTESR

bank balances and cash less REFZRAEFER (HEF27)

restricted deposit (note 27) 109,710




Notes to the Financial Statements
BB R Yot

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ=—F——F+-_A=+—HIFE
1.

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in Hong Kong and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are Units 208-209, 2/F., Bio-Informatics Centre,
No. 2 Science Park West Avenue, Hong Kong Science
Park, Shatin, N.T., Hong Kong.

On 27 September 2012, Mr. Yang Jai Sung (“Mr. Yang”),
a then executive director and Kwang Sung Electronics Co.,
Ltd. (“Kwang Sung Korea”) (as vendors) and Ultra Harvest
Limited (“Ultra Harvest”), a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands with limited liability, entered into an
agreement (the “Share Sale Agreement”) (as amended
and supplemented by the supplemental agreement dated
16 October 2012) relating to the sale of an aggregate of
174,082,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 in the issued
share capital of the Company (the “Shares”) to Ultra
Harvest, at a price of HK$0.9263 per Share. As conditions
precedent to completion of the Share Sale Agreement,
the Company was required, among other things, to carry
out a group reorganisation (the “Group Reorganisation”),
to effect a distribution in specie of shares in Jay Star
Holdings Limited, a then wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company (“Jay Star” or the “Privateco”) (the “Distribution
In Specie”). The transactions contemplated under the
Share Sale Agreement were approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company at an extraordinary general
meeting held on 5 December 2012. Upon satisfaction of
other conditions, completion of the Share Sale Agreement
took place on 11 December 2012.

Pursuant to the Group Reorganisation, the Company,
among other things, reorganised its subsidiaries into two
subgroups, the Remaining Group and the Privateco Group.

The Remaining Group is principally engaged in the
manufacturing and sale of electronic components to
worldwide customers (except for those in the Republic of
Korea (“Korea”) and Japan) (the “Retained Businesses”).
The Privateco Group is engaged in all businesses of the
Group prior to the Group Reorganisation, other than the
Retained Businesses (the “Distributed Businesses”).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
s e

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ=—F——F+-_A=+—HIFE
1.

GENERAL (Continued)

Upon completion of the Share Sale Agreement, Ultra
Harvest became the controlling shareholder of the
Company, holding 174,082,000 Shares, which represented
approximately 53.75% of the issued share capital of the
Company.

The Privateco Group having 323,896,932 Privateco shares
was distributed as a special dividend to the shareholders
of the Company on 11 December 2012, whose names
appeared on the register of members of the Company on
10 December 2012 (the “Record Date Shareholders”),
details of the Distribution In Specie are set out in note
38. As a result of the Group Reorganisation, the Retained
Businesses were classified as continuing operations while
the Distributed Businesses, being disposed of, were
classified as discontinued operations, details of which are
set out in note 12.

On 14 December 2012, Haitong International Securities
Company Limited (“Haitong International Securities”) on
behalf of Ultra Harvest made an unconditional mandatory
cash offer to acquire all the issued shares in the Company
other than those shares already owned or agreed to be
acquired by Ultra Harvest and parties acting in concert
with any of it at a price of HK$0.9263 per Share (the “Listco
Offer”).

The Listco Offer was closed on 4 January 2013 with valid
acceptances in respect of a total of 69,519,950 Shares,
representing 21.46% of the total issued share capital of
the Company. Upon completion of the Listco Offer, Ultra
Harvest was interested in 243,601,950 shares of the
Company, representing approximately 75.21% of the total
issued share capital of the Company.

As approved by way of special resolution at an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on
25 February 2013, the name of the Company was approved
to be changed from “Kwang Sung Electronics H.K. Co.
Limited X 2B T&EHR A 7]" to “Forebase International
Holdings Limited FR £ B BR 4% Bz B R A 7]". With effect
from 12 March 2013, the Registrar of Companies in Hong
Kong approved the change of the Company name and
issued the Certificate of Change of Name.

—RER (E)

R &S M1 :%1% © Ultra Harvest 5K &7
N A FERR IR R - #F8 174,082,000 B% A%
D AAARATIEEITRAL53.75% ©

TLWARAISE 22 %177 323,896,932
BRILARRBROER -—F——F+_H
T—HEARRBREEYDIR TR T —=
F+-ATBRIARFRREMEARD
AR ([REE AR - BYHIREFE
K38 - HRNEEEANERR - RE
BB R ERERT - M &R
DIREBRAFIRERIEEEEY - B
BRI L2 -

AZTE—ZF+ZHTHEAB - BEERE
FERRFA ([BBEBEEFES]) K&K Ulra
Harvest LA R R 2 E BTG (T8
#E Ultra Harvest R E—B1TEB)ALE#HES
SR EWEE 2 AR D) 18 EAR R 53R
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Notes to the Financial Statements
TSR R MIRE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ=—F——F+-_A=+—HIFE
1.

GENERAL (Continued)

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are the manufacture
and sale of electronic components. Following the
completion of the Distribution In Specie, the Group revisited
its businesses activities based on the degree of importance
and extended its principal activities to properties
investment, i.e. the Group's investment properties portfolios
in Hong Kong, Korea and the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC").

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, at
31 December 2012, Ultra Harvest is the ultimate holding
company of the Company and Mr. Shen Yong, the
Chairman of the Company, is the ultimate controlling party
of the Company.

The functional currency of the Company is Korean
Won (“KRW"). The functional currencies for its certain
subsidiaries are Renminbi (“RMB”) and KRW. For the
purposes of presenting the financial statements, the Group
adopted HK$ as its presentation currency as its shares are
listed in Hong Kong.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and revised standards, amendments and interpretations
(“new and revised HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”).
Amendments to HKFRS 1 Severe Hyperinflation and
Removal of Fixed Dates
for First-time Adopters
Deferred Tax: Recovery
of Underlying Assets
Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Transfer of
Financial Assets
As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2009-2011 Cycle issued in
2012

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 1

1.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ=—F——F+-_A=+—HIFE
2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS") (Continued)

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and position for the current and prior years and/or the
disclosures set out in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery
of Underlying Assets

The Group has applied for the first time the amendments
to HKAS 12 “Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets”
in the current year. Under the amendments, investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model
in accordance with HKAS 40 “Investment Property”
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale for
the purposes of measuring deferred taxes, unless the
presumption is rebutted in certain circumstances.

The Group’s investment properties are situated in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), Korea and
Hong Kong, which are measured using the fair value
model. As a result of application of the amendments to
HKAS 12, the directors reviewed the Group’s investment
properties portfolios and concluded that the Group’s
investment properties situated in Hong Kong, Korea and
the PRC amounting to approximately HK$9,800,000
(2011: HK$6,000,000), HK$22,072,000 (2011: Nil) and
HK$24,420,000 (2011: HK$23,930,000) respectively
are not held under a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodies in the investment properties over time. Therefore,
the directors have determined that the “recover through
sale” presumption set out in the amendments to HKAS 12
is not rebutted.

2.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ=—F——F+-_A=+—HIFE
2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS") (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery
of Underlying Assets (Continued)

As a result of the application of the amendments to HKAS
12, the Group has recognised deferred taxes on changes
in fair value of the investment properties located in the
PRC and Korea. On the other hand, the Group does not
recognise any deferred tax on changes in fair value of
the investment properties located in Hong Kong as the
Group is not subject to any income taxes in disposal of the
investment properties in Hong Kong. The amendments to
HKAS 12 have been applied retrospectively. The change
in accounting policy has resulted in the Group’s income
tax expenses for the years ended 31 December 2012
and 2011 being decreased by approximately HK$79,000
and increased by HK$3,232,000 respectively and hence
resulted in loss for the years ended 31 December 2012
and 31 December 2011 being decreased by approximately
HK$79,000 and increased by HK$3,232,000 respectively.

The application of the amendments to HKAS12 does not
result in any material impact on retained profits of the
Group and the Company as at 1 January 2011.

Summary of the effect of the above change in
accounting policy

The effect of the change in accounting policy described
above on the results for the current and prior years by line
items is as follows:

2.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZ—Z——F+_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. BT RRBIETERMBREE
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS Al ([FEMBHREER ) (&)
(“HKFRSS") (Continued)
summary of the effect of the above change in ThREFBRESNZHERE (&)
accounting policy (Continued)
The effect of the change in accounting policy described TR eHERESHEHAEER T ——F
above on the financial positions of the Group as at FTZ A=+ BB FENT ¢

31 December 2011, is as follows:

31/12/2011
(originally 31/12/2011
stated) (restated)
—2—-F —g2—-F
+=B=+-H Adjustments +=A=+—H
(REZF)) ik (85)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET TET
Deferred tax liabilities EXEREEE (9,269) (3,232) (12,501)
Net assets and total equity BEFENEER 327,249 (3,232) 324,017
Retained profits REB @A 199,220 (3,232) 195,988
The effects of the above change in accounting policy on e BEREHHASEER_T—=F
the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2012 TZA=T—RAZUBURR 2 B TEK
are an increase in deferred tax liabilities, and decreases in EEBIBRGEEN  AEEEEFE - R
the Group’s net asset, retained profits and total equity by BmF R Bz R ) 493,153,000/ 7T ©
approximately HK$3,153,000.
The effect of the above change in accounting policy on e BUREHHASERAFE R
the Group’s basic and diluted earnings per share for the TFEECBRERAREEZERT ?&%ﬁﬂ
current and prior years are as follows: ™~
Impact on basic and diluted loss per share HEREAREESEREZZE
2012 2011
- —T—F
HK cents HK cents
&l B
Basic and diluted loss per share FEAEAIREAR
before adjustments &%ﬁfﬁféﬁ?ﬁ (15.35)
Adjustments arising from change SETERE
in accounting policy in relation to: ﬁ'ﬁLﬁaﬂ%Z
— application of amendments to - FE}EH%;/B = AR
HKAS 12 in respect of deferred F 122 IEFTNIRE
taxes on investment properties Y3 2 EAET IR (1.00)

Reported basic and diluted loss per share  FT2 R 2 BIEA
N#EE1E (16.35)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ=—F——F+-_A=+—HIFE
2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSS") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective.

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 1

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle,
except for amendment
HKAS1?

First-time Adoption of
HKFRSs — Government
Loans?

Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Mandatory Effective Date of
HKFRS 9 and Transition
Disclosures®

Consolidated Financial
Statements, Joint
Arrangements and
Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities: Transaction
Guidance?

Investment Entites®

Financial Instruments*

Consolidated Financial
Statements®
Joint Arrangements®

Disclosures of Interests in
Other Entities®
Fair Value Measurement®
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSS") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKAS 19 (as revised
in 2011)

Employee Benefits?

RAETE] RIS E BB R EE
Al ([FEMBHREER ) (F)

B RER T REIERTEE
BARSER AR (48)

HKAS 27 (as revised
in 2011)

HKAS 28 (as revised

in 2011)

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 32

HK(IFRIC) * — Int 20

Separate Financial
Statements®

Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures®

Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income’
Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities®
Stripping Costs in the
Production Phase of
a Surface Mine?

HK(IFRIC) represents the Hong Kong (International Financial
Reporting Interpretation Committee)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2015.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 — 2011 Cycle
issued in June 2012

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 — 2011
Cycle included a number of amendments to various
HKFRSs. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
Amendments to HKFRSs included the amendments
to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and the
amendments to HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ=—F——F+-_A=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

2,

(“HKFRSS") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle

issued in June 2012 (Continued,)

The amendments to HKAS 16 clarify that spare
parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment
should be classified as property, plant and equipment
when they meet the definition of property, plant and
equipment in HKAS 16 and as inventory otherwise.
The directors do not anticipate that the application
of the amendments will have a material effect on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements and the
Company’s statement of financial position.

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify that income tax
on distributions to holders of an equity instrument
and transaction costs of an equity transaction
should be accounted for in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes. The directors anticipate that the
amendments to HKAS 32 will have no material effect
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements and
the Company’s statement of financial position.

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing
application issues relating to the offset of financial
assets and financial liabilities requirements.
Specifically, the amendments clarify the meaning of
“currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off”
and “simultaneous realisation and settlement”.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 require entities
to disclose information about rights of offset and
related arrangements (such as collateral posting
requirements) for financial instruments under an
enforceable master netting agreement or similar
arrangement.

2.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ=—F——F+-_A=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

2.

(“HKFRSS") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle

issued in June 2012 (Continued,)

The amendments to HKFRS 7 are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013 and interim period within those annual
periods. The disclosures should also be provided
retrospectively for all comparative periods. However,
the amendments to HKAS 32 are not effective until
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014,
with retrospective application required.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of these amendments to HKAS 32 and
HKFRS 7 may result in more disclosures being made
with regard to offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities in the future.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 amended in 2010 includes the requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial liabilities
and for derecognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ=—F——F+-_A=+—HIFE
APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS") (Continued)

2,

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

HKFRS 9 requires all recognised financial assets
that are within the scope of HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement to be
subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair
value. Specifically, debt investments that are held
within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their fair
values at the end of subsequent reporting periods.
In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not
held for trading) in other comprehensive income, with
only dividend income generally recognised in profit or
loss.

The most significant effect of HKFRS 9 regarding
the classification and measurement of financial
liabilities relates to the presentation of changes in the
fair value of a financial liability (designated as at fair
value through profit or loss) attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability. Specifically, under
HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities that are designated
as at fair value through profit or loss, the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability that
is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a
financial liability’s credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Previously, under HKAS
39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value
of the financial liability designated as at fair value
through profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

2.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ=—F——F+-_A=+—HIFE
2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2015, with earlier application permitted.

The directors of the Company are in the process of
assessing the impact from the application of this new
standard on the results and the financial positions of the
Group and the Company.

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued,
including HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as
revised in 2011) and HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011).

Key requirements of these five standards are described
below:

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements that deal with consolidated
financial statements and HK(SIC)-Int 12 Consolidation
— Special Purpose Entities. HKFRS 10 includes a new
definition of control that contains three elements: (a) power
over an investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee, and (c) the ability to
use its power over the invests to affect the amount of the
investor’s returns. Extensive guidance has been added in
HKFRS 10 to deal with complex scenarios.

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures
and HK (SIC) — Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-
Monetary Contributions by Ventures. HKFRS 11 deals
with how a joint arrangement of which two or more parties
have joint control should be classified. Under HKFRS 11,
joint arrangements are classified as joint operations or
joint ventures, depending on the rights and obligations of
the parties to the arrangements. In contrast, under HKAS
31, there are three types of joints arrangements: jointly
controlled entities, jointly controlled assets and jointly
controlled operations.

2.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ=—F——F+-_A=+—HIFE
2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures (Continuead)

In addition, joint ventures under HKFRS 11 are required to
be accounted for using the equity method of accounting,
whereas jointly controlled entities under HKAS 31 can be
accounted for using the equity method of accounting or
proportionate consolidation.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable
to entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and/or unconsolidated structure
entities. In general, the disclosure requirements in HKRFS
12 are more extensive than those in the current standards.

In July 2012, the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11
and HKFRS 12 were issued to clarify certain transitional
guidance on the application of these five HKFRSs for the
first time.

These five standards, together with the amendments
relating to the transitional guidance, are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. Earlier
application is permitted provided that all of these five
standards are applied early at the same time.

The directors of the Company anticipate that these five
standards will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the annual period beginning
1 January 2013. The application of these five standards
does not have significant impact on amounts reported in
the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
Investment Entities

The amendments to HKFRS 10 introduce an exception
to consolidating subsidiaries for an investment entity,
except where the subsidiaries provide services that relate
to the investment entity’s investment activities. Under
the amendments to HKFRS 10, an investment entity is
required to measure its interests in subsidiaries at fair value
through profit or loss.

2.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
Investment Entities (Continued)

To qualify as an investment entity, certain criteria have to
be met. Specifically, an entity is required to:

o obtain funds from one or more investors for the
purpose of providing them with professional
investment management services;

o commit to its investor(s) that its business purpose
is to invest funds solely for returns from capital
appreciation, investment income, or both; and

o measure and evaluate performance of substantially
all of its investments on a fair value basis.

Consequential amendments to HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
have been made to introduce new disclosure requirements
for investment entities.

The directors of the Company anticipate that these do
not have significant impact on amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements as the Company is not an
investment entity.

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for
fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements. The Standard defines fair value, establishes
a framework for measuring fair value, and requires
disclosures about fair value measurements. The scope of
HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to both financial instrument
items and non-financial instrument items for which other
HKFRSs require or permit fair value measurements
and disclosures about fair value measurements, except
in specified circumstances. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 13 are more extensive than those
in the current standards. For example, quantitative and
qualitative disclosures based on the three-level fair value
hierarchy currently required for financial instruments only
under HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures will be
extended by HKFRS 13 to cover all assets and liabilities
within its scope.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement (Continued)

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that HKFRS
13 will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements and the Company’s financial statements for
the annual period beginning 1 January 2013 and that the
application of the new Standard may affect the amounts
reported in the consolidated financial statements and result
in more extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.

Other than disclosed above, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of other new and revised
standards, amendments or interpretations will have no
material impact on the results and the financial position of
the Group and the Company.

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011) Employee Benefits

The amendments to HKAS 19 change the accounting
for defined benefit plans and termination benefits. The
most significant change relates to the accounting for
changes in defined benefit obligations and plan assets.
The amendments require the recognition of changes in
defined benefit obligations and in the fair value of plan
assets when they occur, and hence eliminate the ‘corridor
approach’ permitted under the previous version of HKAS
19 and accelerate the recognition of past service costs.
The amendments require all actuarial gains and losses to
be recognised immediately through other comprehensive
income in order for the net pension asset or liability
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position to reflect the full value of the plan deficit or
surplus. Furthermore, the interest cost and expected return
on plan assets used in the previous version of HKAS 19 are
replaced with a ‘net-interest’ amount, which is calculated
by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit
liability or asset. The amendments to HKAS 19 are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
and require retrospective application.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011) Employee Benefits
(Continued)

The directors anticipate that the application of the
amendments to HKAS 19 has had no significant impact
on the Group’s and the Company’s financial performance
and positions and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income introduce new terminology
for the statement of comprehensive income and income
statement. Under the amendments to HKAS 1, a ‘statement
of comprehensive income’ is renamed as a ‘statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income’ and
an ‘income statement’ is renamed as a ‘statement of
profit or loss’. The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the
option to present profit or loss and other comprehensive
income in either a single statement or in two separate but
consecutive statements. However, the amendments to
HKAS 1 require items of other comprehensive income to
be grouped into two categories: (a) items that will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items
that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when
specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the
same basis — the amendments do not change the option to
present items of other comprehensive income either before
tax or net of tax.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012. The presentation
of items of other comprehensive income will be modified
accordingly when the amendments are applied in future
accounting periods.

Except as described above, the directors anticipate that the
application of the new and revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective will have no material impact
on the Group’s financial performance and position and/or
disclosures set out in these financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ==—F——

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments and properties, which are measured at fair
values, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

(a)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control
is achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity
so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated income statement from the effective
date of acquisition and up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with those used by other
members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to
non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a
subsidiary is attributed to owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

FH-A=t—HIFE
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(@)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)
Distribution In Specie

Where the Company distributed non-cash assets to
its equity holders and the aforesaid non-cash assets
would be ultimately controlled by the same party or
parties before and after the distribution, the dividend
declared is measured as the carrying amounts of
such non-cash assets, which measured at historical
cost and in accordance with the accounting policies
set out in this note.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses, if any, and is presented separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently whenever there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an
acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating
unit to which goodwill had been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit is less than its carrying amount of the units,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in profit or loss in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or loss on
disposal.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

Intangible assets

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination are recognised separately from
goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair
value at the acquisition date which is regarded
as their cost.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at costs
less subsequent accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite
useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment
losses on tangible and intangible assets below).

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that
are acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment loss. (see the accounting policy
in respect of impairment losses on tangible
and intangible assets below). Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life
and amortisation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate being accounted for on
a prospective basis.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are
expected from use. Gains or losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset,
are recognised in profit or loss in the period
when the asset is derecognised.

(c)

3

7w

(i)

(ii)

(iii)
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans
and receivables and available-for-sale investments.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose
of the financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. All regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and
of allocating interest income over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including
all fees paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments.

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for available-
for-sale investments, other than investments in
subsidiaries, are as follows:
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair values cannot be reliably measured are
recognised in the consolidated and the Company’s
statements of financial position at cost less
impairment losses (see note 3(h)).

Dividend on available-for-sale investments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s and
the Company'’s rights to receive the dividends is
established.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables, amounts due from
subsidiaries, amounts due from former shareholders,
cash and cash equivalents (see note 3(t)) are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses (see accounting
policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Impairment on financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment on financial assets (Continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
into bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as
trade and other receivables, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are in addition
assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s and the
Company’s past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the average credit period, observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an
impairment loss is recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flow discontinued
at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be
reversed in subsequent periods.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ=—F——F+-_A=+—HIFE
3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment on financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade and other receivables,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade and other receivable
are considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or
loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if,
in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
losses was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expenses over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form as integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at
the date a derivative contract is entered into and
is subsequently remeasured to its fair value at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately
unless the derivative is designated and effective as a
hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the
recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of
the hedge relationship.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other
payables, amounts due to subsidiaries and bank
borrowing are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ=—F——F+-_A=+—HIFE
3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when,
and only when, the Group’s obligation are discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

The following properties held for own use are stated at
their revalued amounts, being their fair values at the
date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation:

o freehold land and buildings; and

o land held under operating leases and buildings
thereon, where the fair values of the leasehold
interest in the land and buildings cannot be
measured separately at the inception of the
lease and the building is not clearly held under
an operating lease (see note 3(g)).

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity
such that the carrying amount does not differ
materially from that which would be determined using
fair values at the end of the reporting period.

(e)
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEFHBXR (&)
(Continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Other items of property, plant and equipment are
stated in the consolidated and the Company’s
statements of financial position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 3(h)).

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of land
and buildings is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in revaluation reserve,
except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation
decrease of the same asset previously recognised in
profit or loss, in which case the increase is credited to
profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously
charged. A decrease in net carrying amount arising
on revaluation of an asset is recognised in profit
or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if
any, on the revaluation reserve relating to a previous
revaluation of that asset. On the subsequent sale
or retirement of a revaluated asset, the attributable
revaluation surplus is transferred to retained profits.

Depreciation on revaluated buildings is recognised in
profit or loss. On the subsequent sale or retirement
of a revalued property, the attributable revaluation
surplus remaining in the properties revaluation
reserve is transferred directly to retained profits.

Depreciation on revaluated land and buildings
and other items of property, plant and equipment
is provided to write off the revaluated amount and
cost of items of property, plant and equipment over
their estimated useful lives respectively and after
taking into account of their estimated residual value,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ=—F——F+-_A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.

(e) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction in progress includes property, plant
and equipment in the course of construction for
production or for its own use purpose are carried
at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Costs
include professional fees and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy. Construction in progress
is classified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the
same basis as other property assets, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended use.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed
as evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any
impairment loss between the carrying amount and
the fair value of that item at the date of transfer
is recognised in profit or loss. Any appreciation of
the fair value of that item at the date of transfer is
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in property revaluation reserve. On
the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the
relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred directly
to retained profits.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the item and recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

(8)

Research and development expenditure

Research and development costs comprise all
costs that are directly attributable to research and
development activities or that can be allocated
on a reasonable basis to such activities. Because
of the nature of the Group’s and the Company’s
research and development activities, the criteria
for the recognition of such costs as an asset are
generally not met until late in the development stage
of the project when the remaining development
costs are immaterial. Hence both research costs
and development costs are generally recognised as
expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group or the Company as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease.

The Group or the Company as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease, except where another systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ=—F——F+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(8)

(h)

Leasing (Continued)
Leasehold land and buildings

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group and the Company assesses
the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment
as to whether substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group and the Company,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire lease is classified
as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land element
and building element of the lease at the inception of
the lease.

Impairment losses on tangible and
intangible assets other than goodwill (see
the accounting policy in respect of goodwill
in note 3(b))

At the end of the reporting period, the Group and the
Company review the carrying amounts of its tangible
and intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any.

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group and the
Company estimate the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

(8)

(h)
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

(i)

Impairment losses on tangible and
intangible assets other than goodwill (see
the accounting policy in respect of goodwill
in note 3(b)) (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value-in-use. In assessing value-in-
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or
cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another standard, in which case the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation decrease under that
standard.

Where impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately
in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at
a revalued amount under another standard, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as
a revaluation increase under that standard.

Club memberships

Club memberships with indefinite useful lives are
stated in the consolidated and the Company’s
statements of financial position at cost less
impairment losses (see note 3(h)).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

(k)

)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sale.

Defined contribution retirement benefit
plans

Payments to the PRC and Korean local government
defined contribution retirement schemes pursuant
to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the
PRC and Korea and the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong are
recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Long service payments

The Group’s net obligations in respect of long service
payment on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance is the future benefit that the employees
have earned in return for their services in the current
and prior periods.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost
of providing benefits is determined with actuarial
valuations being carried out at the end of the
reporting period. All actuarial gains and losses of
defined benefit plans are recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which they occur. Past
service cost is recognised immediately to the extent
that the benefits are already vested, and otherwise
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the average
period until the amended benefits become vested.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position
represents the present value of the defined benefit
obligation as adjusted for unrecognised past service
cost, and as reduced by the fair value of plan assets.
Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to
past service cost, plus the present value of available
refunds and reductions in future contributions to the
plan.

(k)

)
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Provision

(n)

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Group will
be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time
value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required
to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an
asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will
be received and the amount of the receivable can be
measured reliably.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before
tax as reported in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income because it excludes items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group and the
Company’s liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, except where the Group and
the Company is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognized to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilize the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of the reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

(0)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Company expects, at the
end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax liabilities
or deferred tax assets for investment properties
that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed
to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time,
rather through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for such
investment properties are measured in accordance
with the above general principles set out in HKAS
12 (i.e. based on the expected manner as how the
properties will be recovered.)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related taxes.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(0) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Sales of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised
when all the following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership
of the goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing
managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership nor
effective control over the goods sold;

o the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to
the Group; and

° the costs incurred or to be incurred
in respect of the transaction can be
measured reliably.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued
on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset
to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Rental income

Rental income under operating leases is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the
respective lease terms.

FH-A=t—HIFE
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective
functional currency at the rates of exchange
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair
value are included in profit or loss for the period.

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group’s foreign operation are translated into
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period. Income and expense items are translated at
the average rates for the year. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity (under the
heading of exchange reserve).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(@)

()

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair
values. Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of investment properties are included in
profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in the profit or loss in the period in which item is
derecognised.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there
is reasonable assurance that the Group and the
Company will comply with the conditions attaching to
them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss
on a systematic basis over the periods in which the
Group recognises as expenses the related costs
for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Government grants related to depreciable assets are
recognised as a deduction from the carrying amount
of the relevant asset in the consolidated statement of
financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a
systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of
the related assets.

(q)

()
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s) Investments in subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company.
Control exists when the Company has the power
to govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In
assessing control, potential voting rights that presently
are exercisable are taken into account.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment loss (see note 3(h)).

(t) Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash in the consolidated and the
Company’s statement of financial position comprise
cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits
with a maturity of three months or less. For the
purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-
term deposits as defined above.

(u) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
construction of any qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s and the Company’s
accounting policies, which are described in note 3, the
directors of the Company are required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.
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4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities
or deferred tax asset arising from investment properties
that are measured using fair value model, the directors
have reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolio
and concluded that the Group’s investment properties
are not held under a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time.
Therefore, in measuring the Group’s deferred taxation on
investment properties, the directors have determined that
the presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are
recovered entirely through sale is not rebutted. As a result,
the Group has recognised deferred taxes on changes in fair
value of the investment properties located in the PRC and
Korea. On the other hand, the Group does not recognise
any deferred tax on changes in fair value of the investment
properties located in Hong Kong as the Group is not
subject to any income taxes in disposal of the investment
properties in Hong Kong.

4.

Annual Report 2012
ZE—FFR

EXEFFIEREHTIBRERRZ
FERR (&)

Er RAARRR AR EEERE - g
sHERTETTIER] IR EFHERT R (frfe
I REEZARE) HMERT I H SR K
[ (ffE 5T [RIRS 32 & AN HAfR] S R SR EA ) e

7
s ©

F& F & =t BUR P 4E H R K IR

LT RESRERASEN S T HREH
EH MBI REGRA BRI EANEEAS
REARFENTRHE (BRAMGFERRIN
(RTx)) -

REYEZEIEHRA

R ENAAABERUAEZREYE
EEXZREEHRARAIELEHREEEM
5 EFCEHAREZREMEMEAY
HEEARENREYELSHZE XS BT
RERERERRENEMES 2B
REMNGE 2 EBRARE - Bt - REtE
AEBZREYEZRLERER EFC
BE  MAQAEBERIGAEZREVE
ZAREESBIHE 28R E 2 RER A5
# o Bt - AEEERMNTERFERED
BREMELABEZESHEDELENIA -
A—HH HRAREHAREEHNE
HEREMEMSIRZFAEDR - HAKE
WEBRRAURBENREDEZAAE
BEEFMEL 2 HTRELEHREA -

111



112

Forebase International Holdings Limited
REBRZERERAD R

Notes to the Financial Statements
B TSR R MIRE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ=—F——F+-_A=+—HIFE
4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(),

(b)

Impairment on goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value-in-use of the cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value-
in-use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating units and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. Impairment loss on
goodwill of Nil (2011: approximately HK$5,857,000)
has been recognised for the year. The carrying
amount of goodwill at 31 December 2012 and the
details of the impairment test are disclosed in note
21.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group and the Company review the carrying
amounts of the assets at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. When indication of
impairment is identified, management prepares
discounted future cash flow to assess the differences
between the carrying amount and value-in-use and
provide for impairment loss. Any change in the
assumption adopted in the cash flow forecasts would
increase or decrease in the provision of impairment
loss and affect the Group’s and the Company’s net
asset value. At 31 December 2012, the carrying
values of property, plant and equipment of the
Group is approximately HK$23,112,000 (2011:
HK$173,250,000). The carrying values of property,
plant and equipment of the Company is Nil for the
year (2011: Nil).
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4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Impairment of trade and other receivables

Impairment losses for trade and other receivables
are assessed and provided based on the directors’
regular review of ageing analysis and evaluation
of collectability. A considerable level of judgment
is exercised by the directors when assessing the
credit worthiness and past collection history of each
individual customer. An increase or decrease in the
above impairment loss would affect the profit in the
year and in future years. Impairment of approximately
HK$1,365,000 (2011: HK$156,000) of continuing
operations has been recognised for the year. At
31 December 2012, the carrying amount of trade
receivables and other receivables of the Group were
approximately HK$55,285,000 and HK$10,193,000
(2011: HK$112,339,000 and HK$37,900,000)
respectively; Trade and other receivables of the
Company for the year are Nil and Nil (2011: Nil and
approximately HK$23,380,000) respectively.

Impairment of intangible assets

Determining whether intangible assets are impaired
requires an estimation of the value-in-use of the
intangible assets. The value-in-use calculation
requires the Group and the Company to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the patents
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. Where the actual future cash flows are
less than expected, a material impairment loss may
arise. Impairment of approximately HK$5,929,000
(2011: Nil) has been recognised in discontinued
operations for the year. At 31 December 2012, the
carrying values of patents of the Group is Nil (2011:
HK$16,327,000); the carrying value of patents of the
Company is Nil for the year (2011: Nil).
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4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(e)

(f)

Allowance for inventories

The Group perform regular review of the carrying
amounts of inventories with reference to aged
inventories analysis, expected future consumption
and management judgment. Based on this review,
write down of inventories will be made when the
carrying amounts of inventories decline below
their estimated net realisable value. Significant
judgment is required. In making this judgment,
the Company evaluates, amongst other factors,
the duration and extent and the means by which
the amount will be recovered. These estimates are
based on the current market condition and past
experience in sales of similar products. It could
change significantly as a result of changes. Due
to changes in technology and market conditions,
actual consumption may be different from estimation
and profit or loss could be affected by differences
in this estimation. During the year, the continuing
operations wrote down of inventories approximately
HK$1,982,000 (2011: HK$18,897,000). At
31 December 2012, the net book value of inventories
of the Group is approximately HK$26,384,000 (2011:
HK$64,009,000).

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgment
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions
and interpretation of tax rules. The Group and
the Company carefully evaluate tax implications
of transactions and tax provisions are set up
accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions
is reconsidered periodically to take into account all
changes in tax legislation. Details of taxation are set
out in note 11.
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4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

()

(8

Income taxes (Continuead)

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised for
unutilised tax losses and deductible temporary
differences. As those deferred tax assets can only be
recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
profit will be available against which the unused tax
credit can be utilised, management’s judgment is
required to assess the probability of future taxable
profits. Management’'s assessment is constantly
reviewed and additional deferred tax assets are
recognised if it becomes probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered. Details of deferred tax are set out in note
33.

Fair value of financial liabilities at fair value
through profit and loss

As disclosed in note 32, the fair value of the derivative
financial liabilities at the measurement date was
determined using option pricing models. Application
of option pricing models requires the Group to
estimate the prominent factors affecting the fair value,
including but not limited to, the expected life of the
derivative instruments and the expected volatility of
the market price.

Where the estimation on the abovementioned factors
is different from those previously estimated, such
differences will impact the fair value gain or loss of
the derivative financial instruments in the period in
which such determination is made.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(h) Estimate of fair value of land and buildings and
investment properties

As described in notes 18 and 19, the Group’s
land and buildings and investment properties
were revalued at the end of the reporting period
on an open market value basis by an independent
professional valuer. Such valuations were based on
certain assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty
and might materially differ from the actual results.
In making the judgment, the Group considers
information from current prices in an active market
for similar properties and uses assumptions that are
mainly based on market conditions existing at the
end of each reporting period.

(i) Impairment of interests in subsidiaries

Determining whether the investments in subsidiaries
are impaired requires an estimation of the future
cash flows expected to arise from the subsidiaries in
order to calculate the present value. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise.

During the year ended 31 December 2012,
impairment loss on Company’s investments in the
subsidiaries of approximately HK$11,258,000 (2011:
approximately HK$55,648,000) was recognised as
the directors of the Company are in the opinion that
the share of assets of the subsidiaries are less than
then investment cost. Details are set out in note 20.
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4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
()  Provision for long service payment

Certain of the Group’s and employees have completed
the required number of years of service to the Group
in order to be eligible for long service payments under
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance in the event
of the termination of their employment. The Group is
liable to make such payments in the event that such a
termination of employment meets the circumstances
specified in the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.
A provision is recognised in respect of the probable
future long service payments expected to be made.
The Group’s provision for long service payment is
determined with reference to statutory requirements,
the employees’ remuneration, their years of service
and age profile, and demographic assumptions.
The basis of estimation is reviewed on an on-going
basis and revised where appropriate. Any changes to
these assumptions will impact the carrying amount
of provision for long service payments and the results
and financial position of the Group.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group and the Company manage its capital to ensure
that entities in the Group and the Company will be able to
continue as a going concern while maximising the return
to stakeholders through optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s and the Company’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes bank borrowing disclosed in note 29, cash and
cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.
The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As a part of this review, the directors of
the Company consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. Based on the
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through new share issues
and share buy-backs as well as issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. &I H
(a) cCategories of financial instruments (@ E£MIESE
The Group
AEE
2012 2011
—F—=F —F—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Financial assets SREE
Available-for-sale investments AIHHERE -
Loans and receivables (including cash B REWERERBIEES
and cash equivalents) (MRE&EEY) 243,124
243,124
Financial liabilities tRERE
Liabilities measured at amortised cost R XA EZ BIE 175,954
Financial liabilities at fair value BAREEFAER
through profit and loss ZERmAE 5,908
181,862
The Company
AATF
2012 2011
—E——F —T—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBxT FET
Financial assets cHMEE
Available-for-sale investments AIHHERE -
Loans and receivables (including cash ~ER & EWER (BiEHE S
and cash equivalents) FIREEEY) 30,070
30,070
Financial liabilities tRERE

Liabilities measured at amortised cost

REHRAGTEZAE




Notes to the Financial Statements
TSR R MIRE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ==—F——

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
available-for-sale investments, trade and other
receivables, amounts due from former shareholders,
cash and cash equivalents, trade and other payables,
financial liabilities at fair value through profit and
loss and bank borrowing. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (interest rate risk, foreign
currency risk and other price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk.

The Company’s major financial instruments include
amounts due from subsidiaries, amounts due from
former shareholders, other payables and amounts
due to subsidiaries. Details of these are disclosed
in respective notes. The risk associated with these
financial instruments include credit risk and liquidity
risk.

The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. Management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank borrowing (see note 29
for details of this borrowing) and variable rate bank
deposits.

At 31 December 2012, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 10 basis points (2011: 10 basis
points) in interest rates for bank deposits and bank
borrowing, with all other variables held constant,
would have increased/decreased the Group’s loss
after taxation, increased/decreased the Group’s
retained profits by approximately HK$76,000 (2011:
decrease/increase the Group’s profit after tax and the
Group’s retained profits by approximately HK$55,000)
respectively. Other components of equity would not
be affected by the changes in interest rates.
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s losses for the
year (and retained profits) that would arise assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the
end of the reporting period and had been applied
to remeasure those financial instruments held by
the Group which expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk at the end of the reporting period.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for
2011. A 10 basis points (2011: 10 basis points)
increase or decrease is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

Foreign currency risk

The Group are exposed to currency risk primarily
through sales and purchases which give rise to
receivables, payables and bank balances and
borrowing that are denominated in a foreign currency
i.e. a currency other than the functional currency of
the operations to which the transactions relate. The
currencies giving rise to the risk are primarily United
States dollars (“USD”), RMB and KRW. The Group
ensure that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable
level, by buying or selling foreign currencies at
spot rates where necessary to address short-term
imbalances.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. £MIH (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MHEREEBERBRK (B)

policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continuead) 5 EBE (&)
Exposure to currency risk FTE ¥ 2 B8 /7 %
The following tables detailed the Group’s exposure at TRFINANEER RS RAEEL 2
the end of the reporting period to currency risk arising BEXREE - FERBERBEHEAGZ
from monetary assets and liabilities denominated MEEEB AN B BB 2 BB
in a currency other than the functional currency ERAEMEE - BHEZY - BR
of the entity to which they relate. For presentation SRVBTER  BER A EER
purpose, the amounts of the exposure are shown in T ABE o

HK$, translated using the spot rate at the end of the
reporting period.

The Group AEE
2012 2011

—EB-=F —E——5F
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE 8f& BE =R
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FAET FAET
usSD ETT 176,115 24,354
RMB AR 16,668 10,700
KRW B2 [E 29,829 94,702

222,612 129,756
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6.

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicated the instantaneous
change in the Group’s loss after taxation (and
retained profits), the Company’s profit after taxation
(and retained profits) that would arise if the foreign
exchange rates to which the Group have significant
exposure at the end of the reporting period had
changed at that date, assuming all other risk variables
remained constant. In this respect, it is assumed that
the pegged rate between the HK$ and the USD would
be materially unaffected by any changes in movement
in value of the USD against other currencies.

&M TR (&)
(b) MBEREEERRBR (&)

w5 AR (&)

DT

TRETASERARANHREHR
R EBAERINEERNE HE

BAKBERRRER (RREEN)
KA DB RSN (R RE & A)
ZABEE  BEREIEMEREHT
o BIME - DHRKREHEBZET
HEXTTER TG RRTTL Lt EHE
BEBZEMNEIMZINERTE -

The Group rEE
2012 2011
—E-—F —E——%F
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in foreign Effect on in foreign Effect on
exchange loss after exchange loss after
rates taxation rates taxation
INEETE R HERBIZ HNIE e I HERTLE
EH(THR) EBEZPE EH (TR aflzz®
FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
usD ETT 1.0% 1,265
(1.0)% (1,265)
RMB AR 2.0% 441
(2.0)% (441)
KRW B2 E 4.0% (1,498)
(4.0)% 1,498

Results of the analysis as presented in the above
table represent an aggregation of the instantaneous
effects on each of the group entities’ profit or loss
for the year and equity measured in the respective
functional currencies, translated into HK$ at the
exchange rate ruling at the end of the reporting
period for presentation purposes.
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to
remeasure those financial assets and liabilities held
by the Group which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis excludes differences that would result from
the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’s presentation currency.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for
2011.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties provided by the
Group is arising from the carrying amount of
respective recognised financing assets as stated in
the consolidated statements of financial position.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

The credit terms granted by the Group to its
customers generally range from 30 to 90 days. New
customers are normally required to trade on a cash
basis. Credit is offered to existing customers following
an established payment record. Individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which
the customer operates.

The Group do not obtain collateral from customers
for the years ended 31 December 2012 and 31
December 2011.
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. The default risk of the industry and
country in which customers operate also has an
influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent. At
the end of the reporting period, the Group has a
certain concentration of credit risk as 23% (2011:
7%) and 58% (2011: 27%) of the total trade and
bills receivables was due from the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers, respectively.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group have delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group review the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at the end of each reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group'’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical locations is mainly in Hong Kong for
2012 and the PRC for 2011, which accounted for
46% (2011: 48%) of the total trade receivables as at
31 December 2012.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the directors
of the Company considered the Company’s credit risk
is the same as the Group level as disclosed above.
For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company
does not have material credit risk as most of its
receivables are inter-company balances.
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s and the Company’s policies are to
regularly monitor its liquidity requirements to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Group manages
liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves,
banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash
flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial
assets and liabilities. The management also monitors
the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

The following tables detailed the Group’s and the
Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-
derivative financial liabilities based on the agreed
repayment terms. The tables have been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group and the Company can be required to pay. The
tables include both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate
curve at the end of the reporting period.

In addition, the following table details the Group’s
and the Company'’s liquidity analysis for its derivative
financial instruments. The tables have been drawn
up based on the undiscounted contractual net cash
(inflows) and outflows on derivative instruments
that settle on a net basis, and the undiscounted
gross (inflows) and outflows on those derivatives
that require gross settlement. When the amount
payable is not fixed, the amount disclosed has been
determined by reference to the projected interest
rates as illustrated by the yield curves existing at the
end of the reporting period.

(b)
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ZAWEHHR - ZRTIRAEE R
ARRANR P EHEACRA
BERZAMBARSRERELERE -
AR THNERASRERE - &
MERIBFBMERGFBZARET - K
BEIREBRT B ME AR Z MR MRS
& o

AN - TRFANAKB R ANRRITE
EMTEZRBESHNT  BRAF
BEEEZMETARMREORESF
BORAE) MRbhEENERER
ZUTETAERMBER ORAZE) &
MHEE - WENRIBETEE - KRB
RS ERERRZ MR MRS
$ o
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

ZFE+ZA=T+T—HIEFE

6. €MIER (&)
(b) MBEBREEBFERER (F)

Liquidity risk (Continued) REEL AR (&)
The Group REE
2012
—E-CF
After 1 year After 2 years Total
Within 1 year ~ but within but within undiscounted
or on demand 2 years 5years  cash flows Carrying
—ERZ —£% mEHR  KERRE amount
REX ERER BEFR TEsst BREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TR TEL TR TR
Non-derivative financial kiTESRERE
liabilities
Trade and other payables FENE S REMERR
Bank borrowing BIEE
Derivative — gross settlement  £74 - A%EEE
Financial liabilities at fair BOnEEMABR
value through profitand loss 74 REE
2011
—E——F
After 1 year  After 2 years Total
Within 1 year but within but within - undiscounted
or on demand 2 years Syears  cash flows Carrying
—FR —Fik mER  RERRS amount
BREX BEMER BERFR MEEE KEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET THT THL
Non-derivative financial kTEERER
liabilities
Trade and other payables BB S REMERR 101,992 - - 101,992 101,992
Bank borrowing FITIEE 77,226 - - 77,226 73,962
179,218 - - 179,218 175,954
Derivative - gross settlement  £74 - AELE
Financial liabilities at fair BARBEFAER
value through profitand loss 7 & REE 5,908 - - 5,908 5,908

In order to manage the above liquidity demands, at
31 December 2012, approximately HK$99,241,000
(2011: HK$109,710,000) of the Group’s assets are
held in cash net with restricted deposit respectively.

EEEEJ: /}\L@Jﬁfﬁﬁﬁ*
——f+ZA=+—8" $§%l

#799,241,0008 7L (=& — — % :
109710000/%7E)Z§F 3 Rl AT
T (KA ZBREITFR) TARFEH -
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. £MIH (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MHEREEBERBRK (B)
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REEL AR (&)
The Company ZRAFE]
2012
—E-Cf
Carrying
amount and
After 1 year After 2 years total
Within 1 year but within but within undiscounted
or on demand 2 years 5 years cash flow
—FRH —F# mER AEBRRE
BREX ERER BRER TEHG
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TET
Non-derivative financial FTELRER
liabilities
Amounts due to subsidiaries ~ JERHBARIFUA
Other payables Hi AR
2011
—T——F
Carrying
amount and
After 1 year After 2 years total
Within 1 year but within but within undiscounted
or on demand 2 years 5 years cash flow
—FA% —Fi& ME% KBRS
BREK EMER BREA MEBE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THL THL
Non-derivative financial ETELRER
liabilities
Amounts due to subsidiaries ~ JERHHBARIFUA - - ~ -
Other payables Hi AR - - - -
In order to manage the above liquidity demands, REBLFARBESFT R KT
at 31 December 2012, the Company controls the —ZF+=ZA=+—8 ' XQa)EH
dividend policy of the subsidiaries which has agreed MBARIZIREESR - ZEWE AR
to provide adequate funds for the Company to meet REMAARIREEHES  AER

in full its financial obligations as they fall due. FTEEIE B R AT -
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)
policies (Continued)

Fair values

Financial risk management objectives and

The fair value of financial assets and financial

liabilities are determined as follows:

° the fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities (excluding derivative

instruments) is determined in

accordance with

generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis; and

° the fair value of derivative

instruments is

calculated using quoted prices. Where such
prices are not available, a discounted cash flow

analysis using the applicable y

ield curve for the

duration of the instruments for non-optional
derivatives, and option pricing models for

optional derivatives.

The directors of the Company consider that the fair
values of other financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the financial statements
approximate to their corresponding carrying amounts
due to short-term or immediate maturity.

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated and the Company’s statements of

financial position.

6.

&M TR (&)

(b)

B EREEERRBR (F)

BAEE

TMEELEMBAIAABEERE
LI

s HieBMEENEBMARB (F
BROTETER) 2RAEBET
MRS REDIN + R

. ?}TEIE:Z’&;%E{EL}(%&E%
8o ERBEERBBERE
EJE?EFHM%E?J_’%IE:W% : Qfﬁ
BEGUEGRRER 22
HARETTITE %xﬁ%ﬁﬁfﬁ
At MBI OTAETAmS -
’&ﬁ{ﬁfﬁﬁ'ﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬂf”*{ﬁﬁ‘t

1TfhaT -

ARBIZEFRS  EYBHHRENIE
BIERA SR B S REEN TR

S ERLAEEEERE - HEGH
SR EL 1 IR -
Ei A RADNHBRN R R L
DA BIERE -
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. &BIHE (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) EABREMREEEERBR (8)
policies (Continued)

Fair values (Continued) NAEE ()

The following table provides an analysis of financial TREHYIERERIERAABEE

instruments that are measured subsequent to initial ZEMITEDH - WREBRAIBRAR

recognition at fair value, grouped into Level 1 to BEZIEERERFEFEZE -

3 based on the degree to which the fair value is

observable.

e Level 1 fair value measurements are those s F—EAnBEFENIRER
derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in REEXBEEERMS W
active market for identical assets or liabilities. B CRECHTHE) sHEAE -

e Level 2 fair value measurements are those s ZE_EAARBMEFENRER
derived from inputs other than quoted prices F—EBAERERENIINMHLE
included within Level 1 that are observable EXBEMEBAEBREZ2HA
for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as Er - B8 (AMERER) HE
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). % (AIRBER) 51515 -

e  Level 3 fair value measurements are those s ZE-EAARBEAENERM
derived from valuation techniques that include BEFETImEPE AL IEERA]
inputs for the assets or liability that are based BREMBHEBEcEN (FRE
on observable market data (unobservable BAER) TS -
inputs).

2012 2011
—E--F —E——F
Level 2 Level 2
EZfE F_E
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Financial liabilities at fair value BAREBERFAEBR
through profit and loss ZEmBE 5,908

There were no transfers between level in both years.

Included in consolidated income statement is an
amount of approximately HK$5,908,000 (2011:
HK$544,000) fair value gain related to the financial
liabilities at fair value through profit and loss held at
the end of the reporting period.

e

A
Bz

FERNE BRI EER -

RABRR AR REHRRE
BonBEFABRSZZEREE

Z A BEWEA)5,908,00078 T
(ZZ——4F : 544,000/ 7T) °
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7.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and
sale of electronic components and properties investment.
The Group’s operations are divided into three reportable
segments: composite components segment, unit electronic
components segment and properties investment segment.
No operating segments identified by the chief operating
decision maker have been aggregated in arriving at the
reportable segments of the Group.

The chief operating decision maker assesses the
performance of the operating segment primarily based
on segment profit. The Group has only two reportable
segments before: composite components segment and
unit electronic components segment. Subsequent to the
completion of the Group Reorganisation as mentioned in
note 1 above, the chief operating decision maker considers
the performance of the properties investment as a new
reporting segment in the current year based on its relative
significance in terms of turnover, profit and assets value
attributable to the Group. So, the Group’s performance of
properties investment was reclassified from the unallocated
segment to properties investment segment.

During the year, the Group paid a special dividend by
way of Distribution In Specie of shares in a subsidiary, Jay
Star, in which its subsidiaries carried out the composite
components and unit electronic components operations.
This resulted in the Group disposing of a separate major
geographical area of operations in Korea, as the result from
composite components and unit electronic components
operations in Korea of the Group for the years ended
31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011 are only
contributed by the subsidiaries of Jay Star. Details of the
discontinued operations are set out in note 12.

S EA R

AEBETBRERENHEETTHRY
ERE - AEEZZENR=EF 28D
B EATHESR  BEUEFTHSER
MEREDH - EERAEE AT Z2HDH
B &SEERREMHBEED ML
RTIAGHE -

TREERRETIZR Ba MG EE
DEZ KRB - NEE 2 AHEBMERE D
B EAETH OB REMEFITHOE -
REKMEIMANSEESZAR - ZRXY
EREUNAKERIGERE  EHIRE
EBENEHEZN  FELERKER
HERFME N B ERI - Bt - A%
Bz MERERRSIERE DD BT

AREBRAFZRBEYDIRNHE QA
Jay Star (Kt B AR EEE T REM
TTHER) BRODOENIRMEFRIRE - B
REEBRBE_ZE——_FR_T——F
T-A=T—HLFERBENESTH
KB EF T RF < KAEERE Jay Star
MHMEBAR EEBAKRELE—EE—
TEME (BE) XK -  ARERKRLEE
EBFHBHNME 12 -
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7.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7.

Segment turnover and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s turnover and
results by reportable and operating segments:

Year ended 31 December 2012

Continuing operations

RECEXE
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SEER (B
DHEXBEREER

NTRARE 2 EXRBRFERAIZERD
BRRTYEZ AT -

BE-ZE-—_F+-A=T-HLEE

Composite Unit electronic Properties
components  components  investment
ant BUETRH E3E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THR THR THR

Discontinued
operations
BAILE Eliminations Total
fexh B @t
Total
it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR Tn Tn

Turnover 2EH

Segment (loss) profit 8 (B8) &7

Unallocated operating ~ KEHEE%
income (expenses) WA (i)
- Others -Eft

Finance costs BERA

Loss before taxation B AEE
Taxation WA

Loss for the year EEFE




1 32 Forebase International Holdings Limited
BB R R A R A A

Notes to the Financial Statements
s e

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ=—F——F+-_A=+—HIFE

7.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7.

Segment turnover and results (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s turnover and
results by reportable and operating segments:

Year ended 31 December 2011

Continuing operations
RELEEH

SEER (B
SEWEXRBERESE (H)

AT RARE 2 EXRBRFERAIZERD
BRRTYEZ AT -

BE_ZT——F+-_A=t—HLFE

Composite  Unit electronic Properties
components  components investment
Banh BuETH WERE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TAL TAL TAL

Discontinued
operations
B Eliminations Total
Total
i

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TiEn TR TR TiEn

Turnover 2B 293,655 274275 977 568907 26,971 (37,350) 558 528
Segment (loss) profit 28 (BiE) &7 (28,400) (26,216) 3517 (51,099) (9,085) - (60,184)
Unallocated operating ~ A<&EAEEE

income (expenses) WA (i)

- Others -Hfp 3,088 (293) 2,79
Finance costs A - _ _
Loss before taxation BEAER (48011) (9,378) (57,389)
Taxation #E 4010 69 4079
Loss for the year FEER (44.001) (9,30) (53310)

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described
in note 3. Segment (loss) profit represents the (loss from)
profit earned by each segment without allocation of part
of other income (expenses) and finance costs. This is the
measure reported to the chief operating decision maker
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

A28 et RRERNKE Z @5
R (MM E3prat) HE - 288 (E518) 4
MIEE SRR (BR) FAREr - i
EOBE D 2 EMmBA () REEK
Kol HAERBEERREREREER
BB RRIRFEZAE ©
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments for the years ended
31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011:

o all assets are allocated to reportable segments other
than cash and cash equivalents, intangible assets,
goodwill, part of other receivables and amounts due
from shareholders. Assets used jointly by reportable
segments are allocated on the basis of the production

capacity; and

o all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments
other than part of other payables, financial liabilities
at fair value through profit and loss, bank borrowing

and deferred tax liabilities.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and

liabilities by reportable segments:

Year ended 31 December 2012

Composite Unit electronic

7.

Annual Report 2012
ZE—FFR

SERE R (E)

SHEERER
REBEE-_T——FKR-_ZFT—F+=A
=t HLEFE  REESMRANES
DEBZ EDEIR :

e FIABENREZEFZHHE - HEek
REEEY  BREE BE - 95
L {th i UK BR 3K S PR UR IR SR R IE BR A ©
AE2BDMBHEACEENRERES
fic : &

s MMBRBENEEFZ2HNE - MoK
RN - RAARBETARSEZ
THMEBE  RITEEARELEHRR
ARSI ©

NTAAEE 2 EEEBEZAI2HD 0
PrfE2 2T -

BE-_ZE——HF4+-A=+—HIEEE

Properties
components investment  Consolidated
BUEfH MERE o)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FTEx FEx

components
Al
HK$’'000
TR
Segment assets DEEE
Unallocated assets KEPEREE
— Bank balances and cash - SRITEHREES
Others Hith
Consolidated assets REBE
Segment liabilities SEHEE
Unallocated liabilities REDEBE
— Bank borrowing - RITIEE
— Others - Hi

meRE

Consolidated liabilities
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DERER (&)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) THEERER (B)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and LWTAREBE 2 EERABRIRAIZHD
liabilities by reportable segments: Fr{EZ 4 -
Year ended 31 December 2011 2T ——F+_A=t+—HLEFE
Composite  Unit electronic Properties
components components investment  Consolidated
wAETH BUEFMH MEHE o)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FH&T FET FET
(Restated)
(251)
Segment assets DEPEE 164,015 173,585 29,949 367,549
Unallocated assets REDBEE
- Bank balances and cash - RITEBRER S - - - 110,182
Others Hit - - - 75,290
Consolidated assets REEE 553,021
Segment liabilities waE 42,871 53,290 52 96,213
Unallocated liabilities ﬂii‘“”ﬁEE@ &
— Bank borrowing - RITIEE - - - 73,962
— Others - Ei - - - 58,829

Consolidated liabilities REEE 229,004
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. TEER (&)
Other segment information Hitssr ZBE R
Amount included in the measure of segment profit or loss AT RETESEaM BB BEEM
or segment assets: FFAZREE -
Year ended 31 December 2012 BE-ZE——F+-A=1+—-HLEE
Discontinued
operations
Continuing operations BRI Total
BELSEER HEETS Eh
Composite ~ Unit electronic Properties
components ~ components Investment Unallocated Total
el BLETIH NERE AR &t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn

Additions to non-current assets TFBIEREVAE 4,980 41,207
Depreciation and amortisation 7 &4 8,758 14,734
Gain on disposal of property,  EWE 3

plant and equipment Rk hE (166) (166)
Increase In fair value REME DA EBEN

of investment properties (4,292) (4,292) (4,292)
Impairment loss recognised ~ #B{FEAZ LI REF
on land and buidings AL HERR

held for own use 2,178
Impairment loss recognised ~ EFEERTAZREEE

on infangible assets 5,929
Impaiment loss recognised ~ ERE S REMEFHED

on frade and other receivables 2 HERE 1,365

Reversal of impairment loss PV GEYE 5 R L t08R3
recognised on trade BT RERR
and other receivables

Allowance for (reversal FERE (4BER)
of allowance for) inventories

Decrease in fair value BOABEGARR
of financial liabilties LERAR
atfair value AREERD

through profit and loss (5,908) (5,908) (5,908)
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. STEHER (&)
Other segment information (Continued) Hit o #ER (&)
Amount included in the measure of segment profit or loss AT RETE5EaM BB BEEM
or segment assets: FTAZEER ¢
Year ended 31 December 2011  E - ——F+-A=+—HILFE
Discontinued
operations
Continuing operations BRI Total
FECEER BEEH st
Composite Unit electronic Properties
components components Investment Unallocated Total
el BUETRH NERE EIY &3t

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
T T TR TR TR T TR

Additions to non-current assets FEIEREIAE 642 593 - - 123 73084 74319
Depreciation and amortisation  TEREH 6,705 6,189 - - 12894 172 14620
Gain on disposal of property, 5% B

plant and equipment Rk s (3,087) - - (53) (3,140) - (3,140)
Increase i fair value BREWE D BEEN

of investment properties - - (2,586) - (2,586) - (2,586)
Impaiment loss recognised GBS ZHERE

on goodwill - - - 587 587 - 587
Impairment loss recognised ~~ ERE S RERE

on trade and other receivables B HEEE 18 138 - - 156 - 156
Reversal of impairment loss PG E 5 Rt

recognised on trade BALAERE

and other receivables (219) (598) - (40) (853) - (853)
Allowance for (reversal FEEE (RBER)

of allowance for) inventories 6,903 11,9% - - 18897 2224 21,121
Decrease in fai value EAnBEAER

of financial izbiles ZeRaf

atfair value AR BERD

through profit and loss - - - (544) (544) - (544)
Note: Non-current assets excluded goodwill, intangible assets and Miax ERBEETRENE  BEREEREEY

deposits for purchase of property, plant and equipment. ¥ WBERREIZS -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ=—F——F+-_A=+—HIFE
7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DERER (&)
Geographical information HE 5 &5 &
The Group’s operations are principally located in Hong AEECEEFTZMNRES BRI KPP
Kong, Korea and other parts of the PRC. EAhib[E o
The Group’s revenue from continuing operations from AEERBINBEP 2 B REEEBF KR
external customers and information about its non-current REBHIIERBEEZ BRHIRERE (B
assets by geographical location of the assets excluding IR E B BAERIN) HIRA BS540
those relating to discontinued operations are detailed N
below:
Turnover Non-current assets
BER FRBEE
2011 2012 2011
25 —E——F —E--F —T—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FAT FEx FAT
(Restated)
(&251)
PRC (other than Hong Kong) B (&/BRKIN) 261,106 57,065
Hong Kong B 121,620 8,194
Korea A5 120,090 154,854
Others Hit 66,091 -
568,907 220,113
Information about major customers FREEERPZEN
For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group’s HE-_T——F+-_A=+—HLFE"
customer base has one customer (2011: Nil) with whom AEEZEPHEAE—R2EF (Z2——
transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group’s turnover. F /| HEXFZHBEBAEEEERE L
Turnover from this customer amounted to approximately 10% - REZBFPEBREE THREMNE
HK$71,743,000 (2011: HK$40,330,000) from composite T I AL A T1,743,0005E T (=
components and unit electronic components. = ——4F : 40,330,000 7T) °
8. TURNOVER 8. BXEH

Turnover represents the sales value of goods supplied to
customers less goods returned and trade discounts and
rental income under operating leases.

LSEBIORETEPZERIHEEE "
HBRRENE ST - AREEHETZ
HEWA o

137



1 38 Forebase International Holdings Limited
BB R R A R A A

Notes to the Financial Statements
s e

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ=—F——F+-_A=+—HIFE

9. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 9. Hihl AR =
2012 2011
—E-—F —T—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Continuing operations BELEER
Interest income from bank deposits RITHERZFBHA 395
Other interest income HAnF S A -
Gain on disposal of property, MEYE - e MR
plant and equipment Z Wz 3,140
Scrap sales BERISHE 305
Decrease in fair value of financial liabilites ~ E AR BETAERZ SR
at fair value through profit and loss BBz AR EBERY 544
Increase in fair value of investment properties RE&EWZE 2 A EEE N 2,586
Freight charge charged to customers MEBEFRE EE -
Others Eh 919
7,889
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. BB MK
2012 2011
—E-=F T
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FExT FAT
Continuing operations =Y pedF 30
Interest charges on: FEZH
Bank loans wholly repayable within 1 year R—FERNEEZFRITER 589

Less: amounts capitalised B BEENMEeEE (589)
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11. TAXATION 11. HBIE
2012 2011
—E——F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
(Restated)
(&%)
Continuing operations =Y pedF 30
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEERMNEH
Provision for the year NEEREE -
Over-provision in prior years BT FE RS (9,652)
(9,652)
PRC Corporate Income Tax PR EFREBH
Provision for the year NEZHE 1,009
Under-provision in prior years BEFERETR 172
1,181
Korean Corporate Income Tax BEEFREH
Under-provision in prior years BEFEREBTZ 655
655
Deferred tax (note 33) EEBE (M15E33)
(Credited)/charged for the year RNEFE (5tA) /X8 3,806
(4,010)

Notes:

For the years ended 31 December 2012 and 31 December
2011, no Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided in the
financial statements as the Group has no assessable profits for
both years. Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profits for both years.

Provisions for the PRC Corporate Income Tax for Shenzhen
Kwang Sung Electronics Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Kwang Sung”)
and Kwang Sung Electronics Trading (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
are calculated at 25% (2011: 25%) and 25% (2011: 25%) of
estimated assessable profits for the year respectively.

The Korea Branch operated in Korea are subject to Korean
Corporate Income Tax. The basic Korean Corporate Tax rates
for the years ended 31 December 2012 and 31 December
2011 are 11% on the first KRW200,000,000 of the tax base
and 22% for the excess. In addition to the basic tax rate, there
is a resident surcharge of 10% on the income tax liability. No
provision for taxation has been made as there is no assessable
profit for the years ended 31 December 2012 and 31 December
2011.

HRAEEHZ—_T——F+_A=1+—H
FoZ——F+-A=t+—RIREEYE
FERBLR A - AR B SRR ED
BHIEH - BRFERIIRFEE AT ERE
%HZ 16.5% & -

FRIEEEFERAT (DRYIKE]) Kk
EBTHS () BRARZHEBRR
SRR E T AR E M ERTORR 2 B
25% (ZZ——%F : 25%) Kk25% (ZF——
F:25%) FHHE -

RSS2 TEE 5 A R AR B %A
BH -HE—ZT——FR_FT——F+=A
=+—HILFE HEABEMEHRE AL
7 B 200,000,0008% B & 11% * i 2 217D
Al B22% o REARFLEIN - MBS &
EHEKI0%ERKI N - REBEE=ZF—=
ER—B——F+ - A=+—HIREER
%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁéﬂ R B I A A/ S T
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11. TAXATION (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

The Group carries out manufacturing activities in the PRC
through its subsidiary, Shenzhen Kwang Sung and under the
terms of a processing agreement with a third party factory, and
has substantial involvement in these manufacturing activities
undertaken in the PRC. The profits earned are thus considered
to be partly arising and derived from the manufacturing
activities carried out in the PRC and partly from other activities
performed in Hong Kong. Accordingly, the Group claimed a
50:50 offshore concession in respect of Hong Kong Profits
Tax which had been agreed with the Hong Kong Inland
Revenue Department (the “HKIRD”) in the year of assessment
1999/2000.

In 2008, the HKIRD enquired the Group the basis of its 50:50
offshore claims for the years of assessment 2001/02 to 2006/07
in relation to the Group’s manufacturing activities carried out in
the PRC, and issued an additional assessment of approximately
HK$3,318,000 for the year of assessment 2001/02 on the basis
that the Group was not eligible to the 50:50 offshore claims
for profits derived from manufacturing activities carried out by
Shenzhen Kwang Sung. The Company lodged an objection
against the additional assessment and purchased a tax reserve
certificate of approximately HK$3,318,000 as demanded by the
HKIRD in 2008.

In March 2009, the HKIRD issued another demand note for
additional tax payable for the year of assessment 2002/03
amounted to approximately HK$6,423,000 in relation to the
above 50:50 offshore claims. The Company lodged an objection
against the additional assessment and purchased a tax reserve
certificate of approximately HK$6,423,000 as demanded by the
HKIRD in the year ended 31 December 2009.

In March 2010, the HKIRD issued another demand note for
additional tax payable for the year of assessment 2003/04
amounted to approximately HK$9,334,000 in relation to the
above 50:50 offshore claims. The Company lodged an objection
against the additional assessment and purchased a tax reserve
certificate of approximately HK$9,334,000 as demanded by the
HKIRD in the year ended 31 December 2010.

In March 2011, the HKIRD issued another demand note for
additional tax payable for the year of assessment 2004/05
amounted to approximately HK$4,305,000 in relation to the
above 50:50 offshore claims. The Company lodged an objection
against the additional assessment and purchased a tax reserve
certificate of approximately HK$4,305,000 as demanded by the
HKIRD in the year ended 31 December 2011.
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11. HIR (&)
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11. TAXATION (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

The Group’s operation has remained unchanged since
1999/2000, in view of the stringent approach adopted by the
HKIRD in treating 50:50 manufacturing offshore profits claim,
the Group had made provision for the previously 50:50 offshore
claims of approximately HK$35,996,000 during the year
ended 31 December 2009. In February 2012, HKIRD and the
Company have reached a compromise settlement in relation
to the Company’s taxation affairs for the years of assessment
2001/02 to 2007/08 (the “Period”). Based on revised notices
of assessment and letters received from HKIRD, net Profits
Tax payable for the Period has been revised to approximately
HK$24,239,000. As the Company had made provision for
Hong Kong Profits Tax of approximately HK$33,891,000
for the Period, the excessive tax provision of approximately
HK$9,652,000 made in prior years had been reversed in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 December 2011.

On 30 December 2011, the tax representative of the Group sent
a compromising letter to the HKIRD for the settlement of the
above tax demand notes. The HKIRD agreed to the compromise
and issued tax returns to the Group in February 2012. In 2012,
the tax reserve certificates of approximately HK$23,380,000
included in other receivables had been fully utilised to settle the
above mentioned tax payables.

Pursuant to a Deed of Indemnity dated 23 June 2003, two
former shareholders, Mr. Yang and Kwang Sung Korea, Ltd.
would indemnify the Group for any tax liabilities for period prior
to 30 June 2003. Out of the above tax liabilities of approximately
HK$24,239,000, a sum of tax expenses of approximately
HK$8,478,000 should be therefore borne by the two former
shareholders, details are set out in note 41(a)(ii).

In 2012, the Group is arranging advanced pricing arrangement
with Shenzhen Local Tax Bureau concerning Shenzhen Kwang
Sung’s transactions with group companies. During the process,
the Shenzhen Local Tax Bureau demanded additional tax
in respect of prior years transfer pricing adjustment. Under-
provision of approximately HK$1,332,000 has been made for
the 3 years ended 31 December 2009, 2010 and 2011. The
amount was fully settled during the year. The transfer pricing
assessment for 2012 is still in negotiation process.
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Annual Report 2012
ZE—FFR

1. HE @)
GERNC)

(b)

(&)

$%l§ NN/ ZEETFUURZEE
HIFETE - BE RE BB BEEE50:50
§%¥F%%ﬁﬂ%ﬁ$%i%WEW$
% MASREBRRIBEZS0:508EFBRER
HE-_TTNF+-_A=1+—HILFEE
1 #935,996,000 B L E# - KT ——F
—R EABBRERARBR-TZT—
E_IBREEE_ZT+ T N\IREE
(TFZEM ) ER — BT RAMEE S R - BIK
USR] 2 SR B R B B ARG B2 1K
% B HREEMSZAEHFEEREITEN
mzwow%x HARARQ R B shaz AR
& 78 FI15 B 8 48 49 33,891,00078 7T © #R
BEFEFE 2 BEENEREE 49,652,000
BrLEREEEE—T——F+=A=1+—
BItFEZGAEEBREAR °

R=_F——&+—_HA=+H " $’i@ﬁf§?1ﬁ
RABEGSRAEN DR EREF
i - BRBE RS aZ;zTﬁz’; WH—F
——F_ARAREEELRE R _F——
F - BE#H23,380, OOO/%KZM%%R%‘ GHA

FEWEABERRR) B 2R ES M BT
I o

BEABA-ZEZE=F"A=-+=HZHR

REBEZL) W%Hk?%ﬁi&%ltiﬁ
R-ZBZ=F XA =T HAHBZEMFH
BEBERASEELRE - Bt - £ L4
24,239,000 8 T 2 MIBEEF - BEOA
8,478,000 7 7T .2 5t T8 7l % J& F3 7% W 4 AT AR
RAME - BRAFIBESIRMEE 41(a))

R_T——&F  AKEERYH 5% B
HEBRIILEREBRR 2252 BAIE
ExH - BEP  RIMFRE R BE
FREBHGHE 2 BB ERINBINIBIRK
BE_TTNE — T FTER_FT——F
FoA=+-BIE=EEE  BRERTR
#49/31,332,0008 7T c —T——F - BHHE
BEHERI R Z B R DASE -

141



Forebase International Holdings Limited
REBRZERERAD R

Notes to the Financial Statements
B TSR R MIRE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ=—==

ZFE+ZA=T+T—HIEFE

11. TAXATION (Continued) 1. BIE (&)
The taxation for the years can be reconciled to the loss BEFEHBERGEBER P ERTAEE
before taxation per the consolidated income statement as ZEERIAT -
follows:
2012 2011
—B-—=fF —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAETT
(Restated)
(&%)
Loss before taxation BRI AIEER B
from continuing operations FHEISE XS (48,011)
Notional tax on loss before taxation, ?EE”TH‘H FATIS AR
calculated at the rates applicable to profit Fuf ERAREAE
in the tax jurisdictions concerned [S%TRHI BB BEMIE (6,271)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses PAIBRAZR T E T Ak
for tax purpose X M2 4,477
Tax effect of non-taxable income BARIERE T = HERD
for tax purpose WAZ BB 2 (8)
Tax effect of unused tax loss BURERIEARM S MR
and other temporary differences R ABARIAEE
not recognised for deferred tax purposes N E bR = RE
2GR 6,617
Under/(over)-provision in prior years BEFERETIR
(FBEERAE) (8,825)
Taxation for the year (relating to REEHIE
continuing operations) (BRBELEER) (4,010)
Details of the deferred taxation are set out in note 33. BRI 2 BN HIEE33 ©
12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 12. BERLEREETR
As described in note 1 above, the Privateco Group W EXHIFLATM - AARREBR S

was distributed to the Record Date Shareholders on
11 December 2012. Thereafter, the Group is principally
engaged in the Retained Businesses and the businesses
operated by the Privateco Group (i.e. Distributed
Businesses) have been classified as discontinued

operations.

——F+ZAt+—BREHEARREELD
& o 18 - AREEERREREES > A
ARBISBERENER (AEDIKER) #
FIRER EEEET -
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12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued) 12.

The loss for the period/year from the discontinued
operations is analysed as follows:

Annual Report 2012
ZE—FFR

B IERERER (4

$HHF3/¢ REBRIEEER 2 BB
DT :

1/1/2012- Year ended

11/12/2012 31/12/2011

—E-CfF H=

—RA—HZE —T——%

—F--f +-A=t+—H

+=A+—H IFFE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Loss of the composite components AERfES,FE Jay Star 28
and unit electronic components operations ~ Z# A& Tl R ERIE T

of Jay Star Group for the period/year T TR E 1R (9,309)

The results of the Jay Star Group for the period from
1 January 2012 to 11 December 2012, which have been
included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income/income statement, were as follows:

Jay Star REIR—FT——F—H—HZE=
——F+-_A+—HHBZEE (B
ERiZe2ENEER TBaEK) T

=
=<
e

1/1/2012- Year ended

11/12/2012 31/12/2011

—E-—F HE

~A-BE  —T——%

—2-=% +-H=1+—H

+=A+—H IEFE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET TFHT

Revenue Was 26,971
Cost of sales SHERCAR (26,121)
Gross profit EH 850
Other income HA 10,035
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAZ (1,377)
Administrative expenses ITBHX (5,141)
Research and development expenses R (5,762)
Other operating expenses HAgLE R (7,983)
Loss before taxation PR Al ES 18 (9,378)
Taxation (deferred taxation) 18 CGRERIR) 69
Loss for the period/year RNER, FEEE (9,309)
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12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued) 12. BERIEBEETR (4
Loss for the period/year from discontinued operations NEE FERBERIERCEER 2B
include the following: BIETY
1/1/2012- Year ended
11/12/2012 31/12/2011
—E-CF HE
—B—HZ —T——F
2§ F-A=1—H
+=At+—H HFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
TAT FAT
Interest income from bank deposits TERZHFERA 131
Other interest income ﬁﬁﬂﬂ%”ﬁl?\ -
Auditors’ remuneration ZEREN BN & 21
Minimum lease payments under operating leases & FHE T~ v HEFAE (I
— hire of properties - HRmE 532
Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration BIKA (BfEWEL14
disclosed in note 14) FitBEcEEME)
— salaries, wage, allowance -¥e - I& - ER
and other benefits in kind K E A B WtE T 8,223
— retirement scheme contributions —RIRETEI 2 K 645
8,868
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense BRBRZ 2 FERA 26,121
Amortisation of intangible assets B A EEH 1,168
Impairment loss recognised on intangible assets  FLE A EHER 2 MIEEE
(included in other operating expenses) (FIAEMEERR) -
Impairment loss recognised on land REEEERz T REF
and buildings for own use BRZFEEE
(included in other operating expenses) (FrTAEMLERFAY) -
Net foreign exchange losses BE SRR R -
Allowance for inventories (included in cost of sales) F & (FH ASHERA) 2,224
Depreciation e 696
Less: amount recorded under government grant & : BR824 5 (69)
Amount charged to the consolidated RIFEBRRTXIHE SR
income statement 627
Interest charges on: FERX :
Bank loans wholly repayable within 1 year AR—ERZHEE
ZIRITER 639
Less: amounts capitalised A Vi N | (639)
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12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued) 12. BRLEREXH (B

Cost of inventories includes approximately HK$10,148,000
(2011: HK$1,712,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation
and minimum lease payments in respect of rented
premises of which amounts are also included in respective
total amounts disclosed separately above.

During the year, Jay Star Group contributed approximately
HK$39,801,000 outflows (2011: HK$26,195,000 outflows)
to the Group’s net operating cash flows, approximately
HK$33,908,000 outflows (2011: HK$73,095,000 outflows)
in respect of investing activities and approximately
HK$65,529,000 inflows (2011: HK$ 113,422,000 inflows)
in respect of financing activities.

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of Jay
Star Group at the date of the Distribution In Specie are
disclosed in note 38.

FERABEEE THRA - e KHE
EMERKAENRE A4 10,148,000
BT (ZZT——%:1,712,000/7T) ° &
LS RE[ERFTALRSHIEE S ER

FW - Jay StarE B AL EZEFRE
B BL4939,801,0008 TRt (ZB——
F 126,195,000 T t) » MIKEEE)
B4 33,908,0005%‘ ThRb(ZE——
£ 1 73,095,000 Tim i) REatE g e
FR4165,529,0008 TR A (Z&——4F :
113,422,000 TR A) °

Jay Star BV BERBEREMHIKE B
2 BREE TR M FE 38 155 -
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13. LOSS FOR THE YEAR

2T

ZFE+ZA=T+T—HIEFE

13. AEEGE

2012 2011
—E--F —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Loss for the year from continuing operations — ZN4F 2 3 B 13 A8 48 & 2 75
is arrived at after charging (crediting): 2 EEEkr (GTA) -
Continuing operations BEREER
Auditors’ remuneration ZERTN S 629
Minimum lease payments for rented KEMRET c&EBERK
premises under operating leases - THRMmE 4,671
Gross rental income less outgoing LW ALBEE (FOFR 8
of HK$149,000 (2011:HK$49,000) 149,00078 7T
(ZT—%F:
49,0007 7)) (928)
Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration 8 AR (‘B F#ERFE 14
disclosed in note 14) FiRECEEME)
— salaries, wage, allowance, - e IE - #EEL
long service payment RHRE®
and other benefits in kind MEMEYEF 76,129
— retirement scheme contributions —RIRETEI 2 R 4,617
80,746
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense R AR X Z F &K A 544,182
Impairment loss recognised on goodwill HEEER 2 REEE
(included in other operating expenses) (FTAEMEERS) 5,857
Impairment loss recognised on trade HIEWE 5 & H A AR
and other receivables (included in R 2R EEE
other operating expenses) (FTAEMELERAR) 156
Reversal of impairment loss recognised BBt e E 5 K HAb
on trade and other receivables R RAERR 2 B EE 18
(included in other operating expenses) (FTAEMEERS) (853)
Net foreign exchange losses BE 5 518 5 5 726
Allowance for inventories FERE
(included in cost of sales) (FFASHERKA) 18,897
Depreciation e 12,825
Less: amount recorded under B U HEE TER1S
government grant 2% -
Amount charged to the consolidated S SRR = Eatda b |
income statement x| 12,825
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13. LOSS FOR THE YEAR (Continued) 13. AEEBE (B
Cost of inventories includes approximately HK$51,651,000 FEXABEHEETKA TERA KA
(2011: HK$53,063,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation EYMESKEEENZKBEBERL 51,651,000
and minimum lease payments in respect of rented BT (ZZF——4% : 53,063,000587T) ° &
premises, of which amounts are also included in the LR AR A ERDFIKRE 2 & HE
respective total amounts disclosed separately above. EEEA °
Minimum lease payments include an amount of EREEENREREHEEEIRE 24
approximately HK$1,739,000 (2011: HK$642,000) for 1,739,000/ 7 (=& ——4F : 642,0007%
staff quarters which is also included and disclosed in staff TC) ' ZERENEIEMEEEE TRARA -

costs.
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14. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 14. EEME
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 RIBERB RGBS 16K EREECE
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: EMET
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Retirement Total
Directors’ in kind scheme £y
fees ¥4 - 2Bt contributions 2012
EEHe REVEFN BAFEMR 2 —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Yang Jai Sung (note 1) REESE (D)
Mr. Lee Kyu Young (note 1) FEREE (D)
Mr. Hong Sang Joon (note 2) SR A (Fif5E2)
Mr. Leung Kin Pang (note 3)  22B5%c 4 (FiIaE3)
Mr. Li Zhi (note 3) FHREE (HE3)
Mr. Ronald Lew Podlas (note 3) B1&& %4 (FiFE3)
Mr. Shen Ke (note 3) BT E (FFE3)
Mr. Shen Yong (note 5) BRELE (HFED)
Mr. Xu Li Jian (note 3) R B (FHEE3)
Non-executive director FHITES

Mr. Yang Ho Sung (note 1) ReERRAE (BHFEL)

Independent BUFHITES
non-executive directors

Dr. Kim Chung Kweon (note 1) & IE#EI&E+ (K3F1)

Dr. Han Byung Joon (note 1) BREE L (FIFE1)

Mr. Kim Chan Su (note 1) SERTE (HFED)

Mr. Yu Lei (note 4) RELRE (M:E4)
Dr. Jiang Ying (note 4) et (fisrd)

Ms. Zhang Cui Lan (note 4)  REBEE 2L (FiIiE4)
Mr. Ernst Rudolf Zimmermann @& 3044 (FizE5)
(note 5)
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14. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (Continued) 14. EEME (B)
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Retirement Total
Directors’ in kind scheme BET
fees ¥4 - #BL contributions 2011
ExHe REMEN R EIER —T——f
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Yang Jai Sung REERE - 1,993 12 2,005
Mr. Lee Kyu Young FEREE - 944 14 958
Non-executive director FHTES
Mr. Yang Ho Sung 2t R 200 447 - 647
Independent BYFHTES
non-executive directors
Dr. Kim Chung Kweon SIFEELT 88 - - 88
Dr. Han Byung Joon BRBELT 98 - - 98
Mr. Kim Chan Su SERTLE 98 19 - 117
484 3,403 26 3,913
Note 1:  The directors resigned on 7 January 2013. Mzl : ZEEFN-_T—=F—A+tHEHE-
Note 2:  The director was appointed on 20 January 2012. Mizk2 : ZEER T —F—A-+HEZR(F-
Note 3:  The directors were appointed on 17 December 2012. FisE3 : g%% RZE——F+=-A+tHE
< { o)
Note 4:  The directors were appointed on 7 January 2013. Miztd: ZEESER-_T—=F—AtREZRF-
Note 5:  The directors were appointed on 18 January 2013. BisES : %%ﬁ%f%:g—ii—ﬂ +N\HEZ
EE °
Mr. Yang Jai Sung is also the Chief Executive of the REEFXRENMBARRRZITRBE - kit
Company and his emoluments disclosed above include BT HEMeEREFRTRAR MRS
those for services rendered by him as the Chief Executive. BR#% < B < o
No directors waived any emoluments in the years ended 31 BE-_Z——Fk-_ZF——F+=A4
December 2012 and 31 December 2011. No emoluments =+—BLEFE  BTEESRETM M
were paid to the directors as inducement to join or upon o HE_ZE——FRFE——F+=A
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office in =t+—HILFE MERESZAHS -
the years ended 31 December 2012 and 31 December AREREMASIRIMAREB K IER

2011. BER 2 fH1E -
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15. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 15. AZmeHAL

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, hEmEmHFALTH  HP=% (ZF——
three (2011: two) were directors of the Company whose F:MA) RARAES  HMeE R E
emoluments are disclosed in note 14. The emoluments of N EE AL - AttmE (=T ——
the remaining two (2011: three) individuals were as follows: F:=F) &Zam AT zMeEINIT
2012 2011
—E--F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FET TFHT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e FEAREYREF 2,847
Retirement scheme contributions RRET IR 38
2,885
No emoluments were paid to the five highest paid HE_ZZ——fk=F—F+=H
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the =+—HIEFE  BERAEZSFHMA
Group or as compensation for loss of office for the years T AME - AREREIMAIRIIAZR
ended 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011. SERSIERREB HE -
The numbers of highest paid individuals whose hEmERFTMNA T HEEEHT|AT -
remuneration fell within the bands set out below is as
follow:
2012 2011
=B —E——F
Number of Number of
individual individual
AB AZ
Nil - HK$1,000,000 £% 1,000,000/ 7T 3
HK$ 1,000,000 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,000/ 72

1,500,000 77T -
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16. DIVIDENDS

Pursuant to the approval by the shareholders of the
Company at the extraordinary general meeting held on
5 December 2012, a special dividend by way of the
Distribution In Specie of Jay Star Group was distributed
to the shareholders of the Company, amounted to
HK$111,773,000. Details of the assets and liabilities
distributed are set out in note 38.

Except for the above, no dividend was paid or proposed
during 2012, nor has any dividend been proposed since
the end of the reporting period (2011: Nil).

17. LOSS PER SHARE

From continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

Annual Report 2012
ZE—FFR

16. IR 2

BEARATRENR-_E——F+=-AEAR
BITBRFRRG E2#E - BEUEY
FHRAEAR B PESIK Jay Star B EA
RIS - 49 AE0111,773,00078 7T © FT
DIk BERBEZFBHNHIFEIS

B EatESN R ——F W AR
KR - BWERRAR L EEZIK
BEARE (ZT——F &) -

17. SlEE

REFEEEXRFRERLEZERE

ARRHEEAREERERN R EEERT
WP BIEATE

2012 2011
—E——F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FExT FAT
(Restated)
(&%)
Loss BB
Loss for the purpose of basic FUASTE SR ER
and diluted earnings per share Eo#aNwEE
Loss for the year attributable to owners KRNEHEE ANEIEARFEE
of the Company Z 518 52,946
Number of shares RPEE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares AUt EGRRER
for the purpose of basic NEEE R R 8w
and diluted earnings per share N5 E 323,896,933

The diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per
share as the Company has no dilutive potential shares
outstanding for both years.

HRMEFEARRHEEEAESE L
Bty MERkEEERRESREREER
EE
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17. LOSS PER SHARE (Continued) 17.

From continuing operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
from continuing operations attributable to the owners of the
Company is based on the following data:

BREBRE (&)

REFERERT

ARRHEBEARLEREFELLEBZE
PREAR R EEEE TR T HIBEE

2012 2011
—F—=F i
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
(Restated)
(&%)
Loss figures are calculated as follows: EEEEBEUATERGE
Loss for the year attributable to owners NNEHEAE A
of the Company KEZEE 52,946
Less: Loss for the year from B RE BRI E
discontinued operations E ) o= (8,945)
Loss for the purpose of basic earnings FRATERBIFELE
per share from continuing operations X FREREF
Z & 44,001

The denominators used are the same as those detailed
above for both basic and diluted earnings per share.

From discontinued operations

Basic and diluted loss per share for the discontinued
operation is HK8.86 cents per share (2011: HK2.76
cents per share), based on the loss for the year from the
discontinued operations of approximately HK$28,695,000
(2011: HK$8,945,000).

The denominators used are the same as those detailed
above for both basic and diluted earnings per share.

B9 B B L X3 SRR R R R IR
St E AR -

REEHRLERERH

BRAFEXRBCRIEKERBZE
B4 /286950008 T (=T ——%:
8,945,00087T) % - SRERNLEEE
BER88ERI (ZF——F: 8k276
i) o

P FI 5 3 601 S B LA B 8 AR
B o
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ=—F——F+-_A=+—HIFE
18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. Y% - R RR
The Group AEE
Other
Land and property,
buildings held plant and
for own use Plantand  equipment Construction-
BERR machinery  Hf#)% - in-progress Total
ZIHREFT HBERRE BERRE BRIR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THT TET TET TET
COST OR VALUATION RAS HE
At 1 January 2012 WZE——F—HF—H 71,722 124,642 54,340 63,850 314,554
Exchange adjustments B 3% 4919 4,249 645 5,151 14,964
Additions YN 567 13,057 3,247 24,336 41,207
Transfer to investment properties ~ EREHREWE (22,072) - - - (22,072)
Transfer from AT TiRER
Construction-in-progress - - 1,610 (1,610) -
Disposals HeE - (10,096) (359) - (10,455)
Disposal through the BRENHIK
Distribution In Specie of RBARRMNLE
shares in a subsidiary (52,574) (41,624) (14,002) (91,727) (199,927)
Eliminated on revaluation BHRYE (2,562) - - - (2,562)
At 31 December 2012 RWZE——F
+ZA=1t—H - 90,228 45,481 - 135,709
REPRESENTING K&
Cost PR - 90,228 45,481 - 135,709
Valuation - 2012 HE-—_ZT——F - - - - -
- 90,228 45,481 - 135,709
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2012 NZE——F—H—H - 101,673 39,631 - 141,304
Exchange adjustments [ 5 41 1,331 506 - 1,878
Provided for the year FERE 343 8,786 4510 - 13,639
Impairment loss recognised BEZRERE 2178 - - - 2,178
Eliminated on the ENDEHB AR
Distribution In Specie of eSS
shares in a subsidiary - (24,352) (9,033) - (33,385)
Eliminated on revaluation e (2,562) - - - (2,562)
Eliminated on disposals BHEYE - (10,096) (359) - (10,455)
At 31 December 2012 R-Z——F
+=A=1-H - 77342 35,255 - 112,597
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2012 W-—E——F
+-A=+—H - 12,886 10,226 - 23112
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B SRR Y EE
For the year ended 31 December 2012 &2 - ——F+_-_A=+—HIIFE
18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 18. )% - #:5 (%&)
The Group (Continued) AER (&)
Other
Land and property,
buildings held plant and
for own use Plantand  equipment Construction-
BERR machinery  EHf#% - in-progress Total
ZIWREF HERRE HBERRE BRIR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET FET
COST OR VALUATION ﬁﬂijﬂﬁﬁ
At 1 January 2011 RZE——F—fF—H 93,243 121,399 48,141 2,195 264,978
Exchange adjustments [Fmﬂﬁ‘ (914) 4743 1,958 (2,830) 2,957
Additions b - 5,232 4,602 64,485 74319
Disposals T & - (6,732) (361) - (7,093)
Reclassification to investment ENABARENE
properties (note 19) (HE19) (21,755) - - - (21,755)
Surplus on revaluation BhE% 1,779 - - - 1,779
Eliminated on revaluation BHEYE (631) - - - (631)
At 31 December 2011 RZE—F
+ZA=1t—H 71,722 124,642 54,340 63,850 314,554
REPRESENTING K&
Cost PR - 124,642 54,340 63,850 242,832
Valuation - 2011 fHE-—T——F 71,722 - - - 71,722
71,722 124,642 54,340 63,850 314,554
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2011 RZE—F—HF—H - 95,649 34,965 - 130,614
Exchange adjustments [ 5 (15) 3,797 1,180 - 4,962
Provided for the year FERE 646 8,959 3,847 - 13,452
Eliminated on revaluation HEREHE (631) - - - (631)
Eliminated on disposals BHEYE - (6,732) (361) - (7,093)
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F
+-A=+—H - 101,673 39,631 - 141,304
CARRYING VALUES EEE
At 31 December 2011 RZT—F
+-A=+—H 71,722 22,969 14,709 63,850 173,250
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ=—F——F+-_A=+—HIFE
18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 18. W% - HR RRE (B)

The Company b, /N
Other
Land and property,
buildings held plant and
for own use Plant and equipment
BEBH machinery By - Total
ZTMREF  HBERRE W EERRE #rt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET FET T
COST OR VALUATION BASHE
At 1 January 2011 n—ZE——F—H—H 22,104 28,620 17,769 68,493
Exchange adjustments M 5 (446) 548 181 283
Additions AR - 60 698 758
Disposals HE - - (11) (11)
Deficit on revaluation BB (440) - - (440)
Transfer to subsidiaries SENIEAR
upon Group Reorganisation EREHE AT (20,883) (29,228) (18,637) (68,748)
Eliminated of revaluation EplisEag:s (335) - - (335)
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F
and 31 December 2012 +-A=+—H
kZZT—ZF
+=RA=+—H - - - -
REPRESENTING K&
Cost D% - - - -
Valuation — 2011 and 2012 HE-—T——F
R_T—_F - - - -
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2011 R-Z——F—HA—H - 21,510 13,609 35,119
Exchange adjustments B 5 38 B (15) 421 167 573
Charge for the year FERE 350 2,782 1,540 4,672
Written back on disposals & i Bl - - (5) (5)
Transfer to subsidiaries SERBEAR
upon Group Reorganisation BRENBAR - (24,713) (15,311) (40,024)
Eliminated on revaluation B (335) - - (335)
At 31 December 2011 RZE—F
and 31 December 2012 +-A=+—H
R_ZE—_F
+-A=+—H - - - -
CARRYING VAULES IREE
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F
and 31 December 2012 +-A=+—H
RZZT—_F

+-A=+—8~ - _ _ _
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ=—F——F+-_A=+—HIFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) ~ 18. #13% - #8 R (8)

The Company (Continued) ARTF (&)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are Lty - e RRETRERFEEAR

depreciated on straight-line basis over the following useful BERENTE

lives:

e Freehold land is not depreciated o TRUKAFEERE LHETINE -

e  Leasehold land and buildings situated thereon are o MHELHREFERARERBLNFERR
depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired term of BEfFHEAFHcREE (BT
lease and their estimated useful lives, being no more HBiB50F) HEITIE °
than 50 years after the date of purchase

e Plant and machinery 4-10 years o MBRRE 4-104F

e Other property, plant and equipment 3-5 years o Hb¥Z - HIENRE 3-5%

Notes: BfaE -

(@)  The analysis of net carrying value of land and buildings held for (@) #HHEEEBAUAAEBEIRZ tHREFZ
own use carried at fair value is as follows: BREFEITAT

The Group The Company
bis-. | YA UNG|
2012 2011 2012 2011
o —5——% = .
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT TER TR
Freehold outside Hong Kong ~ EEBBIMRKAE IR 71,722 -

(b)

The Group’s and the Company’s land and buildings held
for own use was revalued as at 31 December 2012 at their
open market value. The valuations were carried out by Roma
Appraisals Limited (“Roma Appraisals”) (2011: Vigers Appraisal
& Consulting Limited (“Vigers Appraisal”)), an independent
firm of professional surveyors not connected with the Group
who had among staff members of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors. The valuation was arrived at by reference to market
evidence of transaction prices for similar properties in the same
locations and conditions. The land and buildings held for own
use was transferred to investment properties at fair value as at
31 December 2012.

A revaluation deficit/surplus of the Group of approximately
HK$2,178,000 deficit (2011:HK$1,779,000 surplus) has been
recognised in profit and loss (2011: transferred to the properties
revaluation reserve), net of the Nil (2011: approximately
HK$884,000) deferred taxation of the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, revaluation deficit
of the Company of approximately HK$440,000 had been
transferred to the properties revaluation reserve, net of the
Company’s deferred taxation of HK$99,000 (note 33).

(b)

R-B——&F+—-FA=+—8 " ¥pKA&EE
RARGBFEIEERZ T RIEF 2 AFET
BEETER - RS HEREAEE ER
BB BEMGEMESBRBRTGERAR
([REBEEFTE]) (ZF——F : gigi&
EFABEERAR ((BRImEETH]))
#WT HEMETABBSAEMESKE -
HEDI2EERME R ZBUDEZ
MR EMmMET - R=ZT——F+=HA
=1+—8 #EEEAZTHEEFEERR
R EBEEBREIREME -

ANEE S EEAL B E#AL 2,178,000
T (ZE——%F : BER1,779,00087T) ER
BafER (T —F  EREYXSMHFH
) WHRAEEZREFRRTET (=
T ——% : £)884,000/87T) °

HE_Z——F+_A=+—HIEFE &
AR E (L EALIA) 440,000 T E BREEY) X
Eb#E - WHRAR R ZEEHIR99,000
BT (MIEE33) -
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 18. W% - HR RRE (B)
The Company (Continued) ARTF (&)
Notes: (Continued) FisE : (48)
(b)  (Continued) (b)y (&)
Had the above land and buildings held for own use been fin e R A 2 Tih RIEFERK AR R
carried at cost less accumulated depreciation, the carrying SHTESE - REeREKA ¢
amounts would have been:
The Group The Company
AEE KRR
2011 2012 2011
—E-CF —T——F —E-Cf —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAR FAL
Freehold land and buildings K A¥ERFE 2 L RETF 62,742 -
Leasehold land and buildings ~ KHEFFZ T RET - -
62,742 _

(d)

During the year, the Group capitalised borrowing costs
amounting to approximately HK$607,000 (2011: HK$589,000)
for the continuing operations and approximately HK$2,302,000
(2011: HK$ HK$639,000) for discontinued operations in the
construction-in-progress. Borrowing costs were capitalised at
specific borrowing which bears interest ranging from 5.2% to
9.06% per annum (2011: 4.00% to 6.98% per annum).

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s land and buildings held
for own use of Nil (2011: approximately HK$71,722,000) were
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group (note
29).

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company transfers
its assets and liabilities at their carrying values to its subsidiaries
upon Group Reorganisation on the date of transfer.

(c)

(d)

(e)

FRN - AEEBBELEEB 2ERTR
& BB AN 49607,0008 7T (=T — — & -
589,000/ TT) RE R ILKEEB 2 HER
TRRfEER AL 2,302,000 T (ZF——
% 639,000&7T) BEA(L - FERATIIE
NFEEL2% £9.06% (ZF——F : GF
4.00%%6.98%) Z FERFBZFHRIEET
IAEARAE -

W=F——F1=A=t—0  £EETS
T (ZF——% : 771,722,000 8 0) H{E
A2 L RIEFE FRFEARTARE
2 RITRARRZ BIR (FiHE20) -

BE-T——%+-A=+—HILFE ' R
H e (T RENB B - ARTRR
BEENRLAERABERHBAT -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ=—F——F+-_A=+—HIFE
19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

19. HEME

The Group The Company
rEE EAF
2012 2011 2012 2011
—F-=F —TF =%F-=fF =7
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FAT TER FAT
Fair value RREE
At 1 January »n—H—H 5,100 5,100
Transfer from property, plant BB E ¥ - #25
and equipment (Note 18) PEGECERL) 21,755 -
Transfer to subsidiaries REBEHRE
upon Group Reorganisation BREWBAR - (6,000)
Exchange adjustments PE 5 S 489 -
Increase in fair value RiE=P R
recognised in profit or loss Z AR EEEM 2,586 900
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 29,930 -

The fair value of the Group’s and the Company’s investment
properties at 31 December 2012 has been arrived at on
the basis of a valuation carried out on that dates by Roma
Appraisals (2011: Vigers Appraisal), an independent
qualified professional valuer not connected with the Group.
Roma Appraisals is a member of the Institute of Valuers,
and have appropriate qualifications and recent experiences
in the valuation of similar properties in the relevant
locations. The valuation was arrived at by reference to
market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties
in the same locations and conditions.

All of the Group’s and the Company’s property interests
held under operating lease to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purpose are measured using the fair value
model and are classified and accounted for as investment

property.

During the year, the Group changed the use of one of the
owner-occupied properties for its administrative function
and leased them out on operating income at its fair value
of approximately HK$22,072,000 (2011: HK$21,755,000)
on the date of transfer. The carrying value of the properties
were HK$22,072,000 (2011: HK$21,755,000) at the date
of transfer.

REBEARBZRENER _T——F
T-RA=T—HAZAABENRERNEE
WHERE B AEREXRGEMESE
Reh (ZF——%F  BERIEENLY) ©
%5 AHIFTETT 2 FHEMS L - &SR
AEREENMRE SR  AEEEER
MEERBEH R REE LR - T
EHZ HED2ER — bR RIEREED
KRR B RENIHEE °

AREBEARBZAAREEROFBL
RIERBESREATHEZ WHFEER - T
BRARBEBENGE  BOBER/RNKE
EIN

RER REBEFEAEYWEZH
% UETTBRETRERERRER
A B 1E 422,072,000 T (=T — —
& : 21,755,000 7T) # E & LA Y ER
KEWAN - ZEVMEREREZAZE
M E A&22,072,0008 L (Z T ——F:
21,755,000/ 7T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ=—F——F+-_A=+—HIFE
19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company
transfers its assets and liabilities at their carrying values to
its subsidiaries upon the Group Reorganisation on the date
of transfer.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s investment
properties of approximately HK$46,492,000 (2011: HK$
23,930,000) were pledged to secure banking facilities
granting to the Group.

The investment properties are situated in Hong Kong, the
PRC and Korea and with medium-term leases.

19.

Annual Report 2012
ZE—FFR

"REME (B)

BE—F——F+-A=t—ALEE
B B S 1T BB A0S - AR D IR
EEEURLAERAREANEAR -

RNR—ZE—-—F+=-_F=+—8' K&
#946,492,000%8 L (= T — — F:
23,930,000 L) 2 IEWEE FEMEIE
ERTAEEZRITRERZER -

NRER  PEMEBRZREYFETH
HAREH -

Breakdown by location: Hol& 54
PRC =8
Korea P E
Hong Kong B

The Group
rEE

2012 2011
—E-=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FBT
23,930
6,000

29,930
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ=—F——F+-_A=+—HIFE

20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

20. RMB AR Z#E @

The Company

¥ /N
2012 2011
—E-—F —ET——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
Unlisted equities, at cost FELETRRA - RAAE
At 1 January »n—H—8 94,895
Additional contribution BINE RA 105,159
Capital contribution HE 253,855
Less: Disposal B e (94,895)
Less: Disposals on the Distribution In B REYDIK
Specie of shares in a subsidiary B8 R BIAR 15 B
(note 38) HE (M1sE38) -
359,014
Less: provision for impairment loss (Note i) W OREEEREE (D (55,648)
303,366
Amounts due (to)/from subsidiaries fE (1) /WHIB A RIFIE
(Note ii) (ME i) 21,592
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 324,958
Analysed for reporting purposes as: DITEEFRA R
Non-current assets JEmMBEE 303,366
Current (liabilities)/assets e (BfE) EE 21,592

324,958
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ=—F——F+-_A=+—HIFE

20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Note i:

Note ii:

The directors of the Company had reviewed the carrying
values of the investments in subsidiaries and considered
that in light of the operating losses of the subsidiaries
and the market conditions, total impairment losses of
approximately HK$11,258,000 (2011: HK$55,648,000)
had been recognised during the year. The directors of the
Company were in the opinion that the impairment was made
based on the share of net assets of the subsidiaries as at the
end of reporting period.

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December
2012 and 2011 are as follows:

Annual Report 2012
ZE—FFR

20. RHMB AR Z#EEm (5)

ARABERCEMRMBARZRE
ZHREME  TRRBENHERAZE
I8 18 DA B o i AR A i RRRL (B B 1B
#EA911,258,0008 L (ZF ——4:
55,648,000/87T) « NRAIEERS B
BENREREHARAGHB LR 2 EE
FEETERE

FyeED

Bietii . SFEAEIER 28 RIRERERE -

RZE—ZFR-ZF——F+ZA=+—
A AARMBARZFHENT -
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Place and

date of Issued and

incorporation/ fully paid

establishment/ share capital/

operations Class of registered capital Proportion ownership interest held
Name of subsidiaries BMEY/MY/ sharesheld EBRTRMARRA/ by the Company Principal activities
AAER Bew¥RAY FRROERN EZfExR MADRRE A RERL TEEH

Directly Indirectly
B 4
2012 2011 2012 2011
“EB-CF ZF——% ZB3-2fF _F-F

Kwang Sung Electronics Hong Kong Ordinary HK$253 855,129 100% - Investment holding
Holdings Co. Limited (note (a) %% LER 253 ,855,12978 T REER

KEETFERBRAT
(FrzE @)

Kwang Sung Technology Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 - 100% Sales of electronic
Holdings Co. Limited A 3% 10,0007 components
(note (a)) HEBTLH

RERRERERAT
(B2 (@)

Shenzhen Kwang Sung PRC Ordinary US$10,561,780 - 100% Manufacture and sales
(note (b)) i LER 10,561,780% 7T of electronic

FIEE (M3 (b)) components

RENHEET
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20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 20. RMIB AR Z#EE (&)
Place and
date of Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid
establishment/ share capital/
operations Class of registered capital Proportion ownership interest held
Name of subsidiaries HMEKY /Ky sharesheld ERARMERA/ by the Company Principal activities
RAER RepdRAl FERHEN EZMEL MAN TR ZERERL A IEXH
Directly Indirectly
E# (3
2012 2011 2012 2011
ZB-f “3F ZB-f “2F
Kwang Sung Electronics PRC Ordinary RMB500,000 - 100% Provision of sales
Trading (Shenzhen) q: LR ARE 5000007 agency services o
Co., Ltd. (note (c)) the Company
tEEFES (R MAREREEE
ARAT (M) R
*Kwang Sung Holdings BVI Ordinary US$13,535,610 100% - Investment holding
Co., Ltd. (Formerly RERNEE  LER 135356105 REER
known as Kwang Sung
Group Investment
Co., Ltd.) (“Kwang Sung
Holdings") (note (d))
“KEERERAT
(MBAXEEERE
BRAH)
(TR 2R ) (HE ()
*Bracoli Co., Ltd (note (e)) Korea Ordinary KRW1,966,450,000 - 69.7% Research and
B Tk 1966450000 28 development
*Brocoli Co., Ltd (Fif3E (e)) and production of
wiretape cabling
technology products
T R E wiretape

EhniER
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20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

20. RHMB AR Z#EEm (5)
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Place and
date of Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid
establishment/ share capital/
operations Class of registered capital Proportion ownership interest held
Name of subsidiaries HMERY /Ky sharesheld ERARMERA/ by the Company Principal activities
AAER RepdRAl FERHEN EZMEL MAN TR ZERERL A IEXH
Directly Indirectly
E# (3
2012 2011 2012 2011
ZE-F “T——F “B-2fF “T—F
“Kwang Sung Electronics Korea Ordinary KRW50,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and sales
Korea Co., Ltd. (note (f)) 350 Lk 50,000,000 & of electronic
“Kwang Sung Electronics components
Korea Co., Ltd. (i3 () B REEE Tl
REXREEF(R PRC Ordinary US$824,370 - - Manufacture and sales
BB (note (@) i Tk 82437105 of electronic
REREET(RY) companents
BRAR (i (@) HERHEE TN
*Kwang Sung Group Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100% Investment holding
Investment Co., Limited B LER IF5 REER
(Note (h))
REEEREARAA
(BFE (h))
*Baoying Kwang Sung PRC Ordinary US$10,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and sales
"EEAEETLE i Lak 10,000,000%7T of electronic
(note (7)) components
*EREHE (H() HERHEE Tl
*Jay Star Holdings Limited Bermuda Ordinary HK$ 3,238,969 - - Investment holding
(note (j)) BRE LER 3,238,969 /T REAR
*Jay Star Holdings Limited

(Rf3E ()
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For the year

ended 31 December 2012 HE=—-T——F+_-_A=+—HILFE

20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes:
(a)
(b)

(i)
0)

It is established on 14 September 2011.

It is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in the PRC.
All interests were transferred to Kwang Sung Electronics at net
book value on 14 November 2011.

It is a wholly foreign owned investment commercial enterprise.
All interests were transferred to Kwang Sung Electronics at net
book value on 14 November 2011.

The Company’s name has been changed since 15 September
2011.

All interests were transferred to Kwang Sung Holdings at net
book value on 25 November 2011.

All interests were transferred to Kwang Sung Holdings at net
book value on 25 November 2011.

It is established on 25 April 2012.

It is established on 31 March 2011.

It is established on 18 July 2011.

The company was set up and disposed of on Distribution In
Specie of shares in a subsidiary (note 38) during the year

ended 31 December 2012.

These companies are disposed of through Distribution In Specie
on 11 December 2012.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of both years or during both years.

NBAR Z#EE (8)

fiax -

(a)
(b)

(c)

(e)

()

(g)
(h)
(i)
0)

ZARR—E——FNHATHAKL °
ZABRTEZIEEEDRSE - TAERD
R-F——&F+— A+ 0 REREFEEE

% Kwang Sung Electronics ©

ZABRIIEBERFLE - IAERDDN
R-TB——F+— A+ 0 RREFEEE

£ Kwang Sung Electronics °

ARAIBZF-——FNLATHEAREESA
i o

ARSEN—"T—F+—A-t+hBAK
FREDFEERE 2R -

ERSEN T F+—A-t+hBK
FREDHESRE L EZR

HARRNZE——FMA - +RHEMKT °
ZARN—_E——F=ZA=+—HmK °
ZARR=ZE——F A+ NBKIL -
SATREE—_E——F+-_A=+—HIt
FRK - WRE W5 TRHT B A B RSB
& (Ffi7E38) °

ZERRAN_E——F+_A+—HEBE
IDIRHE o

Y878 (] BT /B8 2 ) R {86 /2 R A Sk HA
BATERERES
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ=—F——F+-_A=+—HIFE

21. GOODWILL 21. BE
The Group
rER
HK$'000
FET
CcoST R
At 31 December 2011 and 1 January 2012 R —-Z——F+_-A=+—H
rZE——F—H—H 5,857
Distribution In Specie of shares in B ARIRNEMDIK
a subsidiary (note 38) (MI5E38) (5,857)
At 31 December 2012 W-_ZE——_F+_H=+—H -
IMPAIRMENT BAE
At 1 January 2011 NZ_E——F—H—H -
Impairment loss recognised BRI E B 18 5,857
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F+=-A=+—H 5,857
Eliminated on the Distribution In Specie BV IR B A TR () B Rl SE
of shares in a subsidiary (note 38) (MI5E38) (5,857)

At 31 December 2012

RZF——F+-A=+—H -

CARRYING VALUES BRMEE
At 31 December 2012

R—Z2——F+=-_RA=+—H -

At 31 December 2011

R-E—F+=-A=+—H -

The carrying amount of goodwill as at the end of reporting
periods are attributable to the Group’s cash generating unit
(“CGU”) representing sale of products using WireTape™
cabling technology.

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined by
reference to value-in-use calculations. These calculations
use cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a ten-year period,
and at a pre-tax discount rate of approximately 14.3%
for the year ended 31 December 2011. The cash flows
beyond the ten-year period were assumed constant with
zero growth rate. This average growth rate is based on the
relevant industry growth rate. Since CGU benefits from
the possession of 17-year patents on its primary product
registered in 2009, management of the Group believes
that the average growth rate is reasonable. Other key
assumptions for the value-in-use calculations relate to the
estimation of each inflows/outflows including budgeted
sales and gross margin, such estimation is based on the
management’s expectations for the market development
and the directors considered appropriate.

BERNREHRZEAEREANEEHE
& F Wiretape " BREMERZ R EEE
B (ReELEM]) -

REEABEMZAREIEEE - HEREFEH
BEETTEREE - BULHEFEALE
BEMEZ TFHUKEEAEEZRS
MEAKREE  REE-_ZF——F+=A
=+ HULEFEZZEBARNREL14.3%
E - BEZTFHZREREAUABR
TENTRR R - ZTHERRTIE
PHEEITENERR A THBHABITEN
FHRIAEREMAEMS - ARRESE
SBENAR_ZTNFREEHE RER
TEFEHBEFEMTER  HAEEEEE
BELFHEERBAE - HMEREE
FENEERBREFEGHRESRA R
LAERE AT ERERBYH MG
BRHTEH  EENMRAGTBEE -
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21. GOODWILL (Continued) 21. M8 (&)
During the year ended 31 December 2011, impairment REBZ_T—F+ZA=1+—HLFE
loss on goodwill of approximately HK$5,857,000 was A BEREEE 45,857,000 T E i#
recognised. R o
During the year ended 31 December 2012, the goodwill REE-T——F+-A=+—RHILFE
was released upon the Distribution In Specie of shares in a A EEREYD RN B A B AR B 65 5
subsidiary (note 38). (FF5E38) °
22. CLUB MEMBERSHIPS 22. EEgE
The Group The Company
iy PN
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-C-F —T——F —E-CF —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr THET TEx BT
Club memberships, at cost SIEHE - BEAR
At 1 January ®—HA—H 759 759
Transfer to its subsidiary REBSHEE
upon Group Reorganisation EREHIEAA - (415)
At 31 December R+=ZR=1+—H 759 344
Accumulated impairment loss ~ ZiHEEER
At 1 January R—A—H 159 159
Written off for the year FRMH - (98)
Transfer to its subsidiary ERZEWB AR - -
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 159 61
Carrying values REE

At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 600 283
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23. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 23. EBREE
Patents
EFE
The Group The Company
REE b NN
2012 2011 2012 2011
—EB--F —=——F B —ZT—%F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAETT FET FHET
Cost R ANME
At 1 January R—A—H 19,644 11,371
Exchange adjustments M H, B (166) -
Transfer to its MNEEEHE
subsidiaries upon 0
Group Reorganisation ai)= NG - (11,371)
Disposal on the REW D IKHE
Distribution In Specie of DRI 5
shares in a subsidiary HE (FisE38)
(note 38) — -
At 31 December W+ZA=+—H 19,478 -
Amortisation 5
At 1 January R—A—H 2,021 1,171
Exchange adjustments ME H F B (38) -
Charge for the year REGHEE 1,168 474
Impairment losses RIEEE - -
Eliminated on the REY D IRH B
Distribution In Specie of NIl Spliss
shares in a subsidiary s (FisE38)
(note 38) - -
Transfer to its R B =R
subsidiaries upon HEE
Group Reorganisation HiTB A - (1,645)
At 31 December Bn+=—A=+—~H 3,151 -
Carrying values BREE
At 31 December Kn+=—A=+—8” 16,327 -

The patents entitle the Group to manufacture products
using WireTape™ cabling technology over 17 years from
the date of acquisition. The carrying values will therefore be
amortised over the useful lives of 17 years.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, all patents
were disposed of on Distribution In Specie of shares in a
subsidiary (note 38).

ZEFENEEEANREN KRR
{55 F Wiretape ™ 8 48 45 i U35 2 @ o i
t EEREE/RAERFHI7FERE

REE_ZT——F+_A=+—HItF
& EENEREY S IKHTE ARG
B E (BIEE38) o
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24. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 24, FEHERE
The Group and the Company
EEEREAT
2012 2011
—E-——F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
Unlisted equity securities in REEZIE ETRA
Hong Kong, at cost #BE - BKAE
At 1 January R—A—H 1,500
Less: impairment loss recognised B BEERBERE (1,500)

At 31 December

In view of significant operating losses incurred by the
investee, full impairment loss had been made for the cost
of investment in that entity of HK$1,500,000 in previous

HRESKREEELAETAKLEE &
ERBEEFERRENZEE KK
1,500,000 T fEH 2 BURERHE ©

years.

25. INVENTORIES 25. &
The Group
K EE

2012 2011

—E2-——F %

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Raw materials R 17,102

Work in progress &M 22,273

Finished goods 2K ah 24,634

64,009
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26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 26. EWE 5 K H AR
The Group The Company
rEE b /N
2012 2011 2012 2011
—Eg--F —ZT——F T —T—F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET FExT FAT
Trade and bills receivables JEIWE 5 M ZEIRR 122,339 -
Less: provision for B OREEEERE
impairment loss (10,000) -
112,339 -
Short-term loans to key MFErEEREAER
management personnel B BIRHEH
and employees =N 553 -
Tax reserve certificates A (MEE11(b))
(note 11(b)) 23,380 23,380
Deposits, prepayments and  #&& ~ FEFRIE M
other receivables H b R BR X 13,967 -
150,239 23,380
(@) Ageing analysis (@) BREC T
The Group allows an average credit period of 30-90 AEBGRTEESRFPZFHEER
days to its trade customers. The Group does not hold #30F 90 H o A& B IF 8 pt A FE UL
any collateral or other credit enhancements over its B 2R Ea EERnsH A ER
trade receivables. Trade and bills receivables (net of R o EINE 5 REBRRIRE
provision for impairment loss) presented based on ZAH (EARWAEREBES)
the invoice date, which approximated the respective 25 (BRREBERE) KBS
revenue recognition dates, with the following ageing R Z BRI DATUO T ¢
analysis as of the end of the reporting period:
The Group The Company
rEE b /N
2012 2011 2012 2011

—EB--F —T——F B ZZT——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET TBTT FET TAET
0-90 days 0&90H 98,537 -
91-180 days 91 %180 H 13,802 -

181-365 days 181 & 365H ~ -

112,339 -
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26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Ageing analysis (Continued)

Trade and bills receivables that are neither past due
nor impaired have the best credit scoring attributable
under the external credit scoring system used by the
Group.

Included in the above ageing analysis, there are bills
receivables of approximately HK$345,000, which are
aged less than 90 days as at 31 December 2011. No
bills receivable is outstanding at 31 December 2012.

Impairment of trade and bills receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade and bills
receivables are recorded using an allowance account
unless the Group and the Company are satisfied that
recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the
impairment loss is written off against trade and bills
receivables directly.

At 31 December 2012, the Group’s trade and bills
receivables of approximately HK$11,194,000 (2011:
HK$10,000,000) were individually determined to be
impaired.

The movements in impairment losses recognised
during the year are as follows:

26. FBWE 5 REMARS ()

(@) RS ()

REAEEEBZINFEEFD R
7 RBHSEREZRKES LR
BEERXEAREEESD °

FHERBRAMBER T —F+ =
A=+—HER#E PR 90 BH# 345,000
BILZERER -RZT——F+=
A=+—RA¥EMEKKTRZEKE
& o

(b) BWESRERRAZAEE

BRRWE S EEERRBERR
TEREERCEE - EAKERAR
AR AW EFIR 2 ERAIBRSN -
EUER TREBRERERKES
R EEIRFKAMEH o

R—ZE——F+=-_A=+—8"
AEBZRKVEBES REEBERRLD
11,194,000 T ( = T — — & :
10,000,000 7t) B FEARIHRE BZE
FRIE °

FARRRERBEBREFHMNT

The Group The Company
rEE ¥ /N
2012 2011 2012 2011
—B--—F —ZT——F =B —ZT——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHExT FHT
At 1 January R—H—H 13,194 13,194
Impairment loss ERERBEEE
recognised 156 134
Transfer to subsidiaries 725 B &40 62
upon Group BEHEBAA
Reorganisation - (12,962)
Amounts written off  FEE A E] MU
as uncollectible 2R (2,497) -
Reversal of VERIEN Spi={EIEE:
impairment loss (853) (366)
Exchange adjustments SMNE FH%& - -
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 10,000 -
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26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 26. BWE 5 REMERR (&)
(c) The ageing analysis of trade and bills (c) ERPEREEZENESRER
receivables which are past due but not BRI Z BREC 574 ¢
impaired:
The Group The Company
rEE bNE|
2012 2011 2012 2011
—B--F —ZT——F =ZB-=-f —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FET FET FAT
0-30 days 0Z30H 26,692 -
31-90 days 31Z290H 11,085 -
91-365 days 91 Z365H 2,358 -
40,135 -

Included in the Group’s trade and bills receivables
balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of approximately HK$ 17,566,000 (2011:
HK$40,135,000) which are past due as at the end
of the reporting period for which the Group has not
provided for impairment loss.

No Company’s trade and bills receivables were past
due as at 31 December 2012 and 2011.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent customers that
have a good track record with the Group. Based
on past experience, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The average age of
these receivables is 50 days (2011: 50 days).

STAREBENE S RANZIRE
AEREE 4A1E4) 17,566,000 T (= F
——4F : 40,135,000/ 7T) * Rk
HEARB R EWERR - MAKE
WEF L FHRREEE -

R-F——FR=_F——%+_H
=t—8  AREHMEDBHZEK
HHREBRRK -

BafEERE BERREEARE
ERAAREBRIFERLCHZZRTE
NEFHR o BIEAEER  BRE
BEEEWES NS - N EEBEER
MR A28 KE - HEEBRE
BA A S ERIERERE - 2R
IR 2 PRI B0 R (T ——
& :50K) e
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27. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 27. SRITEBRERE
The Group The Company
rEE b /N
2012 2011 2012 2011
=F-=F —T——F =F-=F —TF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT FET FAT
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBRIRS 110,182 -
Less: restricted deposit B ZBRFIRTIT
(note) Tk (M) (472) -
Cash and cash equivalents IRE&HRERANLZ
as per cash flow statement R& MIBEEEY 109,710 -
Note: As at 31 December 2012, bank deposit amounted to Wi R=Z——F+-_A=+—8  EBIEZY
approximately HK$11,009,000 (2011: HK$472,000) was 11,009,000 7T (==& — — 4 : 472,0007%
pledged as securities for certain banking facilities. o0) BEEIERE TIRITRE 2B M ©
Bank balances of the Group represented short-term REB 2 RITHERRTIIE =B A sk A T 2 51
deposits with a maturity of three months or less. Bank ZREEATER c MAFE - IRITARRTIE™
balances carry interest at market rates which range from SHAEFF0.001%E036%:TE (=ZF
0.001% to 0.36% (2011: 0.001% to 0.5%) per annum for ——4F : 0.001% £0.5%) °
the year.
28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 28. [EFHE S RHEMERT
The Group The Company
rEE RATF
2012 2011 2012 2011
=F—=F —T——F =F-=F —TF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAET FET FET
Trade payables FETE SZ R 76,314 -
Accrued expenses and FEFTER K
other payables E M FETAR R 25,495 -

101,809 -
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28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 28. ENE S REMERT (&
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as of the end of ENE SRR EZAHNBEHARZER
the reporting period based on invoice date is as follows: AT :
The Group The Company
rEE ¥ NN
2012 2011 2012 2011
=F-=F —T—F Z=F-=F —TF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FHET T

0-90 days 0290H 65,385 -

91-180 days 91%180H 9,971 -

181-365 days 181%365H 958 -

Over 365 days 365 HIA - -

76,314 -

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 0-90 BECTFIEEHRAO0EIH - REEK

days. The Group has financial risk management policies EerARERBR  BRABEMNERR

in place to ensure that all payables are settled within the PMEEEAR AT o

credit timeframe.

29. BANK BORROWING 29. RITHEE
The Group
AEE

2012 2011
—E2--F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TFHT
Secured (Note) BEM (PFFE) 40,262
Unsecured £t 33,700
73,962

The bank borrowing bears variable interest rate ranging RITEERFIINEEFENF52%E

from 5.2% to 9.06% (2011: 4.00% to 6.98%) per annum 9.06% (ZZE——%F : 4.00% £6.98%) &t

and is repayable within 1 year. BERER—FAEE -

Note: Bank borrowing of KRW2,700,000,000 (equivalent to MizE -8R 17 f& E2,700,000,000%8 B ( #H &
approximately HK$19,548,000) (2011: KRW5,973,657,000, M #19,548,0007% L) ( = & — — F -
equivalent to approximately HK$40,262,000; and 5,973,657,000%% B - 48 % R 440,262,000
RMB14,000,000, equivalent to approximately HK$17,269,000) B & AR # 14,000,000 © 8 E R
were secured by the Group’s land and buildings in Korea of #317,269,0007% jT) B B A & B i 1A 72
Nil (2011: approximately HK$71,722,000) and the Group’s BzEwRBFTELT(ZFT——F: 4
investment property in Korea of approximately HK$46,492,000 71,722,000 7t) R A& B R #EEH 2 &
(2011: HK$23,930,000). & W) % £)46,492,0005 71 (=B — — & :

23,930,000 7T) 1R
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29. BANK BORROWING (Continued)

During the year, the Group obtained new bank borrowing
of KRW700,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$5,026,000) (2011: KRW10,973,637,000 equivalent
to approximately HK$77,035,000) from Industrial Bank of
Korea.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the bank
borrowing of approximately HK$19,548,000 is used
for financing the general working capital (2011:
HK$73,962,000 was used for financing the construction in
progress in Korea).

29.

IRITIEE (8)

F R - AREE M Industrial Bank of Korea
B3 #$R7T15E 700,000,000% & (18
E#%5,026,0008 L) (ZT——F:
10,973,637,00082 B (A% 7 4977,035,000
WBIT)) °

REBEE-_ZT——F+_-_A=+—HBLHF
[ RITEE #19,548,0008 T (==
——F: RERARBNERERZILR
73,962,000/87T) AtE—REEE® -

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. A&
Authorised and issued share capital: EEME BT
2012 2011
—E—= —E——%F
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
BB AE ok | e B Gk
000 HK$’000 ‘000 HK$’000
Fi FExT Fhx T
Authorised: JAIE
Ordinary shares of EFREEO.1B T
HK$0.1 each T iL e 1,500,000 150,000
Ordinary shares, issued and B2E1TREE 2
fully paid: TR
At 1 January and KR—HA—BK
31 December +=-—A=+—8H 323,897 32,390

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.

ETREFHEAGREKBTRKE

&2 BB,

YTRARRARE EARERENEE—F
SRR RARRIZHBREENS - 1B
EREZBRSER -
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31. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY 31. KA EIF#E
Properties
revaluation
Share Contribution reserve  Statutory  Exchange  Retained
premium reserve LS reserve reserve profits Total
ROGE HERE EfRE LTRE EXRE  REER 2
HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$O000
AL FEL FEL FEL TEL THr TR
At 1 January 2011 W-2——%-f—H 58,566 9,946 19,867 9,376 (12.384) 249,787 335,158
Total comprehensive income  ANEE 2 EM 125
for the year - - (341) - (1,784)  (41287)  (43/412)
Realisation upon Group EEEANER
Reorganisation - - - (9,376) - 9,376 -
Reduction of contributions ~ BIRIRE L
from shareholders - (1,468) - - - - (1,468)
Realisation upon disposal of ~ HE LM RETFHER
land and building - - (19,526) - - 21,505 1979
At 31 December 2011 WZE——%+-A=+—-H 58566 8,478 - - (14168) 239381 292,257
Total comprehensive income  AFE2AEYE (Fx) 4%
(expense) for the year - - - - 1545  (47,649)  (46,104)
Special dividend by way of ~ UEHH KB
Distribution In Specie of R A REREERIRE
shares in a subsidiary - - - - - (111,773)  (111,773)
At 31 December 2012 WZE——%+-A=+—-H 58566 8,478 - - (12,623) 79,959 134,380
32. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE 32. RARBEFANEBEZSZEHMEE
THROUGH PROFIT AND LOSS
The Group The Company
rEE ¥ NN
2012 2011 2012 2011
=F-=F —T—F =F-=F —TF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT FERT FHET
Fair value NAEE
At 1 January n—A—H 6,452 6,452
Transfer to subsidiaries upon 7 52 [E] 25 48 i 62 43¢
Group Reorganisation EHWWEB - (6,147)
Fair value change credited to 5t A4RAEZFRZ
the consolidated income NREEE
statement (544) (305)
Release on acceptance of ~ MEZNIE S UEE
cash offer DR - -
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 5,908 -
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32. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT AND LOSS (Continued)

In March 2009, the Group and the Company entered into
a patent transfer agreement (the “Agreement”) with an
independent third party (the “Seller”). The consideration
of approximately HK$10,242,000 was partially satisfied by
issuing 8,534,933 shares of the Company at HK$0.41 per
share (the “Consideration Shares”) to the Seller and the
remaining consideration of approximately HK$6,743,000
will be settled in cash along with put options (“Options”)
on period from the end of third year to the end of forth
year after the transaction (i.e. March 2013), under either
condition:

(i) the Group and the Company will not be required
to make further payment if the share price of the
Company is higher than HK$1.2; or

(ii) if the share price of the Company is lower than
HK$1.2, the Group and the Company will be required
to pay the difference of the basis price (being
HK$1.2) and the share price, multiple the number of
Consideration Shares.

The details of the Options were set out in the Agreement
and the Company’s announcement dated 30 March 2009.

The fair value of the Options granted is estimated at the
date of grant using binomial model taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the Options were
granted. The inputs into the model were as follows:

32.

BERARBEEFNEZZEMERE (B)

R-ZFZNF=R  AEERAAFES
MFE=F ([EF]) AT — 0 ENEEE R
& ([a% 1) - KB4 10,242,000/ 7T * &6
DIREI0.41 87T 178,534 933 AR
mlft ([RER ) TE - KEHRED
6,743,000 B THNRHZRE=-FKEE
FOFEHE (BIZT—=F=H) ARk
HifE ([H3)) RATER TIAR A -

i) MWARRZBHEBRSR12ETT
AEBNARARHASTEREE X

(i) ARBZBMHERER12ET
AEERARRBAIN EARER (B
1.27870) ERMHERZENERE
FARERNDEE °

HEZHFBFIRBEAIARTR TN
F=RA=1tHZHZA L -

IR AR BEDEA -_AAEE
TR A AR EARE 2 65K S IR A HE 1T
it o RIRA 2B ABB B

2012 2011

—F-—=F —

Dividend yield BB % 0%
Expected volatility TEHR I8 85%
Risk-free interest rate mR A 0.9%
Expected life T8 HF HA 1.25 year 5
Weighted average share price T HRE HK$0.600 % 7T

The binomial model has been used as at 31 December
2011 to estimate the fair value of the Options. The variables
and assumptions used in computing the fair value of the
Options are based on the directors’ best estimate. The
value of an option varies with different variables of certain
subjective assumptions.

RZBE——F+-_A=+—H8 ' —HAE
NEARGETBEZAAEE - sTE
ARBEMFAESMBREIZBES R
THEAE  HEEERESEESTE
BRR 2 TRk & -



Notes to the Financial Statements
s e

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ=—==
32.

33.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT AND LOSS (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Seller
accepted cash offer of HK$0.9263 per share and HK$0.38
per share to sell the Consideration Shares to Ultra Harvest
and Smart Top Investments Limited, a company which
is wholly owned by Mr. Yang (former shareholder),
respectively. Accordingly, obligation under the options
was lapsed thereafter as the Seller no longer own the
Consideration Shares according to the Agreement.

DEFERRED TAXATION

The components of deferred tax (assets) liabilities
recognised in the Group’s and the Company’s statements
of financial position and the movements during the year are
as follows:

—HF+-A=+—BHIEFE
32.
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BERARBEEFNEZZEMERE (B)

REBEE_T-——F+-_A=+—BItF
EHRE BFEXBESWEZEL 55
% 5 1x0.9263% 7t & & 1%0.38/% T #%
R E KB & F Ultra Harvest & Smart Top
Investments Limited (FRATIRR RS AR E
BWEZRAR) - Bt - BREBBTZEED
REERIER - BRESFBERBRHZESE
BRERD -

IEEFHIE

RSB R AR R 2 B IR R A FERR
53 Lﬁlﬁ (Zéfﬁ) BEARSDRRERZ

The Group &
Revaluation
of land and
buildings
Depreciation held for
allowances in own use and
excess of investment
related properties
depreciation ~ EftIHEEA
BHBEITE ziiRET Patents Total
ZHERRE URRENE E-vill: st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL FHT THL THL
(Restated) (Restated)
(&7)) (8751)
At 1 January 2011 RZE——F—F—H 1,114 4,338 2,428 7,880
(Credited) charged to REREF (GEA) R
profit or loss (note 11) (fHsE11) (288) 4,206 (181) 3,737
Debited to reserve TERERIR 884 - 834
At 31 December 2011 ——F+=-A=1+—H 826 9,428 2,247 12,501
Charged to profit or loss BRI (PEE1L)
(note 11) (619) 548 (930) (1,001)
Decrease in the Distribution REYD IR B
In Specie of shares in R AR > (Wu£38)
a subsidiary (note 38) - - (1,317) (1,317)
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+-A=+—H 207 9,976 - 10,183
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ZFE+ZA=T+T—HIEFE

PRC subsidiaries, which will expire in 2016, subject to the
approval and confirmation by the relevant tax authorities.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
the above tax losses due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
deductible temporary difference approximately of
HK$54,817,000 (2011: HK$51,544,000). No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible
temporary differences as it is not probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

Effective from 1 January 2008, the Company is subject to a
withholding tax at the rate of 5% for any dividend payment
from its PRC subsidiaries. Deferred tax liabilities of
approximately HK$64,000 (2011:HK$429,000) in respect
of temporary differences relating to the undistributed profits
of subsidiaries operating in the PRC of approximately
HK$1,280,000 (2011: HK$8,585,000) have not been
recognised as the Company controls the dividend policy of
these subsidiaries and it has been determined that those
profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

33. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 33. IEERMIE (&)
The Company VNN
Revaluation
of land and
buildings
Depreciation held for
allowances in own use and
excess of investment
related properties
depreciation ~ EffBEBR
BHEEITE zZiukETF Patents Total
ZIEESE  URRENE E-yill: @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TET TAET THT
At 1 January 2011 RZE——F—H—H 1,114 2,306 1,684 5,104
Credited to reserve Efuﬁfﬁ REA - (99) - (99)
Credited to profit or loss REB&HPEA (1,114) (228) (1,684) (3,026)
Credited to reserve of realisation ~ FAAKBARHE LR
upon disposal of land and FRERBEHTA
building to subsidiaries - (1,979) - (1,979)
At 31 December 2011 and RZE——F+ZA=+—H
31 December 2012 T-—#+-A=1+—H - - - -
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused RBEEBHR AEEHEEFEERH S A
tax losses of approximately HK$51,862,000 (2011: AIEPERBRAGZAKERHES
HK$35,701,000) in respect of the Korea Branch and the 18 #951,862,000/8 70 ( — & — — F:

35 701 oooﬁ%.-sm Iﬂﬁgﬁézg—fi
MR A BT IS S B R ER E#a

/f%gu-l'ﬂi;}z/ﬁﬁﬁj;}(/ﬁ E&(I?ﬁ?ﬁ T

IE)ESTEEEDL/\ Q%EIE§§°

o

REEEA - AEEA TR G2
# #154,817,000% 7T (= B — — £ :
51,544,000 7T » 7 % B K A 9% 71 0
BilRR 2 MERE AR - B
RS BRI A R 34 T BB 2 IR
K o

H-_TETN\F—A—B# AQalER
R B DR AT 2 EA R ,u?;z5%
ZTEMB RN ENR jiﬂ?ﬁéﬁiﬁﬂtﬂ
I LB HBARIZ AP RAEEBZ

B4 2= 82 491,280,000 T (ZF——
E 8585000}%77:) BRELHIBEE
#964,000% 7T (=& —— £ : 429,000%
7L) * REBARRIEGHZEWB AR 2K
BHX  BERAETEEARZBERSER

uz—r/ﬁnﬁj °
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34. AMOUNTS DUE FROM FORMER SHAREHOLDERS

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.

35. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

(a)

Retirement benefit scheme contribution
Hong Kong

The Group operates a MPF scheme under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for employees employed under the jurisdiction of
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
Scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered by independent trustees. Under the
MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are
each required to make contributions to the scheme
at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of HK$25,000 (2011:
HK$20,000). Contributions to the MPF scheme vest
immediately.

Korea

Employees in Korea participate in a National Pension
Scheme which is a mandatory insurance scheme
under the National Pension Act (the “Scheme”).
Under the Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the
Scheme at a specified rate of the employees’ monthly
income, subject to adjustments and a cap of monthly
income stipulated in the Scheme.

The PRC

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC participate in a
defined contribution scheme organised by the PRC
municipal government. The subsidiaries are required
to contribute a specified percentage of its payroll
costs to the scheme. The contributions are charged
to the consolidated income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the scheme.

ZFE+ZA=T+T—HIEFE

34.

35.
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KT8l - RIEBRESFTE  BEERE
1@5\51@//\&1@,\*@%4&)\25%2
LEBIBLET SIVEE 5K - TE ARk
)\ZJ:ﬁE?%Z5OOO/%TE(_T——
F :20,00087T) - BB FTE 2 #
RENEERK AL E R EREF -

L)

FEE BB 2HEBZRAESE

H A —RRBIZURIREIARIL 2 8
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g EEXLERESEEREREHA
W Z 5 7E bo ) 31 3% &t 814 H SR

(AIFHRE  BUZAEARESA
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35. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Continued) 35.

(b) Long Service payments

ESRKEF (B)
(b) REABRFE

2012 2011

—E-——F —T——F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FAT

Long Service Payments RERBE 690

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the
Group is obliged to make lump sum payments on
cessation of employment in certain circumstances
to certain employees who have completed at least
five years of service with the Group. The amount
payable is dependent on the employees’ final salary

RIEFBERBIGD - AEBAEET
BRTRE L EBAEAAEETKE
PRFERBOETEESNN —FK
R AXNZFRBRETZFREE
HIR&EF & MRBES - WHIBIRA
SEERAFERAKRERFARE L

and years of service, and is reduced by entitlements ERCy 30
accrued under the Group’s retirement plans that are
attributable to contributions made by the Group.
(i)  Movement for the year (i) HFHEE:
2012 2011
—E-——F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
At 1 January ®—HA—H8 600
(Decrease) increase in provision 14 Crtd>) &0
(included in staff cost) (BEREIKA) 90
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 690

(i) The directors’ assumptions used for

(i) H+=—A=+—HEFH#EE

accounting purpose at 31 December are as RIETIEZ (BERE0T -
follow:
2012 2011
—F-=F —
% %
Discounted rate applied to EAR KRS
long service payment obligations ~ f~tZk & £ 2 BE IR & 0.25
Expected rate of return on HEEE RO HR=
plan assets 2.50
Expected rate of salary increase i~ TBHRE K =X 3.30
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36. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

37.

TRANSACTIONS

The Company has a share option scheme which was
adopted on 16 June 2003 whereby the directors of the
Company are authorised, at their discretion, to invite
employees of the Group, including directors of any
company in the Group, advisers and consultants, to take
up options to subscribe for shares of the Company. The
options are exercisable progressively between one to three
years from the date of grant and will expire at the end of
a period to be notified by the directors of the Company to
each option-holder upon the grant of option, such period
not to exceed ten years from the date of grant. Each option
gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary
share of HK$0.1 each of the Company.

No share option was granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed during the years ended 31 December 2012 and
2011. In addition, as of 31 December 2012 and 2011,
no share option under the share options scheme were
outstanding.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

The Group received Korean government grants with
proceeds of approximately KRW48,834,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$325,000) to finance the acquisition of
certain plant and equipment of the discontinued operations
through the acquisition of a subsidiary in 2009. The grant is
initially measured at its fair value. The benefit derived from
such grant was recognised as a deduction from carrying
amount of the relevant asset in the consolidated statement
of financial position and will be recognised in profit or loss
on the same basis as depreciation for the related plant
and equipment. Such a government grant is measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method at
the end of reporting period. During the year ended 31
December 2012, government grant of approximately
HK$61,000 has been recognised in the consolidated
income statement (2011: approximately HK$69,000).

FH-A=t—HIFE
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36. UM AERZBRANHZ Z

37.

$ETJ€$ j—lﬁﬁ/\\_? 7_5/\)51‘1’/\5
%WZ%&%J% RAREFERER

ERAEEES (BEAEEAEAAQE
ZEE)  BEERERAARBERNBRE S,
24 ARBARRRRD o BRERHREKR
HEMES —FE=FAEZTTE - LK

RAR A EFR L BRAER e &S EEK
%ﬁﬁAZ%ﬁ%%%Eﬁ Heaz BT

iﬂm&ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ+$ i iE ke
ﬁ%%%ﬁAw% AO0.1B T2 AN
NEIEBA -

REBEE-F—_FR-F——F+=A
ST RIEFE - SEEREREE -

fi2 - FEHRKM - I BEZFT——F
E=2——F+t-A=+—H REBR
st BB AR AR R AT

BT 46 Rb

AEBWHMERKSM 2 REBNA
48,834,000%8 B ( /8 & R #325,000 7%
L) BBR_ZEEAFKRE—HKBA
T u%é%%aﬂﬁﬁg%%z T T i
R M REN LR AR BER
ME%F$2ﬂmEW@A%ﬁ#ﬂ
%$ﬁmﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ@m¢ I ¥z
EA AR R B R AR TTINE 2 AR A%
RIBEREITER - RIEHR - BURE R
Mﬁmﬂ+£&%%&$ﬁ; HE-Z
——HF+-A=+—BIFE ' 461,000
BILZBFHMEREGARTZRPER
(ZZ——%F : #969,000/87T) °
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37.

38.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS (Continued)

In December 2011, the Group also received PRC
government grants with proceeds of RMB543,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$670,000) to finance the
development of new software system of the continuing
operations. The grant is initially measured at its fair value.
The benefit derived from such grant will be recognised
in profit or loss on the same basis as amortisation of the
related software. Such a government grant is measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method at
the end of reporting period. During the year ended 31
December 2012, government grant of approximately
HK$67,000 has been recognised in the consolidated
income statement (2011: Nil).

DISTRIBUTION IN SPECIE OF SHARES IN A
SUBSIDIARY

Pursuant to an extraordinary general meeting held on
5 December 2012, the shareholders of the Company
approved the Group Reorganisation which involved the
transfer of shares in a subsidiary carrying on composite
components and unit electronic components operations
in Korea and the PRC to a subsidiary of the Company, Jay
Star. Pursuant to the Group Reorganisation, the Company
distributed all of the ordinary shares in Jay Star to the
shareholders of the Company. Details of the Distribution In
Specie are set out in the Company’s announcements dated
17 October 2012 and 11 December 2012 respectively.

As detailed in note 12, on 11 December 2012, the Group
discontinued these operations at the time of disposal of the
Jay Star Group. The net assets of Jay Star Group, at the
date of disposal were as follows:

37.

38.

BT 4B RE (40)

R-ZTE——F+—F » AREBENKEFEH
B 8 Bh 2 FRIE 49 A R 543,000 7T (48
ER49670,000787T) © A BRELEER
CHEHNBHERFREES - ZMERE
REARBEVSE - HEMELZIEFT
SmF SRR IR AR SR E
TR - ZBN AR A BER R =%
RE R AN RERRTE - REE=S
——F+-_A=+—HILFE ' 67,000
BILZBNAEMEREERERAER
(ZE—F : &],) -

B9 IRMIE A R AR

BER_ZE——F+-_ARARTZHRE
BRAE  ARRRE#HAEEEEA &
AN e B = NG e i NN e
B A7) Jay Star - MZERERMNBAA
TREGBE PR EEA T REMNE T
TUHET - RIEBERBEBEMR - ARE)H
Jay Star 2 & LB 9K T AN A AR ©
EAEYDIRZFBORERARE R
E——F+A++tBAR=_FT—=—F+=A
+—HBERZAM -

BINMEE 12 25 R=F——F+=A
+—H @ AEBER L E Jay Star & B 4%
IF3ZE %75 o Jay Star EERNEEEH
BEFEMOT :
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38. DISTRIBUTION IN SPECIE OF SHARES IN A 38. EYInikMiB AR MH (&)
SUBSIDIARY (Continued)
Analysis of assets and liabilities which were distributed FRADMZEEREBBEZDW :
during the year:
11/12/2012
—E—C—fF
+=BA+—8
HK$'000
FHET
Property, plant and equipment M - R NERE 166,542
Intangible assets | EE 9,727
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant WEYE  HWERRBE2ZS
and equipment 2,335
Inventories FE 29,597
Trade and other receivables ENE 5 K E MR 48,408
Bank balances and cash IRITER IR 7,731
Trade and other payables JET B 5 REABIRR (32,749)
Amount due to a former shareholder JE — R AT R AR K (53,578)
Bank borrowings — due within one year RITEE - —FRTIH (64,431)
Deferred tax liabilities RIEHIEAE (1,317)
Non-controlling interests FEPERRAE A (492)
Net assets attributable to the Group distributed REBEELTE DK TRE
to the shareholders ZEEFE 111,773
Net cash outflow arising on the Distribution In Specie: EEYsRMELECREERE :
Bank balances and cash disposal of HERTEBR LIRS 7,731
39. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 39. FEIREXS
During the year, certain interests in subsidiaries have been FHN - WBARNE TEZEDIRTAR
distributed to the shareholders of the Company. Details of AR o DIRFFIBENMHIEE12 - 16 %38 °

the distribution are set out in notes 12, 16 and 38.
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40. COMMITMENTS

(a)

Capital commitments outstanding at the end of the

reporting period contracted for but not provided for in
the financial statements in respect of the following:

ZFE+ZA=T+T—HIEFE

40. &I

@) RHEPRRPBHRERPETOER

ﬂi? B ERAEWT

The Group The Company
rEE AT
2012 2011 2012 2011
—®-—=F T % =—B-=F =2 %
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FETT FET FETT
Property, plant and R Y

equipment 14,619 -

(b)

The Group and the Company as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group and
the Company had commitments for future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases which fall due as follows:

(b) ANEBERARRRWERABEA
RBEHR - AEERARFREN
AR EEHER AREMNZRIER
SRR AETEWT

The Group The Company
rEH b /N
2012 2011 2012 2011
=F-=F —TF Z=F-=F T F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT FET FAT
Within one year —FR 6,327 1,275
In the second to RE_FEFRF
fifth year inclusive (BEEEMT) 4,751 2,306
11,078 3,681
Operating lease payments represent rentals payables KEHERIBERNRERAR A S

by the Group and the Company for certain of its
office premises. Leases are negotiated for an average
term of 8 years and 2 years for the Group and the
Company respectively and rentals are fixed for an
average of 8 years and 2 years for the Group and the
Company respectively.

THRENEZENES - AEE R
ARRAZ KRR PR R
NEERE - MAKERARNRFZHE
2 20 BIEE R T N\FRRF
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40. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(c)

The Group and the Company as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was
approximately HK$2,078,000 (2011: HK$977,000).
The property is expected to generate rental yields of
4.9% (2011:6.12%) per annum on an ongoing basis.
All of properties held have committed tenants for the
next year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group and
the Company had contracted with tenants for the
following future minimum lease receipts which fall
due as follows:

Annual Report 2012
ZE—FFR

40. & ()
) ARBERAREER/LEA

REEFMRBDM2WERSKAL
£2,078008 L (=T — — F:
977,000/ 7T) - TEHIME A FHE
BEREALERION(ZE——F:
6.12%) - ZEFTHFEHE 2 W HF KRR
—FHHEAGEHEE -

RBERR - AEBERAAF D EE
Ptz BIR&EMEWT

The Group The Company
rEE ¥ NN
2012 2011 2012 2011
—EB--F ZET——F B ZT——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FAET FHERT FAET
Within one year —FR 1,638 1,638
In the second to RE_FEERTF

fifth year inclusive (BEEEMT) 1,536 1,536
3,174 3,174

Note: At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
contracted with tenants on behalf of the subsidiary for
the future minimum lease payments in respect of the
investment properties.

st : RIMEHR - ARAFEKRKMBRARRE
RIREMENARREHS BB -
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41. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered
into the following material related party transactions.

(@) Transactions with shareholders

(i)

During the year, the Group entered into the
following transactions with Kwang Sung Korea,
a former major shareholder of the Company:

ZFE+ZA=T+T—HIEFE

41.

EXFAEALRS

BRAB ISR EMI T KB 2R ZIN
REBEFNATERBEALRS -

(a)

HRRZR 5

(i)

RER » NEBERRQ AR FE
EREBERETIU TR
5

2012 2011

—F-—=F —

HK$’000 HK$’000

Fix FHET

Sales of finished goods HE BUPK 410
Referral commission paid/payable 21, FETENAE 494
Subcontracting fee paid/payable B,/ FER AN E A 1,395

The directors of the Company are of the opinion
that the above transactions were conducted in
the ordinary course of business and were on
normal commercial terms.

Pursuant to a Deed of Indemnity dated 23 June
2003, two shareholders, Mr. Yang Jai Sung
and Kwang Sung Korea, would indemnify the
Group for any tax liabilities payable for periods
prior to 30 June 2003. Amounts receivable
from Mr. Yang Jai Sung and Kwang Sung
Korea under the indemnity at 31 December
2011 are approximately HK$3,452,000 and
HK$5,026,000 (2012: Nil) respectively.

RKARZEERE S L5
EEHE Mk —REKBREFRIE
EEEFEGTETT ©

EgE g Hﬁ%igg_i/—\ﬂ
ZT=HBZRERZFRL
HRERZR EE%E&%I%E
R _EE=FA=1+HH
HEZ ERHBaERANEER
ELRE - REBERZNZ
Z——F+A=+t—HEK
%EE%%&%E%EZ%

85 Bl 49 /3,452 OOO?%T_E&
5026 0008 (ZE——4F:
) o
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41. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b) Transactions with other related parties

(i)

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel
of the Group, including amounts paid to the
Company’s directors as disclosed in note 14
and certain of the highest paid employees as
disclosed in note 15, is as follows:

Annual Report 2012
ZE—FFR

41. EXFHAEALRH (8)

HHEMEAEALTZRS
(i) EREBABZME

(b)

TEEEABME (BHEER
fIFE 1A A EE XN T AR A
EX7eBNMNERME 15K
BEXNTETHREHEEZS
) AT

2012 2011

—F--F —E——F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FHEIT

Short-term employee benefits EEAEBET 6,839
Post-employment benefits BEER 1Bt T 62
6,901

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs”
(see note 13).

During the year, the Group paid a consultancy
fee of approximately HK$510,000 (2011:
HK$562,000) to Mr. Yang Han Mo, a close
family member of Mr. Yang Jai Sung, a
shareholder and a director of the Company.
No consultancy fee was outstanding at 31
December 2012 and 2011.

B & sa5E st AT B TAA
(RBIFE13) »

(il RAFEE X xX&EERARFZ
¥ Yang Han Mo %t 4 7 1+ & [
& 49510,0008 ¢ (=& — —
F:562,0008 L) N =T
——FR-_FT——F+ A
=+ — B EMREZN 2B
o
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Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the extraordinary
general meeting held on 25 February 2013, the name of
the Company was changed from “Kwang Sung Electronics
H.K. Co. Limited St EEF & B ER A A" to “Forebase
International Holdings Limited” and “ E8 %= B B2 122 1% 5 R
/A B]” was adopted as its Chinese name for identification
purposes only. The “Certificate of Incorporation on Change
of Name” has been issued by the Registrar of Companies
in Hong Kong and the change of the Company’s name
took effect on 12 March 2013. Details are set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 25 February 2013 and
13 March 2013 respectively.

41. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 41. EXHAEANTR G (&)
(Continued)
(b) Transactions with other related parties (b) HEHEMBAEALZRS (B)

(Continued)

(iii) Loan to key management personnel (i) MEEEEASIRMEER
Included in other receivables were loans to key HERRIERERNEEEE
management personnel and the terms of which ABRHEZER HERN
are as follows: N
Name of
Key management personnel Relationship 2012 2011
TEEERBARER ZEES —E--F —T——F

Note HK$ HK$
M5 BT BT

Due from

FEUTLAT AL5R78

Mr. Lee Don Gi General Manager

TYELAE RS (i) 67,000

Note: FfaE -

()  As the general manager has authority and () BRECEEERBEERESK
responsibility for planning, directing and MRS BTRRESEE 2
controlling the activities of the entity, directly or X558 RARARRIESR
indirectly, as well the directors of the Company RARAZBEIBRANEE 2
consider the general manager of the Company FEEEEz— AARAA
is one of the key management personnel of the 2 AR IBTE N FRIB R K — TR A
Group, accordingly the fund advance with the EHRS - HEeEERR -
general manager of the Company constituted BB BIRERKATEER -

a related party transaction. The amounts are
unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on
demand.
42. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 42. REWEEIE

BER-_ZE—=F_A-+HBALTZ
RARIRERFARSRB 2 —BRERIR
#mE ANAQ A 2 %A [Kwang Sung
Electronics H.K. Co. Limited X2 & F&H
AR A BkA [Forebase International
Holdings Limited BB E B BIZ R H R A
Al WERMEAXHTE - EHEA2
B BBRAFMERREEL [ERA
WEMEEZ]  ERARREHR T —=
F=AFZHER - BEFED FIENA
AREBHAE-— T =F"F-_+HAK_
T =F=ZA+=ZH2Z2RER -
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T CFFH

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
—ZENF —ETNEFE —T-TF —T—F ZB--F

Consolidated Income REBREXR

Statement (HK$'000) (F&m)
Turnover EE] 797,912 592,529 680,793 558,528
Profit (loss) from operations &% H (E518) (1,538) 3,308 14,018 (57,389)
Profit (loss) after taxation and B AN A 7]

attributable to owners A AFEMS

of the Company wA (E18) (2,298) (35,774) 8,087 (52,946)
Basic earnings (loss) FREARZEF

per share — HK cents (&8) — Bl (0.73) (11.13) 2.50 (16.35)
Diluted earnings (10ss) FREERTF

per share — HK cents (&H) — Bl (0.73) (11.13) 2.50 (16.35)
Consolidated Statement REBMBRRE

of Financial Position (F&mT)

(HK$'000)
Non-current assets FRBEE 77,984 104,708 163,708 220,113
Current assets RBEE 352,432 390,091 366,194 332,908
Current liabilities RENAE (69,262) (128,360) (141,586) (215,813)
Net current assets REVEEFE 283,170 261,731 224,608 117,095
Long-term liabilities ERBaE (2,009) (11,860) (14,332) (13,191)
Net assets BEFE 359,145 354,579 373,984 324,017
Share Information (HK$) BRHER (BL)
Highest share price RERE $3.27 $2.70 $0.98 $0.76
Lowest share price RERE $1.11 $0.33 $0.41 $0.21
Year end closing share price  FRUFIL(E $2.68 $0.41 $0.65 $0.60
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Mr. Lee Kyu Young*
Mr. Hong Sang Joon*

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Yu Lei*

Dr. Jiang Ying"

Ms. Zhang Cui Lan®

Mr. Ernst Rudolf Zimmermann®
Dr. Han Byung Joon*

Dr. Kim Chung Kweon*

Mr. Kim Chan Su*

Executive Committee

Mr. Shen Yong®

Mr. Ronald Lew Podlas™
Mr. Shen Ke"

Mr. Li Zhi*

Mr. Xu Li Jian®

Mr. Leung Kin Pang”

Mr. Yang Jai Sung*

Mr. Lee Kyu Young*

Mr. Hong Sang Joon®

Audit Committee

Ms. Zhang Cui Lan*

Mr. Yu Lei*

Dr. Jiang Ying*

Mr. Ernst Rudolf Zimmermann®
Mr. Kim Chan Su*

Dr. Kim Chung Kweon*

Dr. Han Byung Joon*

Mr. Yang Ho Sung*
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Remuneration Committee

Mr. Yu Lei*

Dr. Jiang Ying"

Ms. Zhang Cui Lan*

Mr. Ernst Rudolf Zimmermann®
Dr. Han Byung Joon*

Dr. Kim Chung Kweon*

Mr. Kim Chan Su*

Mr. Yang Jai Sung*

Nomination Committee

Mr. Yu Lei®

Dr. Jiang Ying®

Ms. Zhang Cui Lan”

Mr. Ernst Rudolf Zimmermann®
Dr. Kim Chung Kweon*

Dr. Han Byung Joon*

Mr. Kim Chan Su*

Mr. Yang Jai Sung*

Independent Board Committee

Mr. Yu Lei*

Dr. Jiang Ying®

Ms. Zhang Cui Lan*

Mr. Ernst Rudolf Zimmermann®
Mr. Kim Chan Su*

Dr. Han Byung Joon*

Dr. Kim Chung Kweon*

appointed on 20 January 2012

appointed on 26 March 2012

appointed on 17 December 2012

resigned on 7 January 2013

appointed on 7 January 2013

appointed on 18 January 2013

ceased to be the chairman of the Executive Committee and remained as
one of its members on 18 January 2013
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Company Secretary
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie

Authorised Representatives

Mr. Hong Sang Joon
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie

Registered Office and Principal Place of Business

Units 208-209, 2/F., Bio-Informatics Centre
No. 2 Science Park West Avenue

Hong Kong Science Park

Shatin, N.T.

Hong Kong

Annual Report 2012
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Auditors

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Share Registrar and Transfer Office

Tricor Standard Limited
26/F., Tesbury Centre
28 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

Investor Relations Contact

Strategic Financial Relations Limited
Unit A, 29/F., Admiralty Centre |

18 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2864-4812

Fax: (852) 2804-2789

Stock Code
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited: 2310

Company Website

www.kse.com.hk

Shareholders’ Calendar

Announcement of 2012 Final Results
26 March 2013

Closure of Register of Members
28 to 30 May 2013 (both days inclusive)

Annual General Meeting
30 May 2013
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(Formerly known as Kwang Sung Electronics H.K. Co. Limited Jt: /2 7 T 7 it A IR 4 Al)
(Fi #% %% Kwang Sung Electronics H.K. Co. Limited ¢ 22 & T & 54 R4 )
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability) (A 7= 1G5 Mz 2 A RS Al)




